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The Annual Meeting

of Stockholders

will be held

April 24, 2004,
10:30 am at the
National Soccer
Hall of Fame,

18 Stadium Circle,
Oneonta, New York.
All Stockholders are

cordially invited to attend.
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Financial Highlights

The Wilber Corporation
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To Our Stockholders

N
it

he year 2003 will be rerrfé{nbered as the year in which the United States struck /
back at terrorism by topplfhg the regime of Saddam Hussein; the continuation

of corporate governance scaﬁqlals; a record recovery in the stock market and /

the continuation of the 40-yea\f_urecord low interest rates.

\
A

Economically, although interest rates we}g very low, they were stable. The prime

rate declined only once, on June 27, 2003 from\‘f.b% to 4.00%. These 1ow/'mterest rates
continued to compress already thin net interest n;é¥gins at community ]}ar{(s all across the
country. There was no exception to this rule for Thé‘t,\}f\fﬂber Corpo?t»iéfn. Our net interest
margin in 2003 was 3.58% compared to 3.79% in 2OQ2, This key number in our financial

operations equates to the gross profit margin in other bi‘l‘sir}es'ses and, without strict cost

1
;:% controls and growth, it is very difficult to maintain profitability levels.
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Unlike the previous two years when year-end deposits grew a total of 24.96%,
growth slowed in 2003. In fact, year-end deposits grew by only 5.75% from the previous
year-end, with total assets at year-end 2003 growing only 2.83% from the previous year.
Further, most of this growth occurred in the first half of the year. The company had total
assets of approximately $729 million at the end of the year, up from approximately
$709 million a year ago. These additional funds were primarily invested in the bank’s
investment portfolio as the gross loan portfolio only grew by 0.73%, ending the year with
approximately $360.9 million in loans outstanding. We continued to have growth in the
commercial real estate and commercial lending areas, ending the year with outstanding
loans in these categories up $10.2 million from year-end 2002. However, we experienced
a flat year in consumer loans, down $698,000 and residential real estate loans, down

$6.9 million from year-end 2002 to year-end 2003.

In spite of the difficult conditions I have described above, [ am very pleased to be
able to report another year of record earnings and remarkably strong stock performance.
For the year 2003, our net income was $8.713 million, approximately $151,000 ahead of

5 2002. Net income per share (adjusted for the 4-for-1 stock split, effected int the form of a

\\\stock dividend, which occurred September 19, 2003) was $0.78 versus $0.76 for 2002.
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Again, adjusting for the 2003 stock split, we sa/vé the Company’s common share price
increase from $1C.50 per share on December 31, IZ(D/O2, to close the year 2003 at $13.50,
a 28.57% increase. In addition, during the year v\;e had 110 days when the stock traded
withrn391,675 shares traded during the year. At year-end the Company’s common stock

was trading at a price-to-earnings ratio of 17.31 arld a price-to-equity ratio of 2.35.

. ‘
At the special meeting of the shareholders held on September 5, 2003, the two
proposals on the roxy staterment were approvecd. These approvals allowed the Company
to split the shares and paved the way for' us to regijster with the Securities and Exchange

Commission and list the common shares on the American Stock Exchange?

Expansion and improvement of facilities was another highlight of the year. We
announced in 2003 and expect to open in March 12004, a new branch office in Johnson City,
New York (Broome County). This office will house: a representative of our Mang-Wilber
Insurance affiliate, offering a full range of insurance products. We also hope to staff the
branch with a nev: business development officer for the Trust Department. The office

will feature an ATM, night depository and expand(‘:d deposit and loan services.

At our Mair. Office, we replaced all of our ditve-thru equipment and constructed
an access ramyp from our parking lot to the office fDr the physically disabled. These improve-
ments will add to the convenience of those customers who use the Main Office for banking,

insurance, trust and INVEST services.

Late in the vear we hired a new manager for our INVEST department who will
lead seven of our zecently licensed retail delivery e‘mployees in selling investment products.
We continue to believe in the concept that Wilber Bank should be able to handle each indi-

viduals financial reeds by delivering, with personslized service, a product to fit those needs.

We thank you for the privilege of being akle:to serve you as customers and for your

P e

continued supporr.

“ . /
Alfred $. Whittet //
President and Chief Executive Officer /
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The remodeled Main Office drive-thru prO\//ides
improved functionality and security.

; ; ‘ .
The new handicap accessible ramp connecting the
Main Office parking lot to the building is compliant
with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

e
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Wilber Officers

EXECUTIVE

Brian R. Wright
Chairman of the Board

Robert W. Moyer
Vice Chairman

Alfred S. Whittet ‘ S
President and PR - :
Chief Executive Officer ‘ :

Douglas C. Gulotty -

) ) ' Wilber's recently expanded INVEST team is ready to meet with clients in any Wilber branch to help plan long-term
Executive Vice President

savings goals. Seated: Charles Nicasia, Tarnmy Neumann. Back row, left to right: Jennifer Ross, Laura Hansel, Kristi
Spooner, Bridget Lilley, Rick Follett, Wende Roach, Michelle Miller.

CORPORATE PLANNING
AND FINANCE

Joseph E. Sutaris
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

James M. Salisbury
Vice President and Cashier

Tina M.G. Sheldon
Assistant Vice President and
Accounting and Procurement Manager

Kristen L. Baxter
Controller

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE

Dianne R. Wicks
Auditor

Marissa [. Wamsley
Auditor

Dorothy A. Quarltere
Compliance Officer

HUMAN RESOURCES

Robert D. Harder
Vice President

Denise M. Dye
Human Resources Officer

FACILITIES AND SECURITY

Brett C. Fisk
Vice President

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND CUSTOMER SUPPORT

Steven A. Milavec
Senior Vice President

Mickey R. Carpenter
Assistant Vice President and
Senior Programming Analyst

dedicated to

continued growth
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TRUST AND INVESTMENTS

Benjamin C. Nesbitt
Senior Vice President and
Senior Investment Officer

Herbert A. Simmerly, Jt.
Vice President and Senior Trust Officer

Priscilla R. Breen
Senior Trust Officer

Diane S. Munson
Trust Officer

Lynda S. Peet
Trust Officer

Amy B. Schlee
Trust Officer
Charles J. Perrillo, Jr.

Trust Investment Officer

Laura M. Hansel
Investment Services Officer

Patricia A. Lowe
Trust Operations Manager and
Fiduciary Tax Officer

Charles A. Nicosia
INVEST Program Manager




LOANS

Credit Administration

Douglas S. Chesser
Senior Vice President and
Senior Loan Officer

Allison M. Mosher
Assistant Vice President

Eileen Rose-Scott
Assistant Vice President

Susan M. Tietjen
Commercial Loan Process Manager

Robert W. Gernhaidt, Jr.
Real Estate Services Manager

Geoffrey A. Rightmyer
Assistant Manager

Selina S. Gelatt
Mortgage Processing Manager

‘CUSTOMER DEL!VERY

Tammy R. Neumann
Vice President

Nancy A. Miller
Assistant Vice President and
Gold Club Manage:

Paula A. Marino
Assistant Vice President,
Branch Administrarion

Richard J. Follett
Assistant Vice President and
Administrative Offizer
Bridget M. Lilley
Assistant Vice President and
Administrative Offizer
Sallyann J. Lamanna

Assistant Vice President,
Marketing and Public Relations

Customer Developmaeant

Jeffrey C. Lord
Senior Vice President and
Serior Loan Officer

eConsumer Loans

Donald W. Simcox
Assistant Vice President

Michael A. Berger
Installment Loans Manager

Diane M. Hummel
Indirect Loan Officer

*Mortgage Loans

Christine M. Wiltsie
Assistant Vice President

Janice C. Eichler
Regional Manager and
Business Development Officer

Phyllis B. Zona
Regional Business Development Officer

David D. Slentz
Regional Manager and
Development Officer

Catherine L. Sobers
Branch Operations Officer

Michelle L. Miller
Branch Manager and
Business Development Officer

Sanford Loucks Baer
Business Development Officer

Anthony R. Brady

eCommercial Loans

Edward P. Michalek
Vice President

Edward P. Bahrenburg

Vice President

April J. Volk
Vice President

Charles W. Sutliff

Assistant Vice President

John M. Connolly

Commercial Loan Officer

Michelle D. Catan

Commercial Loan Officer

Branch Officers
Marilee A. Asher

Sally A. Bartlett
Marjorie M. Frenchi™,
Nancy T. Fusco

Jean M. Lacey

Linda J. Northrup
Gordon M. Rehrmann
Roy S. Todd

Michael K. Walling
Galina H. Whitman

AN

Public Relations and Advertising Officer
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Banking Locations

Main Office (2 ATMs) Schenevus Office Cobleskill Office (ATM)

Paula A. Marino, Manager Marjorie M. French, Manager Sdlly A. Bardett Manager
245 Main Street 101 Main Street S5t a i

\ Oneonta, NY 13820 Schenevus, NY 12155 Apbleskill, NY 12043 3803

607-432-1700 « 1-800-374-7980 607-638-5821 '

Oneonta Plains Office (ATM) Otego Office Downsville Office

Phyllis B. Zona, Manager Galing H. Whitman, Manager Jean M. Lacey, Manager
434 Chestnut Street 304 Main Street 15229 State Highway 30
Oneonta, NY 13820 Otego, NY 13825 Downsville, NY 13755

607-432-6610 607-988-2521 607-363-7211

Delhi Office
Linda J. Novthryg, Manager
85 Sherwodds Road
Dethi, 13753
607—7{%6 2162

FoxCare Center Office (ATM) Morris Office
Michgel K Walling, Manager
2 FaxCare Drive

Onedpta, NYLE

Tk Mall Office (ATM) Cooperstown Office (ATM) Fleischmanns Office (ATM)
) Janice C. Eichler, Manager Marilee A. Asher, Manager
62 Main Street 1084 Main Street
Cooperstown, NY 13326 Fleischmanns, NY 12430
607-547-9941 845-254-5252

Sidney Office (ATM)
Bridget M. Lilley, Manager
19 Union Street

Sidney, NY 13838 X%
607-563-7770 XX ;{
&1

201 East Main Street
Milford, NY 13807
607-286-3361
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Boiceville Office (ATM)
Roy S. Todd, Manager
4141 State Highway 28
Boiceville, NY 12412
5-657-8733

Otsego Qffice (ATM)

Cherri E. Huper

Customer Servise Manager
5378 State Hi(;}way 28
Cooperstowrt, NY 13326
607-547-7222

Norwich Town Office (ATW),

David D. Slentz, Manager
4837 State Highway 23
Norwich, NY 13815
607-336-7344

Norwich City Offize (ATM)
Gordon M. Rehrmana
Customer Service Officer
18 S. Broad Street
Norwich, NY 13815
607-334-2277

Johnson City Office (ATM)

Michelle L. Miller, Manager
23 Riverside Drive
Johnsen City, NY 13790
607-644-1270

INTERNET BANKING

www.wilberbank.com

Left to right:
Ed Bahrenburg,
Commercial Loan Officer,
reviews the Johnson City
blueprints with

Norman J. Davies,

architect and

Todd Grubham,

Lew Grubham General
Construction.

OFF-SITE ATMs

Hartwick College
Student Union, Dewar Hall
Orleonta, NY

SU?NY at Oneonta
Hunt Student Union
Qni‘aoma, NY

BI?\N;}KING SUBSIDIARIES
AND) AFFILIATES

Wllﬁ‘er National Bank
243 Main Street
Oneonta, NY 13820

Main;“g-wuber, LLC
c/oiWilber National Bank
Finfancial Services Center
24% Main Street
Ongonta, NY 13820
607-433-0511
1-800-485-2855

Wilber REIT, Inc.
24% Main Street
cprxifonta, NY 13820
b
Western Catskill Realty, LLC

245 Main Street
Onponta, NY 13820

Johnson City
branch manager, |
Michelle Miller,and |
Regional Commercial -
Sales Manager,
Ed Michalek, assess the
progress of the
branch renovations.

The nearly completed Johnson City branch
at 23 Riverside Drive is expected 6 open
for business in March, 2004.
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Our Mission

In providing money management solutions
with new ideas and old-fashioned service,
we will strive to exceed
the expectations of

our customers
for value and service

our shareholders
for long-term return on their investment

our employees
for a secure and fair workplace

and

OUr COMmMunity
for long-term prosperity
of the local economy.




The Wilber Corporation

245 Main Street
Oneonta, New York 13820

Notice of Annual Meeting,
Proxy Statement and
2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
To Be Held

April 24, 2004
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THE
WILBER 245 MAIN STREET
CORPORJATION ONEONTA, NY 13820-0430

TELEPHONE (607) 432-1700

March 26, 2004
Dear Wilber Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of The Wilber Corporation to be
held on Saturday, April 24, 2004 at 10:30 a.m., notice of which is enclosed. The meeting will be held at the
National Soccer Hall of Fame, 18 Stadium Circle, Oneonta, New York. The Board of Directors has
unanimously recommended that shareholders vote “FOR” the director nominees and two other proposals.

The Wilber Corporation is now registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and listed
with the American Stock Exchange® (Amex®) under the symbol GIW. The expanded proxy statement is a
requiremen of the regulations we must now act under. The combination of the four-for-one stock split last
Fall and listing with a national exchange has resulted in a higher trading volume (liquidity) and a greater
appreciation by investors of just how well-managed your institution remains in a very difficult interest rate
environmernt. The downside is the high cost of compliance with the many requirements of the SEC, Amex
and the relatively new Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

By the time of our Annual Meeting we should be converted to our new computer operations system. The
customer will not be affected by the conversion, but the new system should allow the bank to operate more
efficiently as it continues to grow and €xpand into new areas. The delay in conversion is a direct result of our
management team insisting that the bank have nothing less than the best.

Even if you expect to be present at the Annual Meeting, please mark, date, and sign the enclosed Proxy and
return it promptly.

We appreciate your continued support of The Wilber Corporation and its subsidiary, Wilber National Bank.
Sincerely,

Brian R. Wright /
Chairman of the Board




This page intentionally left blank




THE WILBER CORPORATION
245 Main Street
Oneonta, New York 13820

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To be held April 24, 2004

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of The Wilber Corporation (the
“Company”) will be held as follows:
Place: National Soccer Hall of Fame
18 Stadium Circle
Oneonta, New York 13820
Date: Saturday, April 24, 2004

Time: 10:30 a.m.

The Annual Meeting will be held for the following purposes:
1. To fix the number of directors of the Company at six (6);

2. To elect six (6) members to the Company’s Board of Directors,
each to serve for a one year term, and

3. To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP, as our independent
auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004

Only sharehoiders of record at the close of business on March 12, 2004 are entitled to notice of, and to vote
at, the Annual Meeting.

Itis important that your shares are represented at the meeting. Accordingly, please sign, date and mail the
enclosed proxy in the enclosed postage-paid envelope, whether or not you plan to attend the meeting. If
you do attend the Annual Meeting, you may revoke your proxy and vote your shares in person.

By Order of the Board of Directors

L Sk
Joseph E. Sutaris
Secretary .

Oneonta, New York
March 26, 2004




THE WILBER CORPORATION

245 Main Street
Oneonta, New York 13820
(607Y432-1700

PROXY STATEMENT
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
APRIL 24, 2004

Solicitation of Proxies

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to shareholders of The Wilber Corporation (the
“Company”) in connection with the solicitation of proxies on behalf of the Board of Directors to be used at
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The meeting will be held on Saturday, April 24, 2004 at the National
Soccer Hall of Fame located at 18 Stadium Circle, Oneonta, New York beginning at 10:30 a.m. (local time),
and any adjournments thereof.

At the meeting, we will ask shareholders to: (i) fix the number of directors of the Company at six
(6); (ii) elect six members to our Board of Directors, each to serve for a one year term; and (iii) ratify the
appointment of KPMG LLP, as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004.

The Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy to vote at the meeting and at any adjournments of the
meeting. Please complete the enclosed proxy sheet and return it in the enclosed return envelope as soon
as possible. Each of our shareholders has one vote for each share of common stock owned. In the election
of directors, each shareholder is entitled to cumulative voting, which means that each shareholder has votes
equal to the number of votes the shareholder would be entitled to cast for the election of directors multiplied
by the number of directors to be elected. The shareholder may cast all of such votes for a single director or
may distribute them among the directors standing for election, as the shareholder sees fit. For example, a
shareholder who owns 100 shares on the record date will hold 600 votes when six directors are to be
elected. The shareholder may: (i) place 100 votes for each of the nominated directors; (ii) place 600 votes
for one of the nominated directors; (iii) place 400 votes for one director and 200 votes for another director;
or (iv) any other combination, so long as the total votes do not exceed 600.

Please read this Proxy Statement carefully before you decide how to vote. We encourage you to
return the proxy sheet even if you plan to attend the meeting. This will save us the additional expense in
soliciting proxies and will ensure that your vote is counted. You may still vote in person at the meeting even
if you return the proxy sheet.

Shareholders of record on March 12, 2004 are entitled to receive notice of the meeting and are
entitled to vote at the meeting, or at an adjournment of the meeting. This is known as the “Record Date.” As
of the Record Date, there were 11,209,392 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $.01 per
share, issued and outstanding.

”» o

In this Proxy Statement, the terms “we,” “our,” “us,” or similar terms refer to the Company.
References in this Proxy Statement to the “Bank” refer to Wilber National Bank, our wholly owned
subsidiary.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE “FOR” FIXING THE
NUMBER OF DIRECTORS AT SIX (6); “FOR” THE DIRECTOR NOMINEES DESCRIBED IN THIS PROXY
STATEMENT AND “FOR” THE RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS.

This Proxy Statement and accompanying Notice of Annuai Meeting are first being mailed to
shareholders on or about March 26, 2004

IMPORTANT: THE PROMPT RETURN OF PROXIES WILL SAVE us THE EXPENSE OF FURTHER
REQUESTS FOR PROXIES TO ENSURE A QUORUM AT. THE MEETING. WE HAVE ENCLOSED A
SELF-ADDRESSED ENVELOPE WHICH YOU CAN USE TO RETURN YOUR PROXY SHEET. NO
POSTAGE IS REQUIRED IF YOU MAIL THE ENVELOPE IN THE UNITED STATES.




Voting and Revocability of Proxies -

If you sign and return a proxy sheet in the form that the Board of Directors is soliciting so we receive
it before the polls close at the meeting, your votes will be cast as you have marked on the proxy sheet,
unless you revoke your proxy before the polls close. If you properly sign and return your proxy sheet but
you do not mark on it how you want to vote on any matter, then the Board of Directors, as your proxy, will
vote your shares in favor of fixing the number of directors at six (6), the nominees for director named in this
Proxy Statement and the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP, as the independent auditors. We do
not know of any other matters that shareholders may present for a vote at the meeting. If any shareholder
properly presents any other matter for a vote, including a proposal to adjourn the meeting, the Board

members indicated on the proxy sheet, as the holders of your proxy, may vote on those matters based on
their judgment. :

If you sign-and return the enclosed proxy sheet, you may revoke it at any time before the polls are
closed. If you want to revoke your-proxy, you must: (i) sign and deliver a written notice to the Secretary of
the Company, at or before the meeting. dated after the date of your proxy stating that you want to revoke the
proxy; (i) sign and deliver to the Secretary of the Company, at or before the meeting, another proxy sheet
relating to the same shares with a later date; or (jii) attend the meeting and vote in person. Attending the
meeting does not automatically revoke a proxy unless you aiso take one of the three actions described in
the prior sentence. Any written notice revoking a proxy must be delivered to Joseph E. Sutaris, Secretary,
The Wilber Corporation, 245 Main Street, P.O. Box 430, Oneonta, New York 13820.

Quorum. If 5,604,697 shares of our common stock are presentin person or represented by proxy at
the meeting, there will be a quorum which will allow the meeting to commence. Once a quorum is present,
the meeting can continue even if some shareholders leave the meeting. If a shareholder is present in
person or by proxy but abstains from voting any shares, or if a broker submits a proxy for shares but does
not vote thcse shares, then the shares are counted as present for purposes of determining a quorum.

Shareholder votes will be tabulated by the persons appointed by the Board of Drrectors to act as )udges of
election of the meeting. L

“Required Vote. A plurality of the votes cast is required to elect directors. This means that the
nominees for each dll’eCtOI’Shlp who receive the most votes will be elected. Abstentions and broker non-

votes will not be counted for or against any of the nominees and will have no effect on the outcome of this
proposal

Cumulative voting is permitted in the election of directors. Cumulative voting allows each
shareholder to cast all of his or her votes (equal to the number of shares owned multiplied by the number of
director nominees) for a single nominee or any two or more nominees, rather than distributing his or her
total votes equally among the six nominees.

Regarding the other two proposals before the meeting, each share is entitied to one vote. A majority
vote of the shares outstanding and entitled to vote is required to approve the proposals described in this
Proxy Staternent and any other matter which may be presented for a vote at the meeting.

Director Nominations by Shareholders. Our bylaws provide that, atan annual meeting, a shareholder
may nominate a person for election as & director only if advance notice of intent to nominate the person and
certain additional information as described in the bylaws is mailed or delivered to the Secretary of the
Company. The notice must be received by the Company at least 14 but notmore than 50 days before the
date of the meeting (or at least 7 days in advance of the meeting if less than 21 days’ notice of the meeting
is given). The natification shall contain the following information to the extent known to the notifying
shareholders: (i) the name and address of each proposed nominee; (ii) the age of each proposed nominee;
(iii) the principal occupation of each proposed nominee; (iv) the number of shares of the Company owned by
each proposed nominee; (v) the total number of shares that to the know!edge of the notifying shareholder




will be voted for each proposed nominee; (vi) the name and residence address of the notifying shareholder,
and (vii) the number of shares of the Company owned by the notifying shareholder.

Important Information for Shareholders Whose Stock Is Held in Street Name

If you hold your stock in street name, which means that your stock is held for you in a brokerage
account and is not registered on our stock records in your own name, please tell your broker as soon as
possible how to vote your shares to make sure that your broker votes your shares before the polls close at
the meeting. If your stock is held in street name, you do not have the direct right to vote your shares or
revoke a proxy for your shares unless your broker gives you that right in writing.

Principal Owners Of Our Common Stock
The following table provides you with information, to the best of our knowledge, about stock

ownershlp by directors, executive officers, and any person or group known by us to own beneficially more
than 5% of our outstanding common stock. The information is as of the Record Date.

Amount and
Nature of Percentage
Beneficial Ownership
Name of Beneficial Owner Ownership (1) (2)
The AE & AT Farone Foundatuon'. Inc. 837,120 7479%
620 Michigan Avenue NE, Washington, DC 20064
Wilber National Bank (3)
1,704,716 15.21%
245 Main Street, Oneonta, New York 13820 °
Directors and Executive Officers
Brian R. Wright (4) 3,433,600 30.63%
Director and Chairman of the Company and the Bank
Robert W. Moyer (5) 68,644 .
Vice Chairman of the Company
Alfred S. Whittet (6) : 12.000 N
President and CEQ and Director of the Company and Bank '
Day|d F. Wilber, 111 (7) 399,576 3.56%
Director of the Company and the Bank
James F. VanDeusen (8) 25,000 N
Director of the Company and Bank
Philip J. Devine (9) 88,520 *
Director of the Company and Bank
Douglas C. Gulotty 0 *
Executive Vice President of the Bank
Joseph E. Sutaris
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Company; o : 0] *
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Bank
James M. Salisbury (10)
Vice President and Treasurer of the Company; 1,600 *
Vice President and Cashier of the Bank A _ IR
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (9 persons) ~ o ' 4.028,940 35.94%




Notes to Principal Owners of Common Stock Table (on previous page):

(1) Under Rulz 13d-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), as amended, a person is
considered a beneficial owner of a security if he / she has or shares voting power or investment power over the
security or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership of the security within 60 days from the date of this filing.
"Voting Pcwer” is the power to vote or clirect the votmg of shares "Investment Power” is the power to dispose or
direct the dispasition of shares.

(2) There are 11,209,392 shares of the Company's stock issued and outstandmg as of the Record Date. An
asterick (" * ") means that the percentage held is less than 1%.

(3) The‘Bank acts as Trustee for these sheres held for certain customers.

(4) Mr. Wright owns 3,432,916 shares through a Florida Intangible Property Trust as of the record date and 684
- shares through an investment managernent account managed by Wllber National Bank’s trust department. As
- of the date: of the meeting, Mr. Wright will directly own all shares.

(5)Mr. Moyer owns 26,084 shares directly and 9,600 as a joint tenant. Mr. Moyer's spouse owns 32,960 shares.
(6) Mr. Whittet owns 7,200 shares directly.: Mr. Whittet's spouse owns 4,800 shares.

(7) Mr. Wilber owns 102,456 shares personally and 200,000 shares as a fiduciary.': Mr. Wilber's spouse owns
97,120 shares as to which he disclaims beneficial ownership.

{8)Mr. VanDeusen holds his shares jointly with his spouse.
(9) Mr. Devine: owns 80,656 shares personally, 3,864 shares through a trust and 4,000 shares as a guardian.

(10)Mr. Salisbury holds his shares jointly with his spouse.

PROPOSAL I. 'SIZE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company's bylaws provide that the Board of Directors shall consist of not less than five (5) nor
more than 25 members, and that the number of directors shall be fixed by the shareholders at the annual
meeting. Within the foregoing limits, the Board of Directors may from time to time fix the number of
directors, but may not raise or lower the number by more than two (2) between any two (2) successive
annual meeti ngs of the shareholders

Vacancies on the Board of Dlren,tors including vacancies resulting from an increase in the number of
directors, may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining members of the Board of Dlrectors Each person
so appointed shall be a director until the next annual meeting of shareholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE IN FAVOR OF
FIXING THE NUMBER OF BOARD MEMBERS AT SIX (6).

PROPOSAIl || ELECTlON OF DIRECTORS -

Our Board of Dlrectors presentlv has six (6) members and each director is elected for a one year
term and until his successor is elected and qualified.

At this meeting, shareholders will elect six (6) directors, all of whom are current directors of the
Company. The Board of Directors has nominated the persons set forth below for election atthe meeting as
directors. Shareholders elect directors by a plurality of the votes cast, which means that the six (6)
nominees with the highest vote totals will be elected. Cumulative voting by shareholders is permitted in the
election of directors, which means that @ shareholder may cast all of his or her votes (equal to the number of
shares owned multiplied by six (6) — the number of director nominees) in favor of any one (1) nominee or
two (2) or more nominees.




Each of the nominees named below has consented to being named in this Proxy Statement and to
serve, if elected. If any nominee becomes unavailable for election for any presently unforeseen reason, the
Board of Directors, as the holder of your proxy, will have the right to use its discretion to cast your votes for a
substitute. The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote in favor of these six (6)
nominees.

The Nominees

We are providing the following information regarding the nominees for election as directors There
are no arrangements or understandings by which any director was selected to serve as such. There are no
family relationships among directors and executive officers of the Company. Ages are as of the Record
Date.

Brian R. Wright, age 59, is Chairman of the Board of the Company and the Bank. Mr. Wright
became a Director of the Bank in 1976 and the Company in 1982. He was elected Chairman of the Bank in
1981 and of the Company in 1982.

Mr. Wright is Special Counsel to the law firm of Hinman, Howard & Kattell, LLP in Binghamton, New
York. In addition, Mr. Wright served as the Assistant District Attorney for Broome County, New York from
1971 to 1973. He is currently a trustee of Hartwick College, Oneonta, New York, and the Oneonta Family
Y.M.C.A. He is a past Director of the National Soccer Hall of Fame, Oneonta, New York and serves as a
board member of the Lourdes Hospital Foundation in Binghamton, New York and Mayo Trust, White Plains,
New York.

Robert W. Moyer, age 71, has been Vice Chairman of the Company since 1986. Mr. Moyer also
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 1983 until his retirementin 1997 in
addition to his service to the Company, Mr. Moyer held the position of President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Bank from 1972 until 1986, and Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank from 1986
until his retirementin 1997. He served as the Vice Chairman of the Bank from 1997 until his retirement from
the Bank's Board in April 2003.

During his active service with the Company and the Bank, Mr. Moyer served in various capacities with
the New York Business Development Corporation, American Bankers Association, New York Bankers
Association and the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, including Director and Chairman of the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York’s audit committee from 1987 to 1989 and Board President of the New York
Bankers Association from 1982 to 1983. ‘Mr. Moyer currently serves as a board member or trustee of
several local not-for-profit and foundation Boards of Directors.

David F. Wilber, lll, age 60, has been a Director of the Bank since 1970 and of the Company since
1982.

Since 1982 Mr. Wilber has been a real estate investor and owns several residential and commercial
properties within and outside of the Company’'s primary market area. Mr. Wilber also served on the
Oneonta Town and Otsego County Planning Board and is a past commissioner of the New York State
Commission on Cable Television. Mr. Wilber also serves on the Boards of several local charitable
foundations. ‘




James F. VanDeusen, age 67, has been a Director of the Bank since 1977 and of the Company
since 1982. .

Mr. VanDeusen has served as President of Southern New York Claim Service in Oneonta, New York,
a company providing insurance adjustrment services since 1962, Mr. VanDeusen is a licensed general
insurance adjuster, a current member and past President of the New York State Association of independent

Adjusters. In addition, Mr. VanDeusen serves as the President of the Huntington Memorial Library Board of
Trustees, Oreonta, New York.

Philip J. Devine, age 68, has been a Director of the Bank since 1979 and of the Company since
1982. _

Mr. Devine has been_an attorney in private practice since 1965. In addition to his service to the
Company ard the Bank, Mr. Devine serves as a Director of Seeley’'s Ceramic Services, Inc., a small
manufacturing company, and Seward Sand and Gravel, Inc. Mr. Devine is also a Director of OTSAR Corp.,
the parent company of the local chapter of the NYSARC, Inc., a private not-for-profit agency providing care
services to those individuals with mental and other developmental disabilities.

Alfred S. Whittet, age 60, has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
the Bank since 1998. Mr. Whittet, who has been with the Bank since 1972, has held several positions
including President and Chief Operating Officer of the Bank from 1986 to 1998, Executive Vice President,
Secretary and Vice President. He has been a Director of the Bank since 1986 and of the Company since
December 1997.

Mr. Whittet has served in various capacities with the New York Bankers Association, including Board
member and past Chair of the association’s group creditors and employee trusts insurance committee. Mr.
Whittet is Chairman of the New York Business Development Corporation Regional Loan and Advisory
Committee. Mr. Whittetis a past Director and Chairman of the A.O. Fox Memorial Hospital in Oneonta, New
York and the Oneonta Family Y.M.C.A. He currently serves as Chairman of the Oneonta Family Y.M.C.A.
Board of Trustees and is on the Board of Directors of the A.O. Fox Memorial Hospital Foundation.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNAN IMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT THE SHAREHOLDERS VOTE
IN FAVOR OF THE FOREGOING SIX (6) NOMINEES.

Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors

The Board of Directors elects executive officers for one year terms and they serve at the pleasure of
the Board. Provided below is certain information regarding the executive officers of the Bank who are not
directors. Their ages are as of the Record Date.

Douglas C. Gulotty, age 41, has been employed at the Bank since 1985 and has held the position
of Executive Vice President of the Bank since 2000. Previously, Mr. Guiotty served as Senior Vice
President — Customer Delivery Division, Vice President - Retail and Commercial Loan Officer.

Mr. Gulotty is a board member of the New York Bankers Association Service Corp. He also serves
as a Trustee for Schenevus Central School, Schenevus, New York and as a Director of the Oneonta Family
Y.M.CA.




James M. Salisbury, age 62, has been employed with the Bank since 1978 and has been Vice
President and Cashier of the Bank since 1979 and Vice President and Treasurer of the Company since
1982.

Mr. Salisbury is a board member and Treasurer of the Oneonta Rotary Club, a Trustee for the
Village of Otego, New York and a board member of the United States regional selective service system. Mr.
Salisbury has alsc served as a board member and President for the Unatego School District, Otego, New
York and Hoosic Vailey Central School, Schaghticoke, New York. Mr. Salisbury is the past President of the
eastern New York Chapter of the Bank Administrative Institute.

Joseph E. Sutaris, age 36, has been employed with the Bank since 1995 and has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and the Bank since 2003, Senior Vice President of the Bank since 2000
and Secretary of the Company and the Bank since 1998. Previously, Mr. Sutaris served as Vice President
of Planning and Finance and as Planning and Finance Officer of the Bank.

Mr. Sutaris serves as a Director of the National Soccer Hall of Fame, Oneonta, New York and is the
past Chief Volunteer Officer of the Oneonta Family Y.M.C.A. Mr. Sutaris also serves on the Advisory Board
of Meridian Venture Partners Il, L.P., Radnor, Pennsylvania, a Small Business Investment Company, in
which the Bank is a limited partner. ‘ :

Meetings of the Board of Directors and Certain Committees

Our Board of Directors held 14 meetings in fiscal 2003. The Company’s Board of Directors has'an
Executive, Audit and Compensation Committee. All of the directors attended at least 75% of the meetings of
the Board of Directors and the commyttees on which they serve. The Board does not presently have a
standing nominating committee.

OurAudit Committee, which met twice in fiscal 2003, consists of directors Moyer (Chair), Wilber and
Devine, along with Olon T. Archer who, as Chairman of the Bank’s Audit Committee, serves as an ex-officio
and non-voting member. The committee functions on matters related to the accounting, bookkeeping and
auditing functions of the Company and the Bank and meets periodically with the Company's independent
auditors to arrange for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements and to review and evaluate
recommendations made during the annual audit. The Audit Committee also reviews, approves and
supervises the internal auditing procedures and reviews the regulatory examinations of the Bank.

Our Board of Directors has determined that Robert W. Moyer is an “audit committee financial
expert,” as that term is defined in Item 401(h) of Regulatuon S-K of the Security Act of 1933, and is
“independent” as defined by the American Stock Exchange® (“Amex®), the listing standard applicable to the
Company and standards under Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act.

Our Compensation Committee, which met once in fiscal 2003, consists of directors Devine, Moyer,
VanDeusen, Wilber and Wright (Chair). The committee functions on matters relating to salaries, incentive
compensation and related benefits for the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. The full Board
of Directors of the Bank, which includes all members of the Company’s Board of Directors except Mr.
Moyer, reviews salary policies and general salary administration for all officers, employees and directors of
the Bank.

Our Acting Nominating Committee. The Board of Directors does not presently have a standing
nominating committee. The Executive Committee of the Company's Board acts as a nominating committee
for the purpose of identifying, nominating and recruiting directors for election at the shareholders’ meeting.
This acting nominating committee, which met one time in fiscal 2003, is comprised of directors Wright
(Chair), Devine, Moyer, VanDeusen and Wilber. This committee identifies, nominates and recruits directors




for election at the shareholders’ meetings. This acting committee, which does not currently operate under a
charter, meets the independence requirement of the Amex.

The acting nominating committee (or any standing nominating committee which may hereafter be
established) will consider persons recommended by shareholders of record entitled to vote for the election
of directors if timely written notice of the intent to make a nomination at a meeting of shareholders is
received by the Company in accordance with its bylaws, policies and applicable law. A copy of the
Company's bylaws is available to all shareholders of record upon request. Shareholders who wish to
suggest qualified candidates should write to: The Wilber Corporation, Attention: Corporate Secretary, 245
Main Streei, P.O. Box 430, Oneonta, New York 13820. All recommendations should state, at minimum, the
information set forth in this Proxy Statement under the caption “Director Nominations by Shareholders.” The
information submitted should also describe the nommee s qualifications and an indication of the nominee’s
willingness to serve, if elected.

In furtherance of the Company's desire to effectively communicate with its shareholders, its Board of
Directors hias implemented a process for shareholders to send communications to the Board of Directors.
All communication: (i) must be in writing; (i) should indicate whether it is to be received by the entire Board
or to specified individual directors; and (jii) should clearly and concisely state the question or issue. The

correspondence should be mailed or delivered to the Secretary of the Company at the Company’s address
listed above.

Report of the Audit Committee

In fulfilment of the requirements of the SEC, for disclosure in proxy materials relating to the

functioning of audit committees, the Company’s Audit Committee has prepared the following report for
inclusion in this Proxy Statement.

The Audit Committee is governed by a Charter which specifies, among other things, the scope of its
responsibilities and how those responsibilities are to be performed. The Charter is reviewed on an annual
basis, and may be modified to reflect recent law changes and regulatory requirements under the Sarbanes-
Oxley Actof 2002. A copy of the Charter, as amended, is attached hereto as Attachment A. In accordance
with the rules of the Amex, the lisling standard applicable to the Company, the Audit Committee is
comprised of the requisite number of members who are “independent” as defined by that listing standard.

In the performance of its obligations required by the SEC, the Audit Commlttee has: (i) reviewed and
discussed the audited financial staternents with management; (ii) discussed with the independent auditors
the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as may be modified or
supplemented; (iii) received from the auditors disclosures regarding the auditors’ independence required by
Independence Standard No.1, as may be modified or supplemented, and has discussed with the auditors
the auditors’ independence; and (iv) considered the compatibility of non-audit services described below with
maintaining auditor independence.

Based on the above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Company's Board of Directors that
the audited financials be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003 for filing with the SEC.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Robert W. Moyer (Chair)
- Philip J. Devine
David F. Wilber, 1l
Olon T. Archer {ex-officio)




Independent Auditors’ Fees

Pre-approval Policies and Procedures. In accordance with rules adopted by the SEC to implement
requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "Act”) and the Audit Committee’s charter, all auditand
audit-related services and all permitted non-audit work performed by the independent auditors, KPMG LLP,
must be pre-approved by the Audit Committee, including the proposed fees for such work. The Audit
Committee has adopted policies and procedures pursuant to which audit, audit-related and tax services,
and all permissible non-audit services, are pre-approved, and is informed of each service actually rendered
that was approved through its pre-approval process. In addition, the Audit Committee has considered
whether the non-audit services described below, if any, are compatible with maintaining the independence
of the external auditors.

Audit and Non-Audit Fees. The table set forth below presents fees for professional audit and non-
audit services provided by the Company'’s principal external accounting firm, KPMG LLP, for the last two
fiscal years. Other miscellaneous audit fees paid to other professional audit firms are not included.

Type of Service Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Audit Fees (1) $ 153,840 $ 63,000
Audit Related Fees (2) : 7,900 0
Tax Fees (3) 38,965 34,555
All Other Fees (4) 0 0
Total $ 200,705 $ 97,555

(1) These fees include fees for the audit of the financial statements of the Company
(including out-of-pocket expenses) for the fiscal years indicated. The base year-end
audit fee increased from $63,000 in 2002 to $87,500 in 2003 to include a review of the
Company's SEC filings, including Form 10-K. In addition, during 2003 KPMG LLP
provided audit services related to the Company's filing of its SEC Form 10 registration
statement totaling $39,340, quarterly financial statement reviews totaling $22,500 and
other miscellaneous audit matters totaling $4,500.

{(2) During 2003, the Company paid these fees to KPMG LLP in connection with the
Company's SEC registration, listing on the Amex and other items.

(3) Tax fees consist of fees billed for services rendered for Federal and New York State tax
return preparation, tax advice, tax planning and other tax compliance services.

(4) All Other Fees consist of fees for services other than services reported above. There
were no Other Fees paid to KPMG LLP during 2003 and 2002.

COMPENSATION
Compensation of Directors

Director Fees. The Company maintains a Board of Directors comprised of six (6) members. The
Bank maintains a separate Board of Directors comprised of twelve (12) members. All of the Company’s
directors except Mr. Moyer serve on the Bank’s Board of Directors. Neither the Company nor Bank Board
members receive an annual retainer but receive fees for each Board or Committee meeting they attend.
Directors who are full time employees do not receive Board or Committee fees. In fiscal year 2003, non-
employee Company directors received $800 per meeting. Non-employee Bank directors currently receive
$600 per Board meeting and $200 for each Committee meeting. Company and Bank directors may defera
portion of their fees under a Deferred Compensation Plan established in 2001. Total director fees and other
compensation paid in fiscal 2003 to all directors of both the Company and the Bank amounted to $162,600.
in addition, each Bank Director receives $25,000 of term life insurance.




Deferred Fees Plan. A Deferred Fees Plan is available for directors of both the Company and the
Bank. This plan allows directors to elect to defer the receipt of their meeting fees to a future date. Deferred
fees are credited, together with interest accruing thereon, to a separate liability account. The funds in these
accounts are not segregated from the Bank’s general assets and participants have no rights against the
Bank for any portion of their accounts except as general unsecured creditors. Interestis credited annually at
arate equal to the interest rate for a 5-year $100,000 Certificate of Deposit in effect January 1 of each year.
The balance of any account is payable to the director, or to his designated beneficiaries, in a lump sum or
in sixty (60) monthly instaliments, at the: election of the director. Payments begin on a date specified by the
director or upon his termination as a director of the Bank, whichever is applicable. A total of four (4)
directors participated in the deferred fees plan in fiscal 2003.

Executive Officer Compensation

The following table includes information about total compensation and compensatory awards paid in
fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, to Mr. Whittet, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and the Bank and each of the three other executive officers whose salary and bonus exceeded $100,000 in
fiscal year 2003.

Summary Compensation Table:

Long-Term Compensation
Annual Compensation Awards Payouts
{a) {b) {c) d)_- {e) U] {g) (h) (i)
Name Other | Restricted | Securities
and Annual Stock Underlying LTIP All Other
Principal Salary Bonus | Compen:| Awards Options/ Payouts | Compen-
Position Year (%) ($) sation ($) ($) SARs (#) (%) sation ($)
Alfred S. Whittet 2003 232,212 | 60,000 - 0 0 0 140,746
President & Chief 2002 | 224721 | 45,000 - 0 0 0 125,666
Executive Officer 2001 | 212340 | 35000 | - 0 0 0 0
Douglas C. Gulotty 2003 144,647 | 32900 - 0 0 0 0
Executive Vice President 2002 137,164 27,000 - 0 0 0 0
of the Bank 2001 | 125202 | 22,950 ] 0 0 0 0
Joseph E. Sutaris 2003 | 102,707 | 13,201 - 0 0 0 0
Chief Financial Officer, 2002 99,444 10,573 - 0 0 0 0
Senior VP & Secretary | 5001 | 95742 | 6,101 . 0 0 0 0
James M. Salisbury 2003 101,784 12,524 - 0 4] 0 0
Vice Presidznt & 2002 98,57¢ 10,450 - 0 0 0 0
Treasurer 2001 | 96,665 | 8,308 - 0 0 0 0
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Notes to Summary Compensation Table (note references to columns):

(c) Salary is base salary, including amounts that are deferred under the Bank's deferred compensation plan and the
imputed value of life insurance benefits over $50,000.

(d) Bonuses include incentive payments made to executive officers for attaining certain performance measures. Mr.
Whittet's bonus is determined annually by the Company's Compensation Committee comprised of independent
directors. The remaining executive officers' bonuses are determined annually by the Chief Executive Officer based
upon performance measures approved by the Company's Board of Directors. All of the executive officers, at their
election, may defer all or a portion of their annual bonus into the Bank's executive officer deferred compensation
plan. The amounts presented include amounts deferred.

{e) None of the named executive officers received additional benefits or perquisites totaling more than 10% of his
salary and bonus.

(), (g), (h) The Company does not provide any long-term incentive plans for its executive officers.

(i) During 2002 the Bank's Board of Directors granted Mr. Whittet a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ("SERP")
benefit. The amount provided in column (i) represents the amount accrued during 2002 and 2003 for this benefit.
Additional details regarding the SERP are provided below.

Employment Agreements and Change in Control Agreements

The employment of Mr. Whittet is governed by an Employment Agreement with the Bank, which
became effective on January 1, 1998 and is for an indefinite term. Under the agreement, Mr. Whittet is paid
an annual base salary set by the Compensation Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Whittet is
entitied to receive an annual incentive bonus provided that performance objectives established by the Board
of Directors are satisfied. The agreement provides for certain other benefits, including participation in all
executive plans and arrangements and an automobile aliowance.

Mr. Whittet also entered into a Severance Compensation Agreement with the Company, which
became effective on January 1, 1998 and will terminate on April 21, 2005, Mr. Whittet's 62™ birthday.
Under the agreement, Mr. Whittet is entitled to receive a severance amount equal to three (3) times the
average of his aggregate annual compensation, in the event his employment is terminated following a
change in contro! of the Company or the Bank for reasons other than disability, retirement, or cause. The
aggregate annual compensation is determined by summing Mr. Whittet's federally taxable wages, deferred
salary and deferred bonuses for the three (3) year period prior to the change in control and dividing the sum
by three. Based on this formula, Mr. Whittet would have been entitled to a severance amount of $799,984 if
a change in control event had occurred on December 31, 2003.

Mr. Gulotty, Mr. Sutaris and Mr. Salisbury entered into Retention Bonus Agreements with the Bank,
which became effective on September 15, 1999 and will terminate on September 30, 2004, unless
otherwise extended under the terms of the agreement. The agreements provide Mr. Gulotty, Mr. Sutaris
and Mr. Salisbury with one-time lump sum bonus amounts, equal to 200%, 150% and 75%, respectively, of
their current annual salary, if they are employed in their current capacity in the event of a change in control
of the Company or the Bank. If a change in control had occurred on December 31, 2003, Mr. Gulotty would
have been entitled to a bonus amount of approximately $288,900; Mr. Sutaris, $153,825 and Mr. Salisbury,
$75,825.

In each of the foregoing agreements, “change in control” is generally defined to mean: (i) a
transaction where a consolidation or merger occurs of either the Company or the Bank and neither is the
surviving corporation; (ii) a transaction where the common shares of either the Company or the Bank are
exchanged for cash, securities or other property; (iii) a transaction involving the sale, lease or exchange of
all, or substantially all, of the assets of the Company or the Bank; (iv) a transaction where the shareholders




of the Company approve a plan of liquidation; or (v) a transaction where any person other than the
Company becomes the beneficial owner of 50% or more of the Bank’s outstanding stock.

Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans. The Bank has a non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan
through the New York State Bankers Retirement System. This plan covers all employees of the Bank age
21 years, and less than 65 years, with more than one year of service who complete 1,000 or more hours of
service during the year. Benefits are based on the number of years of service and salary at retirement. An
employee becomes fully vested in the plan after five years of service.

At fiscal year-end 2003, Mr. Whittet had 31 years of credit service; Mr. Gulotty, 18 years; Mr. Sutaﬁs,
8 years and Mr. Salisbury, 25 years.

The following table shows the estimated annual benefits payable at the individual’s normal retirement
age (65) under the pension plans of the Bank based on specific compensation and years of service
classifications.

Pension Pian Table:

Approximate Annual Retirement Benefit

Average Final : Years of Credited Service (1)

Cornpensation 10 15 20 25 30 35 40
$50,000 $ 7,844 $11,767 " 15689. 18,361 21,033 23,705 26,205
75,000 $12,844 $19,267 25,689 30,236 34,783 39,330 43,080
100,000 $17,844 $26,767 35,689 42,111 48,533 54,955 59,955

+ 125,000 $22,844 $34,267 45,689 53,986 62,283 /70,580 76,830
150,000 $27,844 $41,767 55,689 65,861 76,033 86,205 93,705
* 75,000 $32,844 $49,267 65,689 - 77,736 89,783 101,830 110,580
200,000 $37,844 $56,767 75,689 89,611 103,533 117,455 127,455
225,000 $37,844 $56,767 75,689 89,611 103,533 117,455 127,455
250,000 $37,844 $56,767 75,689 89,611 103,533 117,455 127,455
300,000 $37,844 $56,767 75,689 89,611 103,533 117,455 127,455
400,000 $37,844 $56,767 75,689 89,611 103,533 117,455 127,455

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ("SERP’). In December 2002, the Bank entered into
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreements with Mr. Whittet and Mr. Moyer. The SERP
agreements provide both Mr. Whittet and Mr. Moyer with supplemental retirement benefits in addition to
defined benefit pension plan benefits.

Mr. Whittet's agreement provides him with a $50,000 annual supplemental retirement benefit for life
if he maintains continuous employment with the Bank and retires on or after January 1, 2006. The vesting
schedule for Mr. Whittet's SERP benefit is as follows:




SERP Benefit Vesting Table:

Vested Annual

Date of Retirement Percentage Retirement Benefit
On or prior to December 31, 2003 25% $12,500
January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2004 50% $25,000
January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005 75% $37,500
On or after January 1, 2006 100% $50,000

In the event Mr. Whittet's employment is voluntarily or involuntarily terminated prior to January 1,
2006 due to a change in control/ownership, (as defined within the SERP agreement), Mr. Whittet will receive
$50,000 of benefits annually. If Mr. Whittet's employment is involuntarily terminated prior to retirement for
reasons other than cause, he will receive 84% of the fully vested benefit or $42,000 per year. The SERP
agreement with Mr. Whittet also provides a 50% survivor benefit for his spouse should he pre-decease her.
If Mr. Whittet dies prior to retirement, a benefit equal to $21,000 muitiplied by the vested percentage at the
time of death will be paid to his spouse annually until her death.

Mr. Moyer's agreement provides him with a $47,050 annual supplemental retirement benefit for life.
Mr. Moyer's SERP agreement was fully vested (100%) at inception. Mr. Moyer's SERP agreement provides
a 50% survivor benefit for his spouse should he pre-decease her.

Executive Officer Deferred Compensation Plan. The Executive Officers of the Company may elect
to defer a portion of their annual bonus under a Deferred Compensation Plan established in 1985 and
amended in 1999. Mr. Whittet may also defer a portion of his salary under the plan. The eligible securities
under the plan include: (i) U.S. Government debt obligations or (ii) equities and debt instruments, including
mutual funds, used as investments by the Trust Department of the Bank. Additionally, participants may
elect to index their deferred amounts to the financial performance of the Company’s common stock
(“phantom stock”). The benefit provided to the participants is the ability to defer payment of the elected
salary and bonus amounts for Federal and State income taxes purposes, as well as the ability to defer
payment of taxes on capital appreciation and income earned on the “phantom stock” or underlying
investments purchased for their account until time of withdrawal. The plan vests immediately and is not tied
to long-term performance goals. The Company does not provide a matching benefit for participants. The
participant’s account is not held by the Company in trust, escrow or similar fiduciary capacity. Accordingly,
neither the participant nor the participant's legal representative shalt have any right against the Company
with respect to any portion of the account, except as a general unsecured creditor. The participants may
withdraw funds upon the termination of their employment, retirement or in the event of financial hardship.
The participants may make withdrawals from their deferred compensation upon retirement or termination in
(i) 2 lump sum not later than 90-days after termination or (ii) in monthly installments for a designated number
of months not to exceed 60 months, or any combination of the foregoing options.

Split-Dollar Life Insurance Plan. The Company provides a split-dollar life insurance plan for its
senior officers. Currently, 15 senior officers of the Company and the Bank participate in the split-dollar life
insurance plan, including all of the executive officers listed in the Summary Compensation Pian table above.

Mr. Moyer, retired Chief Executive Officer and current Vice Chairman of the Company, also participates in
the plan due to his previous employment with the Company. The plan provides each participant a life
insurance benefit during his or her employment with the Bank, a post-retirement benefit, as well as other
benefits in the event of disability, change of control, resignation and termination. Eligibility is determined at
the sole discretion of the Company’s Compensation Committee. The vested benefits are different for
participants with less than five years of continuous service as a senior officer, as compared to participants
with five or more years of continuous service as a senior officer. All of the Executive Officers listed in the
summary compensation table above have five or more years of continuous service as a senior officer of the
Company.

During employment, the split-dollar life insurance plan provides each participant's named beneficiary

with a fully-vested death benefit equaling four (4) times the participant’s most recent base salary (the same
benefit as provided to the Bank's eligible full-time employees under the group term life insurance plan).
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Mr. Moyer's and Mr. Whittet's agreements are subject to a maximum death benefit of $700,000. The
remaining participants are subject to a maximum death benefit of $500,000.

Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation

Overview and Philosophy. The Board of Directors of the Company has established a Compensation
Committee, which determines the annual compensation of the Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation
Committee also structures and monitors all contracts with executive officers, which include employment-
related agrzements with Messrs. Whittet, Gulotty, Sutaris and Salisbury.

The Compensation Committee gathers comparative compensation data from independent sources,
including the Independent Bankers Association of New York and the Webber Survey, and has attempted to
develop a strategy which links pay to performance. The objectives of the Company's executive

‘compensation program are to:

« Support the achievement of desired goals of the Company.

« Provide compensation that will attract and retain superior talent and reward performance.

» Align the Chief Executive Officer's interests with those of shareholders by placing a significant
portion of pay at risk with pavout dependent upon corporate performance, both on a short-term
and long-term basis.

Compensation Matters in 2003. During 2003 the Compensation Committee increased the level of
base salary of the Chief Executive Officer. The increase in base salary was based upon an analysis of

compensation levels for management performing similar functions at other banking companies of similar
size and operations.

An annual cash bonus was paid to the Chief Executive Officer for the year 2003, based upon the
Compensation Committee's qualitative assessment of the individual's performance and that of the
Company, rather than any discrete performance measures.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation Program. The Company's Chief Executive Officer
compensation program is comprised of base salary, annual cash incentive compensation, and various
benefits, such as the SERP and his employment-related agreements. The base salary level for the
Company's Chief Executive Officer is set relative to companies in the banking industry of similar size and
complexity of operations, as described above. In determining the base salary, the Compensation
Committee zlso takes into accountindividual experience and performance, the Company's performance and
specific issues particular to the Company. The Company also provides direct financial incentives to achieve
the Company's annual goals in the form of an annual cash bonus.

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Brian R. Wright
David F. Wilber il
James F. VanDeusen
Philip J. Devine
Robert W. Moyer

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in Compensation Decisions. The
Compensation Committee of the Company consists of directors Wright, Wilber, VanDeusen, Devine and
Moyer. None of these individuals is or has been an officer of the Company or the Bank, except for Mr.
Moyer, who dlid not participate in the Committee’s deliberations on Mr. Whittet's 2003 compensation.

Transactions with Directors and Officers. Directors and executive officers of the Company gnq the_ir
associates were customers of, or had transactions with, the Company or the Bank or other sub5|dlar]es in
the ordinary course of business during 2003. Additional transactions may be expected to take place in the
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future. All outstanding loans to directors and executive officers and their associates, commitments and
sales, purchases and placements of investment securities and other financial instruments included in such
transactions were made in the ordinary course of business, on substantially the same terms, including
interest rates and collateral where applicable, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions
with other persons, and did not involve more than normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable
features.

Brian R. Wright, who is the chairman of the Board of Directors, is serving as Speciail Counsel to the
law firm of Hinman, Howard & Kattell, LLP. During fiscal 2003, the Bank made payments to this firm for
legal services in the amount of $143,001.

Each of these transactions and relationships was entered into on an arm's length basis.

Management of the Company believes that all amounts paid by the Company or the Bank in those
transactions have been at competitive rates or prices.
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SHAREHOL.DER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Shareholder Return Performance Graph. The following line graph presentation compares the five-
year cumulative total shareholder return on the Company's common stock against the cumulative total
return of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index and the Standard and Poor’s Financial Index. The graph
assumes that $100 was invested on January 1, 1999 and includes both price change and reinvestment of
cash dividends. Graph points are as of December 31 of each year. During the periods presented the
common stock of The Wilber Corporation was inactively traded on Nasdaq’s Over-the-Counter Bulletin
Board market. The cumulative return provided for The Wilber Corporation Stock was calculated using the
December 31* closing prices for the common stock as reported on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board
Market.

Shareholder Return Stock Performance Chart
$-Year Cumulative Total Return
Comparison - S&P 500, S&P Financial, Wilber Corp.

$150
$130
$110
$90
$70 — — — .
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
| | Years |

-4~ S&P 500 i~ S&P Financial =#=Wilber Corp.

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 . 2003
S8P500 - $100 $121 $112 $100 . $78 $107
S&P Financial $100 $104 $129 $121 $105-  $136
Wilber Corp. .. $100 $86 $76 $79  $112 $145

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportiﬁg Compiiance

The Company became a reporling company with the SEC in February, 2004. Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act requires the Company’s directors, executive officers (and one executive officer of the Bank),
and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of any class of the Company’s equity securities to file with
the SEC, initial reports of ownership within ten days after the reporting event, and reports of changes in
ownership of the Company’s common stock generally by the second business day following the transaction.
There were no reports required to be furnished to the SEC during fiscal year 2003 under Section 16(a).
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PROPOSAL ill. RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Company'’s Board of Directors appointed KPMG LLP as independent auditors to-audit the books
of the Company and the Bank for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004, subject to ratification by the
shareholders at the meeting. KPMG LLP has been regularly employed by the Bank for the last five years.

A representative of KPMG LLP is expected to be present at the meeting and will have an opportunity
to make a statement if he or she wishes to do so. We also expect that the representative will be available to
answer appropriate questions from shareholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" THE
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS.

OTHER BUSINESS

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Board of Directors does not know of any matter other
than as indicated above that will come before the meeting. In the event that any other matter properly
comes before the meeting, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy will have discretionary
authority to vote all proxies in accordance with their best judgment on such matters.

GENERAL
We are distributing our Annual Report for fiscal year 2003 with this Proxy Statement to shareholders
of record on the Record Date. The Annual Report is not part of the proxy solicitation material.

If you submit a properly completed proxy sheet to the Company on the form distributed with this
Proxy Statement, it will be voted if received before the voting is closed at the meeting. The proxy will be
voted in the manner directed on the proxy sheet. If the proxy sheet is signed and returned but no directions
are given, the proxy will be voted "FOR" the fixing of the number of directors at six (6), all the director
nominees, and the ratification of the appointment of the independent auditors.

The cost of this Proxy Statement and the related proxy solicitation will be borne by the Company. In
addition, directors, officers and regular employees of the Company may solicit proxies personally, by
telephone or by other means without additional compensation. The Company will, upon the request of
brokers, dealers, banks and voting trustees, and their nominees, who were holders of record of shares of
the Company’s capital stock or participants in depositories on the Record Date, bear their reasonable
expenses for mailing copies of this Proxy Statement and accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting and the
form of proxy sheet to the beneficial owners of such shares.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS AT THE ANNUAL MEETING IN THE YEAR 2005

The Company's Board of Directors will establish the date for the 2005 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. In order for a shareholder to be entitied, under the regulations of the SEC, to have a
shareholder proposal included in the Company's Proxy Statement for the 2005 meeting, the proposal must
be received by the Company at its principal executive offices, 245 Main Street, P.O. Box 430, Oneonta, New
York, Attention: Joseph E. Sutaris, Corporate Secretary, at least 120 days in advance of the date in the year
2005 which corresponds to the date in the year 2004 when we first release this Proxy Statement to
shareholders. The shareholder must also satisfy the other requirements of SEC Rule 14a-8. Note that this
filing requirement is separate from the notice requirements described in this Proxy Statement regarding the
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advance notice that is required before a shareholder is permitted to offer a proposal for a vote at any
shareholders’ meeting.

if additional copies of the 2003 Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K are needed,
please send a written request to Joseph E. Sutaris, Corporate Secretary, at our address stated

above. It may also be obtained through the Bank’s website at www.wilberbank.com. The Form 10-K
report is not a part of the proxy solicitation materials.

PLEASE SIGMN, DATE AND MAIL YOUR PROXY NOW.

By Order of the Board of Directors

h & Sdoo

Joseph E. Sutaris
Secretary

Oneonta, New York
March 26, 2004
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Attachment A

THE WILBER CORPORATION
(including Wilber National Bank and subsidiaries)
Board of Directors

Audit Committee Charter

. PURPOSE AND OVERALL RESPONSIBILITIES

The primary purpose of the Audit Committee (the "Committee") of the Board of Directors (the
"Board") of The Wilber Corporation (the "Company") is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities by reviewing: (i) the periodic financial reports and other financial information provided by the
Company to regulatory or governmental bodies, including the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC")
or to the public; (i) the Company's system of internal controls that management and the Board have
established; and (iii) the Company's auditing, accounting and financial reporting processes (both internal
and external) generally. In addition, the Committee provides an avenue for communication between internal
audit, the Company's independent auditors, financial management, and the Board. The Committee should
have a clear understanding with the independent auditors that they must maintain an open and transparent
relationship with the Committee, and that the ultimate accountability of the independent auditors is to the
Board and the Committee, as representatives of the Company's shareholders. The Committee will make
regular reports to the Board concerning its activities. Consistent with this function, the Committee should
encourage continuous improvement of, and should foster adherence to, the Company's policies, procedures
and practices at all levels.

While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the duty of
the Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Company's financial statements are
complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies. This is the
responsibility of management and the independent auditors.

The Committee shall operate pursuant to a written charter setting forth its duties and responsibilities
and this Charter shall be reviewed for adequacy, modified as necessary, and approved by the full Board of
Directors annually. The Committee shall assess the effectiveness of the Charter periodically and include it
as an appendix to its annual proxy statement at least once every three years in accordance with SEC rules.

. COMPOSITION AND BACKGROUND

The size of the Committee shall be appropriate to the organization but no less than three nor more
than seven outside directors.

The Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, and be composed of
outside directors who are able to read and understand fundamental financial statements, including the
Company's balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement (i.e., be financially literate). Atleast
one member shall be an "audit committee financial expert” as such term is defined by applicable rules of the
SEC and the American Stock Exchange ("AMEX"), the listing standard applicable to the Company.
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Each member of the Committee shall satisfy the applicable independence requirements for serving
on the Committee as set forth in the applicable AMEX rules and in the rules adopted by the SEC pursuant to
Section 30 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "SOX Act"), as codified in Section 10A(m)(3) of the
Securities Eixchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Further, no member of the Committee
shall concurrently serve in the control, oversight, or management of fiduciary activities of the subsidiary or
receive any compensation for services provided to the Bank, excluding director fees that would interfere with
his or her independence.

The members of the Committee shall be provided sufficient background information and training to
effectively meet their responsibilities:

. MEETINGS

The Committee shall meet at least quarterly, or more frequently as it may deem necessary. Meeting
agenda and supporting materials shall be distributed in advance whenever possible to allow members to
appropriately prepare for committee meetings. The Committee shall report its activities at least quarterly to
the full Board.

IV. SPECIFIC DUTIES

In carrying out its functions:

1. The Committee shall review with management the Company's process of assessing the risk of
materially misstating the financial statements, intentionally or unintentionally.

2. The Committee shall be responsible for appointing, evaluating, retaining and, when necessary,
terminating and replacing the independent auditors.

3. The Committee shall review and concur in the appointment, performance evaluation,
cornpensation, replacement, eind reassignment or dismissal of the director of intemal auditing. It
shall also approve the compensation, and provide oversight, of the internal auditors.

4. The Committee shall review and evaluate the lead partner of the independent auditors' team. To
the extent required by law, the Committee shall ensure the rotation of the lead (or coordinating)
audit partner having primary responsibility for the audit, the audit partner responsible for
reviewing the audit and other members of the audit engagement team.

5. The Committee shall pre-approve all auditing services and permitted non-audit services
(including the fees and terms thereof) to be performed for the Company by its independent
auditor, subject to the de mirimum exceptions for non-audit services described in Section
10(A)(i)(1)(B) of the Exchange Act which are approved by the Committee prior to the completion
of the audit. Al ‘audit and ncn-audit services provided by the independent auditor shall be
disclosed in the annual proxy statement. Pre-approval of all auditing services and permitted non-
audit services shall be in accordance with the Committee’s pre-approval policy, as may be
amended or modified from tire to time by the Committee.

6. The Committee shall periodically review the fees and evaluate the qualifications and performance
of the independent auditor with management, including any potential conflicts of interest that may
exist between the Company and the independent auditor. The Committee is charged with
resolving disagreements betwzen management and the outside auditor regarding financial
reporting. The Committee shall also be apprised of the extent other independent accounting
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

firms are used and understand the rationale for using them. The Committee shall review the
tasks assigned to the independent auditors, including relationships with the Company, to ensure
the independence of the auditor is protected. The Committee shall obtain from the outside
auditor a formal written statement consistent with Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1
disclosing all of its relationships with, and services provided to, the Company or its affiliates. The
Committee will discuss such relationships with the independent auditor and take all appropriate
actions when necessary.

. The Committee shall review with both the internal auditor and the independent auditors their

scope of audit, risk assessment methods, ability to detect fraud or weaknesses in control, and
their evaluation of the Company's internal control systems. The Committee shall review and
approve the internal audit plan and subsequent changes to the plan. The Committee shall review
the internal audit staffing quality and budget to satisfy itself that internal auditing is adequate to
support the internal audit function. The Committee shall ascertain whether the independent
auditor and the internal audit function are efficiently coordinating and are performing their audit
and risk management duties in accordance with the standards of professional practice.

. The Committee shall make inquiries and receive information from the independent auditor

regarding appropriateness of accounting principles followed by the Company, changes in
accounting principles and the reason for changes not mandated by the appropriate requlator and
the impact of such changes on the financial statements.

. The Committee shall inquire and receive from management, the independent auditor and the

internal audit department periodic reports of any significant accounting issues and how they were
resolved.

As required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Committee shall review deficiencies, if any,
identified by management in the design and operation of internal controls which may be referred
to in the certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

The Committee shall be advised whenever management seeks a second opinion on a significant
accounting issue within 90 days of such action.

The Committee shall obtain full information from management about any significant accruals,
reserves or charges against reserves that would have a material impact on the financial
statements.

The Committee shall have a predetermined arrangement with the independent auditor that they
will advise the Committee, through its Chair and management of the Company, of any matters
identified through procedures followed for interim quarterly financial statements, and that such
notification as required under standards for communication with audit committees is to be made
prior to the related press release or, if not practicable, prior to filing the related Form 10-Q.

At the completion of the annual audit, review the following with management and the independent
auditor:

+ The annual financial statements, related notes, and financial information and
management's discussion and analysis to be included in the Company's annual
report to shareholders on Form 10-K.

» The annual financial statements, related notes, and financial information and
management's discussion and analysis to be included in the Company'’s annual
report to shareholders on Form 10-K.




15.

16.

17.

» Results of the audit of the financial statements and the related notes thereon
and, if material, changes during the year in accounting principles and their
application. ' .

» Significant changes to the audit plan, if any, and any serious disputes or
difficulties with management encountered during the audit; inquire about the
cooperation of management received by the independent auditors during their
audit, including access to all requested records, data, and information; inquire of
the independent auditors whether there have been any disagreements with
management, which, if not satisfactorily resolved, would have caused them to
issue a nonstandard report on the Company's financial statements.

» Prior to filing the Company's annual report with the SEC, review with the
independent auditor: (i) critical accounting and financial reporting policies and
practices used by the Company; (ii) altemative treatments of financial information
as permitted by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") that have
been discussed with the management of the Company, including the
ramifications of such alternative treatments and the proper disciosure thereof, as
well as any treatment of such financial information that may have been preferred
by the independent auditors; and (jii) other material communications between the
independent auditors and management.

o Other communications as required to be communicated by the independent
auditors by Statement of Auditing Standards ("SAS") 61 as amended by SAS 90
relating to the conduct of the audit. Further, receive communication provided by
the independent auditors concerning their judgment about the quality of the
Company's accounting principles, as outlined in SAS 61 as amended by SAS 90,
and that they concur with management'’s representation concerning uncorrected
audit adjustments.

« Provide a report in the Company's annual proxy statement that includes the
Committee's review and discussion of matters with management and the
independent auditors.

The Committee shall establish and follow procedures for the receipt and handling of complaints
received from customers, shareholders, employees, and other individuals regarding accounting,
internal accounting controf and auditing matters. The procedures, which may be amended from
time to time, are included as Appendix A hereto.

The general policy of the Company is not to hire employees or former employees of the
independent auditors who participated in any capacity in the audit of the Company in the prior two
fiscal years, if such hiring would negatively impact the independence of the independent auditors.
Any hiring of an employee or former employee of the Company's independent auditors who
participated in any capacity in the audit of the Company in the prior two fiscal years will be
required to be approved by the Audit Committee, and will be handled in accordance with the
limitations set forth by the applicable laws and regulations.

The Committee shall be permitted to engage independent general or outside counsel and other
advisors and to meet with them when appropriate to discuss legal issues that may have a
significant impact on the financial statements.
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18. The Committee shall meet privately with the independent auditor and the director of internal
auditing to preserve its and their independence. The Committee shall instruct both the
independent auditor and the director of internal auditing to report any areas that require special
attention.

19. The Committee shall encourage the CEO's and senior managemeht's active participation in
committee meetings with the exclusion of executive sessions. The Committee shall meet
privately at least annually with the CEO and senior management.

20. The Committee shall perform any other activities consistent with this Charter, the Company’s
Bylaws and governing law, as the Committee or the Board of Directors may deem necessary or
appropriate.




Appendix A

CONCERNS REGARDING AUDITING OR ACCOUNTING MATTERS

Employee Concerns

As required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, employees of a corporation with publicly traded
stock must be able to voice concerns regarding the auditing or accounting matters of the company. If an
employee observes material irregularities or misstatements in the Wilber Corporation and its affiliate's
financial accounting or auditing process, a confidential anonymous claim should be filed with the
Chairperson of the Board of Directors' Audit Committee. A sealed envelope addressed to the Chairperson
of the Audit Committee may be delivered to:

Mr. Olon T. Archer

Chairman, Audit and Risk Management Committee — Wilber National Bank
c/o Archer Enterprises Inc.

P.O.Box 775

Oneonta, NY 13820

or

Mr. Robert W. Moyer ‘ _
Chairman, Audit Committee — The Wilber Corporation
c/o 133 Balford Drive

Oneonta, NY 13820

or

the Bank's Internal Audit Department or Compliance Officer. The sealed envelope will be delivered intact to
the Chairman for evaluation.

Public Concerns

Employees must be aware of complaints received from customers, shareholders and other
individuals regarding material accounting, internal accounting controis and auditing matters of The Wilber
Corporation and its affiliates. Complaints may be received in person or in writing. Itis extremely important
that a complaint of this nature be immediately brought to the attention of the Chairman of the Directors’
Audit Committee. Accept written concerns and complaints and immediately forward to the Internal Audit
Department cr Compliance Officer for delivery to the Chairman. Verbal complaints should be committed to
writing either by the complainant or the employee and delivered as previously instructed to the Chairman of
the Audit Cormmittee.

Anonymous complaints from employees will be handled in the same manner, however, no response

will be sent. Instead, a file will be maintained by the Internal Audit Department for the purpose of
documenting resolution to each complaint. The file will be made available for employee review.
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UNITED STATES .
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

[ X]ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SIZCTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1834
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003

Cornmission file number: 001-31896

The Wilber Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

New York 15-6018501
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
245 Main Street, P.O. Box 430, Oneconta, NY 13820
(Addrass of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: 607-432-1700
Securities registered pursuant to 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class to be registered B Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock American Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d} of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes [ 1No[X]

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy
or information statements incorporated by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.
(X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2).
Yes{ ] No[X]

Based upon the closing price of the registrant's common stock as of June 30, 2003, the aggregate value of the voting
stock, common stock, $0.01 par value per share held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $75.4 million. Although
Directors and Executive Officers of the registrant were assumed to be “affiliates” for the purposes of this calculation,
the classification is not to be interpreted as an admission of such status. There were no classes of non-voting
common stock authorized on June 30, 2003.

The number of shares of common stock outstanding on March 12, 2004 was 11,209,392.
Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the registrant's definitive Proxy Statement for the Registrant’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held
on April 24, 2004 are incorporated by reference.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When we use words or phrases like "will probably result,” "we expect,” "will continue," "we anticipate," "estimate,”
"project,” "shouid cause,” or similar expressions in this annual report or in any press releases, public announcements,
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or other disclosures, we are making "forward-looking
statements" as described in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, certain information we
provide, such as analysis of the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses or an analysis of the interest rate sensitivity of
our assets and liabilities, is always based on predictions of the future. From time to time, we may also publish other
forward-looking statements about anticipated financial performance, business prospects, and similar matters.

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements. We want you
to know that a variety of future events and uncertainties could cause our actual results and experience to differ materially
from what we anticipate when we make our forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause future results to vary
from current management expectations include, but are not limited to, general economic conditions, legislative and
regulatory changes, monetary fiscal policies of the federal government, changes in tax policies, rates and regulations of
federal, state and local tax authorities, changes in consumer preferences, changes in interest rates, deposit flows, cost of
funds, demand for loan products, demand for financial services, competition, changes in the quality or composition of the
Company's loan and investment portfolios, changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines and other economic,
competitive, governmental and technological factors affecting the Company’s operations, markets, products services and
fees.

Please do not rely unduly on any forward-looking statements, which are valid only as of the date made. Many factors,
including those described above, could affect our financial performance and could cause our actual results or
circumstances for future periods to differ materially from what we anticipate or project. We have no obligation to update
any forward-looking statements to reflect future events which occur after the statements are made, and we specifically
disclaim such obligation. ’
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PART |
ITEM 1: BUSINESS
A. General

The Wilber Corporation (the “Company”), @ New York corporation, was originally incorporated in 1928. The Company
held and disposed of various real estate assets until 1974. In 1974, the Company and its real estate assets were sold to
Wilber National Bank (the “Bank”™), a nationally chartered bank established in 1874. The Company's real estate assets
were used to expand the banking house of Wilber National Bank. The Company was an inactive subsidiary of the Bank
until 1982. In 1933, under a plan of reorganization, the Company was re-capitalized, acquired 100% of the voting stock of
the Bank, and registered as a bank holding company within the meaning of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956
("BHCA"). - ‘

The business of the Company consists primarily of the ownership, supervision and control of its sole bank subsidiary,
Wilber National Bank. The Company, through the Bank and the Bank's subsidiaries (collectively “we” or “our”), offers a
full range of commercial and consumer financial products including business, municipal, mortgage and consumer loans,
deposits, trust and investment services, and insurance. We serve our customers through nineteen (19) full service branch
banking offices located in Otsego, Delaware, Schoharie, Chenango, Ulster, and Broome counties, New York, an ATM
network, and electronic / Internet banking services. In addition, we operate an insurance sales office located in Walton,
New York {Delaware County) and a representative loan production banking office in Kingston, New York (Ulster County).
The Bank's Main Office is located at 245 Main Street, Oneonta, New York 13820 (Otsego County). We employed 219
full-time equivalent employees at December 31, 2003. Our website address is www.wilberbank.com.

The Bank's subsidiaries include Wilber REIT; Inc., Western Catskill Realty, LLC and Mang-Wilber, LLC. Wilber REIT,
Inc. is wholly - owned by the Bank and primarily holds mortgage related assets. Western Catskill Realty, LLC is a wholly -
owned real estate holding company, which primarily holds foreclosed real estate. Mang—Wilber, LLC is the Bank's
insurance agency subsidiary, which is operated under a joint venture arrangement with a regional insurance agency. At
December 31, 2003, the -Bank owned a 70.8% membership interest in Mang-Wilber, LLC. .

Our principal business is to act as a financial intermediary in the communities we serve by obtaining funds through -
customer deposits and institutional borrowings, lending the proceeds of those funds to our customers, and investing
excess funds in debt securities and short-term liquid investments. Our funding base consists of deposits derived
principally from the central New York communities which we serve. To a lesser extent, we borrow funds from institutional
sources, principelly the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (hereinafter referred to as “FHLBNY”). We target our
lending activities to consumers and municipalities in the immediate geographic areas and to small and mid-sized
businesses in the immediate geographic areas and broader statewide region. Our investment activities primarily consist
of purchases of high-quality U.S. Treasury, 1J.3. Government Agency (“GinnieMae”), U.S. Government Sponsored Entities
(“FannieMae” and “FreddieMac”), municipal, mortgage-backed and high quality corporate debt instruments. Through our
Trust and Investment Division, we provide personal trust, agency, estate administration and retirement planning services
for individuals, as well as, custodial and investment management services to institutions. We atso offer stocks, bonds and
mutual funds through a third party broker-dealer firm. Through our joint venture insurance subsidiary, Mang-Wilber, LLC,
we offer a full line: of life, health and property and casualty insurance products.

B. Market Area

We primarily operate in the smali town and rural markets to the North and West of the Catskill Mountains in central New
York. The regional economy is driven by small not-for-profit businesses; farming; hospitals; small, independently owned
retailers, restaurants and motels; light manufacturing; several small colleges; and tourism. The National Baseball Hall of
Fame (Cooperstown, New York), the National Soccer Hall of Fame (Oneonta, New York), and outdoor recreation such as
camping, hunting, fishing, and skiing bring seasonal activity to several communities within our market area. The Bank’s
Main Office in Oneonta, New York is approximately 70 miles southwest of Albany, New York, the state’s capital, and 180
miles northwest of New York City.

Our primary market area consists of four rural counties in central New York, namely Otsego, Delaware, Schobarie and
Chenango counties. The estimated population of our four county primary market area is 192,000. Between the 1990 and
2000 U.S. Government census, the area population increased by less than 1%. Approximately 15.9% of the individuals
that reside in our four county primary market area are over the age of 65, as compared to a national average of 12.4%. In
1999 (the latest available statistics) the per capita income for the four county region was approximately $17,000. This is
approximately 80% of the United States national average for 1999 of $21,181 and 73% of the New York State average of
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$23,389 for the same period. Private non-farm employment increased by less than 1% between 1990 and 1999 from
47,604 jobs in 1990 to 47,979 jobs in 1999. Management believes the demographic profile of the primary market area in
which we operate had not materially changed through 2003.

We also operate one full service branch office in Ulster County, New York. Although the demographic profile of that
county differs from our primary four-county market, the town in which we operate our branch is similar to our primary
market. The full service branch located in Johnson City, New York (Broome County) and the loan production office
located in Kingston, New York (Ulster County) operate in more densely populated markets.

C. Lending Activities

General. The Company, through its subsidiary bank, engages in a wide range of lending activities, including commercial
fending primarily to small and mid-sized businesses; mortgage lending for 1-4 family and multi-family properties including
home equity loans; mortgage lending for commercial properties; consumer installment and automobile lending and to a
lesser extent agricultural lending.

Over the last several decades we have designed and implemented lending strategies and policies that are designed to
provide flexibility to meet customer needs, while minimizing losses associated with borrowers’ inability or unwillingness to
repay loans. The loan portfolio, in general, is fully collateralized, and many commercial loans are further secured by
personal guarantees. We do not commonly grant unsecured loans to our customers. Annually, we utilize the services of
an outside consultant to conduct on-site reviews of the larger, more complex commercial real estate and commercial loan
portfolios to ensure adherence to underwriting standards and loan policy guidelines.

We periodically participate in loan participations with other banks or financial institutions both as an originator and as a
participant. A participation loan is generally formed when the aggregate size of a single loan exceeds the originating
bank’s regulatory maximum loan size or a self-imposed loan limit. We typically make participation foans for commercial or
commercial real estate purposes. Although we do not always maintain direct contact with the borrower, credit
underwriting procedures and credit monitoring practices associated with participation loans are identical in all material
respects to those practices and procedures followed for loans that we originate, service and hold for our own account.
We typically buy participation loans from other commercial banks operating within New York State with whose
management we are familiar. Our total participation loans represent less than 10% of the total loans outstandlng and are
comprised of less than 20 borrowers.

If deemed appropriate for the borrower and for the Bank, we place certain loans in Federal, State or Lacal Government
agency or government sponsored loan programs. These placements often help reduce our exposure to credit losses and
often provide our borrowers with lower interest rates on their loans.

a. Loan Products and Services

Residential Real Estate. Historically, we hold for our own loan portfolio the majority of the residential real estate loans we
originate. The terms are typically 15 — 30 years and are usually secured by a first lien position on the home of the
borrower. We offer both adjustable rate and fixed rate loans and provide monthly and bi-weekiy payment options. The
1-4 family residential loan portfolio primarily consists of owner-occupied, primary residence properties and to a lesser
extent rental properties for off-campus student housing, which surround each of the local colleges. Our property appraisal
process, debt-to-income limits for borrowers, and established loan-to-value limits dictate our residential real estate lending
practices. During 2002, we established a broker relationship with Sun Trust Mortgage Corporation in order to be more
competitive in the interest-rate sensitive 15 to 30-year fixed rate residential mortgage market.

Our home equity loans are typically granted as adjustable rate lines of credit. The interest rate on the line of credlt adjusts
twice per year and is tied to the Wall Street Journal Prime loan rate. The loan terms generally include a 2" lien position
on the borrower's residence and a 10-year interest only repayment period. At the end of a 10-year term, the home equity
line of credit is either renewed by the borrower or placed on a scheduled principal and interest payment pian by the Bank.

Commercial Real Estate. We originate commercial real estate loans to finance the purchase of developed real estate. To
a lesser extent, we will also provide financing for the construction of commercial real estate. Our commercial real estate
loans are typically larger than those made for residential real estate. The loans are often secured by properties whose
tenants include “Main Street” type small businesses, retailers and motels. We also finance properties for commercial
office and owner-occupied manufacturing space. Our commercial real estate loans are usually limited to a maximum
repayment period of 20 years. Most of our commercial real estate loans are fully collateralized and further secured by the
personal guarantees of the property owners. Construction loans are generally granted as a line of credit whose term does
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not exceed 12 months. We typically advance funds on construction loans based upon an advance schedule, to which the
borrower agrees, and physical inspection of the premises.

Commercial Loans. In addition to commercial real estate loans, we also make various types of commercial loans to
qualified borrowers, including business installment and term loans, lines-of-credit, demand loans, time notes, automobile
dealer floor-plan financing, and accounts receivable financing.

Business installment and term loans are typically provided to borrowers for long term working capital or to finance the
purchase of a piece of equipment, truck or automobile utilized in their business. We generally limit the term of the

borrowing to a period shorter than the estimated useful life of the equipment being purchased. We also ptace a lien on
the equipment being financed by the borrower.

Lines-of-credit are typically provided to meet the short-term working capital needs of the borrowers for inventory and other
seasonal aspects of their business. We also offer a “cash management” line of credit that is tied to a borrower’s primary
demand deposit operating account. Each day, on an automated basis, the borrower’s line of credit is paid down with the.
excess operating funds available in the primary operating account. Upon complete repayment of the line-of-credit, excess

operating funds are invested in securities on a short-term basis, usually overnight, through a securities repurchase
agreement with the Bank. :

Demand loans and time notes are often granted to borrowers to provide short term or “bridge” financing for special orders,

contracts or projects. These loans are often secured with a lien on business assets, liquid collateral and / or personal
guarantees. ~

Cn a limited tasis we also provide inventory financing or “floor plans” for automobile dealers. Floor plan lines of credit
create unique risks that require close oversight by the Bank and its lending personnel. Accordingly, we have developed
special procedures for floor plan lines of credit to assure the borrower maintains sufficient inventory collateral at all times.

In 1997 we began offering accounts receivable financing to qualified borrowers through affiliation with a third party vendor
specializing in this type of financing. The program allows business customers to borrow funds from the Bank by assigning

their accounts receivable to the Bank for billing and collection. The program is supported by limited fraud and credit
insurance.

Commercial loans and commercial real estate loans generally involve a higher degree of risk and are more complex than
residential mortgages and consumer loans. Such loans typically involve large loan balances to single borrowers or
groups of related borrowers. Commercial loan repayment and interest terms are often established to meet the unique
needs of the borrower and the characteristics of his business. Typically payments on commercial real estate are
dependent upon leases whose terms are shorter than the borrower's repayment period. This places significant reliance
upon the owner's successful operation and rmanagement of the property. Accordingly, the borrower and we must be
aware of the risks that affect the underlying business including, but not limited to, economic conditions, competition,
product obsolescence, inventory cycles, seasonality and the business owner’s experience-and expertise.

Standby Letters of Credit. We offer stand-by letters of credit for our business customers. Stand-by letters of credit are not
loans. They are guarantees to pay other creditors of the customer should the customer fail to meet certain payment
obligations required by the third party creditor. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private
borrowing arrangements, including bond financing and similar transactions. The issuance of a stand-by letter of credit
creates a contingent liability for the Bank. Accordingly, a stand-by letter of credit will only be issued upon. completing our
credit review process. We charge our customers a fee for providing this service, which is based on the principal amount
of the stand-by letter of credit.

Consumer Loans. We offer a variety of consumer loans to our customers. These loans are usually provided to purchase
a new or used automobile, motorcycle or recreational vehicle or to make a home improvement. We also make personal
loans to finance the purchase of consumer durables or other needs of our customers. The consumer loans are generally
offered for a shorter term than residential mortgages because the collateral typically has an estimated usefut life of 5 to 10
years and tends to depreciate rapidly. Automobile loans comprise the fargest portion of our consumer loan porifolio. The
financial terms of our automobile loans are determined by the age and condition of the vehicle and the ability of the
borrower to make scheduled principal and interest payments on the loan. We obtain a lien on the vehicie and collisiqn
insurance policies ara required on these loans. Although we lend directly to borrowers, the majority of our automobile
loans are originated through auto dealerships within our primary market area.
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We also provide an overdraft line of credit product called ChequeMate, which provides our customers with an option to
eliminate overdraft fees should they make an error in balancing their checking account. Our Chequemate lines of credi
are typically unsecured and are generally limited to less than $5,000 per account.

b. Loan Approval Procedures and Authority

General. The Bank's Board of Directors delegates the autharity to provide loans to borrowers through the Bank’s Loan
Policy. The policy is modified, reviewed and approved on an annual basis 1o assure that lending policies and practices
meet the needs of borrowers, mitigate perceived credit risk, and reflect current economic conditions. Currently, we use a
four (4) tier structure to approve loans. First, the full Board of Directors of the Bank has authority to approve single loans
or loans to any one borrower up to the bank’s legal iending limit, which was $9.6 million at December 31, 2003. The full
Board of Directors also approves all loans made to members of the Board of Directors, their family members, and their
related businesses when the total loans exceed $500,000.

Second, the Board of Directors, as required by the Bank’s by-laws, appoints a Loan and Investment Commitiee. The
Loan and Investment Committee must be comprised of at least three (3) outside directors and meets on an as-needed
basis, generally bi-weekly. Its lending authority is limited to 50% of the Bank’s legal lending limit, which is approximately
$4.8 million. The Committee may also make loans up to 100% of the Bank’s legal lending limit if the loan is secured by
readily marketable collateral such as stocks and bonds. The Loan and Investment Committee is also responsible for
ratifying and affirming all loans made that exceed $25,000, approving collateral releases, establishing bid prices for real
estate in process of foreclosure, authorizing charge-offs in excess of $7,500, and annually reviewing all lines of credit that
exceed all individual loan officer's authority. The actions of the Loan and Investment Committee are reported to and
ratified by the full Board of Directors each month.

Third, the Board of Directors has authorized the creation of the Officers’ Loan Committee. The Officers’ Loan Committee
is comprised of four voting members, the President & CEQ, the two (2) highest-ranking members of the Bank’'s Loan
Division, and the manager of the Credit Department. The Officers’ Loan Committee may approve secured and unsecured
loans up to 15% of the Bank's legal lending limit (approximately $1.4 million) and loans up to 100% of the Bank's legal
jending limit if the loan is secured by readily marketable coliateral. The Committee also has the authority to adjust loan
rates from time to time as market conditions dictate. Loan charge-offs up to $7,500 and collateral releases within
prescribed fimits established by the Board of Directors are also approved by the Officers’ Loan Committee. All actions of
the Officers’ Loan Committee are reported to the Loan and investment Committee for ratification.

Fourth, through the loan policy, individual loan officers are provided specific loan limits by category of loan. Each officer’s
lending limits are determined based on the individual officer’s experience, past credit decisions, and expertise.

Our goal for the loan approval process is to provide adequate review of loan proposais while at the same time responding
quickly to customer requests. We complete a credit review and maintain a credit file for each borrower. The purpose of
the file is to provide the history and current status of each borrower’s relationship and credit standing, so that a loan officer
can quickly understand the borrower’s status and make a fully informed decision on a new loan request. We require that
all business borrowers submit audited, reviewed, or internal financial statements no less than annually.

Loans to Directors and Executive Officers. Loans to members of the Board of Directors (and their related interests) are
granted under the same terms and conditions as loans made to unaffiliated borrowers. Any fee that is normally charged
to other borrowers is also charged to the members of the Board of Directors. Loans to Executive Officers are limited by
banking regulation. There is no regulatory loan limit established for Executive Officers to purchase, construct, maintain or
improve a residence or finance the education of a dependent. However, any loans to Executive Officers which are not for
the construction, improvement, or purchase of a residence, or not used to finance a child’s education, or not secured by
readily marketable investment collateral, are limited to a maximum of $100,000. In addition, we require that ail loans
made to Executive Officers be reported to the Board of Directors at the next Board of Directors meeting.

c. Credit Quality Practices

General. One of our key objectives is to maintain strong credit quality of the Bank’s loan portfolio. We strive to accomplish
this objective by maintaining a diversified mix of loan types, limiting industry concentrations, and monitoring regional
economic conditions. In addition, we use a variety of strategies to protect the quality of individual loans within the loan
portfolio during the credit review and approval process. We evaluate both the primary and secondary sources of
repayment and complete financial statement review and cash flow analysis for commercial borrowers. We also generally
require personal guarantees on small business loans, cross-collateralize loan obligations, complete on-site inspections of
the business, and require the company to adhere to financial covenants. Similarly, in the event a modification to an
outstanding loan is requested, we reevaluate the loan under the proposed terms prior to making the modification. If we
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approve the modification, we often secure additional coliateral or impose stricter financial covenants. In the event a loan
becomes delinquent, we follow collection procedures to assure repayment. If it becomes necessary to repossess or
foreclose on collateral, we strive to execute the proceedings in a timely manner and dispose of the repossessed or

foreclosed property quickly to minimize the level of non-performing assets, subsequent asset deterioration, and costs
associated with monitoring the collateral. :

Delinquent i.oar:s and Collection Procedurcs. When a borrower fails to make a required payment on a loan, we take a
number of steps to induce the borrower to cure the delinquency and restore the loan to current status. Our Chief Credit
Officer continuously monitors the past due status of the loan porffolio. Individual delinquencies are reported to the
Directors’ Loan and Investment Committee af least monthly and the overall delinquency levels to the Board of Directors at
least quarterly: Separate collection procedures have been established for residential mortgage, consumer, and
commercial and commercial real estate loans. :

On residential rnortgage loans fifteen (15) days past due, we send the borrower a notice which requests immediate
payment. At twenty (20) days past due, the borrower is usually contacted by telephone by an employee of the Bank. The
borrower’s respanse and promise to pay is recorded. At sixty (60) days or more past due, if satisfactory repayment
arrangements are not made with the borrower, generally, an attorney letter will be sent and foreclosure procedures will
begin. :

On consumer loans ten (10) days past due, we send the borrower a notice which requests immediate payment. If the
loan remains past due, an employee of the Bank's Collection Department or the approving Loan Officer will usually
contact the borrower before day thirty (30) of past due status. Loans sixty to ninety (60 — 90} days past due are generally
subject to repos:iession.

We send past d.ie notices to borrowers with commercial term loans, demand notes and time notes (including commercial
real estate) when the loan reaches ten (10) days past due. Between day fifteen and day thirty (15 — 30), borrowers are
contacted by telephone by an employee of the Bank's Collection Department or by the approving Loan Officer to attempt
to return the account to current status. After thirty (30) days past due, the loan officer and senior loan officer decide
whether to pursue further action against the borrower.

Loan Portfolic Monitoring Practices. Our loar policy requires that the Chief Credit Officer continually monitor the status of
the toan portfolio, by regularly reviewing and analyzing reports, which include information on delinquent ioans, criticized
loans and foreclosed real estate. We risk rate our loan portfolios and.individual loans based on their perceived risks and
historical losses. For commercial borrowers whose aggregate loans exceed $50,000, we assign an individual risk rating
annually. We arrive at a risk rating based on current payment performance and payment history, the current financial
strength of the borrower, and the value of the collateral and personal guarantee. Loans classified as “substandard”
typically exhibit some or all of the following chiaracteristics: ‘

« the borrower lacks current financia! information,

* the business of the borrower is poorly managed,

* the borrower’s business becomes highly-leveraged or appears to be insolvent,
* the borrower exhibits inadequate cash flow to support the debt service,

+ the loan is chronically delinquent, or

« the industry in which the business operates has become unstable or volatile.

Loans we classfy as “special mention” are loans that are generaily performing, but the borrower’s financial strength
appears to be deteriorating. Loans we categorize as a “pass” are generally performing per contractual terms and exhibit
none of the characteristics of special mention or substandard loans.

Allowance for Loan Loss. The allowance for loan losses is an amount, which, in the opinion of management, is necessary
to absorb probabie losses inherent in the loan portfolio. We continually monitor the allowance for loan losses to determine
its reasonableness. At each quarter end our Chief Credit Officer prepares a formal assessment of the allowance for loan
loss and submiis it to the full Board of Directors to determine the adequacy of the allowance. The allowance is
determined based upon numerous considerations. For the consumer, residential mortgage and small commercial loans,
we consider local economic conditions, the growth and composition of the loan portfolio, the trend in delinquencies and
the trend in loan charge-offs and non-performing loans. Based on these factors, we estimate the probable or “embedded”
losses in the loan portfolio. On large commercial loans, we take into consideration the specific characteristics of the loan
including the borower’s payment history, business conditions in the borrower’s industry, the collateral and guarantees
securing the lozn, and our historical experience with similarly structured loans. We then assign an estimated loss
percentage based on these characteristics. The adequacy of our allowance for loan losses is also reviewed by our
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primary regulatory agency, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC"), on a periodic basis. Its comments
and recommendations are factored into the determination of the allowance for loan loss.

The allowance for ioan losses is increased by the provision for loan losses, which is recorded as an expense on our
income statement. Charge-offs are recorded as a reduction in the allowance for loan loss. Recoveries are recorded as
an increase in the allowance for loan losses.

Non-Performing Loans. There are three categories of non-performing loans, (i) those 90 or more days delinquent and still
accruing interest, (ii) non-accrual loans, and (iii) troubled debt restructured loans (“TDR"). We place individual loans on
non-accrual status when timely collection of contractual principal and interest payments is doubtful. This generally occurs
when a loan becomes ninety (90) days delinquent. When deemed prudent, however, we will place loans on non-accrual
status before they become 90 days delinquent. Conversely, on occasion, we maintain loans on accrual status even
though they have become 90 or more days delinquent. Upon being placed on non-accrual status, we reverse all interest
accrued in the current year against interest income. Interest accrued and not coliected from a prior year is charged-off
through the allowance. If ultimate repayment of a non-accrual loan is expected, any payments received may be applied in
accordance with contractual terms. If ultimate repayment of principal is not expected, any payment received on the non-
accrual loan is applied to principal until ultimate repayment becomes expected.

A loan is considered to be a troubled debt restructured loan when we grant a special concession to the borrower because
the borrower’s financial condition has deteriorated to the point where servicing the original loan under the original terms
becomes difficult or detrimental to the financial condition of the business. Such concessions include the reduction of
interest rates, forgiveness of principal or interest, or other similar modifications to the original terms. TDR loans that are in
compliance with their modified terms and that yield a market rate may be removed from TDR status after a period of
performance.

Our goal is to minimize the number of non-performing loans because of their negative impact on the Company's earnings.

Foreclosure and Repossession. At times it becomes necessary to foreclose or repossess property that a delinquent
borrower pledged as collateral on a loan. Upon concluding foreclosure or repossession procedures, we take title to the
collateral and attempt to dispose of it in the most efficient manner possible. Real estate properties formerly pledged as
collateral on loans which we have acquired through foreclosure proceedings or acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure
are called Other Real Estate Owned (hereinafter referred to as “OREQ”). OREO is carried at the lower of the recorded
investment in the loan or the fair value of the real estate, less estimated costs to sell. Write-downs from the unpaid loan
balance to fair value are charged to the allowance for loan losses. The proceeds from the sale of the foreclosed or
repossessed collateral are applied against the outstanding loan balance of the delinquent borrower.

Loan Charge-Offs. We charge off loans or portions of loans that we deem non-collectible and can no longer justify
carrying as an asset on the Bank’s balance sheet. We determine if a loan should be charged-off by analyzing all possible
sources of repayment. Once the responsible Loan Officer determines the loan is not collectible, he/she completes a
“Recommendation for Charge-off’ form, which is subsequently reviewed and approved by the Bank's Loan and
Investment Committee (or by the Officers' Loan Committee for charge-offs less than $7,500).

D. Investment Securities Activities

General. The Bank's Board of Directors has final authority and responsibility for all aspects of the Bank’s investment
activities. It exercises this authority by setting the Bank’s Investment Policy each year and appointing the Loan and
Investment Committee to monitor adherence to the policy. The Board of Directors delegates its powers by appointing
designated investment officers to purchase and sell investment securities for the account of the Bank. The CEO and the
Chief Investment Officer have the authority to make investment purchases within the limits set by the Board of Directors.
All investment securities transactions are reviewed monthly by the Loan and Investment Committee and the Board of
Directors.

The Bank’s investment securities portfolio is primarily comprised of high-grade fixed income debt instruments. Investment
purchases are generally made when we have funds that exceed the present demand for loans. Our primary investment
objectives are to:

(i) minimize risk through strong credit quality,

(i) provide liquidity to fund loans and meet deposit run-off,

(iii) diversify the Bank’s assets,

(iv) generate a favorable investment return,

(v) meet the pledging requirements of State, County and Municipal depositors,
(vi) manage the risk associated with changing interest rates, and

(vii) match the maturities of securities with deposit and borrowing maturities.
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Our current investment policy generally. limits securities' investments to U.S. Government, agency and sponsored entity
securities, corpo-ate debt, municipal bonds, pass-through mortgage ‘backed securities issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie
Mac or Ginnie Mae, and collateralized mortgac;e obligations (:ssued by these same agencies).

The mvestment securmes we hold are CchS'Slfled as held to-maturity, trading, or avallable-for sale, depending on the
purposes for which the investment securities were acquired and are being held. Securities held-to-maturity are debt
securities that the Company has both the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. These securities are stated at
amortized cost. Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of sale in the near term are
classified as trading securities.and are-reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. Debt
and -equity securities not classified as either held-to-maturity or.trading securities are classified as available-for-sale and
are reported at fair value with .unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported net of taxes in
accumulated other comprehensive income or loss. -

On a daily basis we buy and sell overnight Federal Funds to and from our correspondent banks. . Federal Funds are
unsecured general obligations of the purchasing bank and therefore subject to credit risk. To mitigate this risk, we monitor
the financial strength of our correspondent banks on a continuous basis. Financial strength rating reports of each
correspondent bank are formally reviewed by the Bank’s management on a quarterly basis.

From time to time we purchase and hold certificates of deposit with banks domiciled in the United States. These
obligations are all fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")

On a limited basv,, we also invest in permnssrble types of equity secun’ues

E. Sources of Funds

General. The Bank's lending and investment activities are highly dependent upon the Bank’s ability to obtain funds. Our
primary source of funds is customer deposits. To a lesser extent we have borrowed funds from the FHLBNY and entered
into repurchase agreements to fund our loan and investment activities. ‘

Deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts to our customers. The fees, interest rates and terms of each deposit
product vary to meet the unique needs and requirements of our depositors. Presently, we offer a variety of accounts for
consumers, businesses, not-for-profit businesses and municipaiities including: demand deposit accounts, interest bearing
transaction, accounts, money market accounts, statement savings accounts, passbook savings accounts and fixed and
'variable rate certificates of deposn The majority of our deposit accounts are owned by individuals and businesses who
rreside near our tranch locations. Municipal-deposits are genera)ly derived from the local and county taxing authorities,

school districts nzar our branch locations and, to a limited degree, New York State public funds. Accordingly, deposit
levels are dependent upon regional economic conditions, as well as more general national and statewide economic
conditions, local competition and our pricing decisions

Borrowed Funds. From time to tlme we borrow funds to flnance our loan and investment activities. Most of our
borrowings are with the FHLBNY. These: advances are sécured by a general lien on our eligible 1-4 family residential
mortgage portfolio of specificinvestment securities collateral. We determine thé maturity and structure of each advance
based on market conditions at the time of ‘borrowing and the interest rate risk profile of the loans or investments being
funded.

We also utilize repurchase agreements to fund our loan and investment activities. Repurchase agreements are contracts
for sale of securities owned or borrowed by us, with an agreement with the counter party to repurchase those securities at
an agreed upon price and date. In addition, when necessary, we borrow overmght federal funds from other banks or
borrow momes frcm the Federal Reserve Bank S d:scount wmdow

Deposit account structures, fees and interest rates, as well as funding strategies, are determined by the Bank's Asset and

Liability Committee ("“ALCO”). The ALCO is.comprised of the Bank’s senior managers and meets on a bi-weekly basis.

The ALCO reviews general economic conditions, the Bank’s’ need for funds, and local competitive conditions prior to

establishing funding strategies and interest rates to be paid. The actions of the ALCO are reported to the Directors’ Loan
and Investment Committee at their regularly scheduled meetings.

F. Electronic and Payment Service's

General. ‘We offer a variety of electronic serwces to our customers. Most of the services are provided for convenience
purposes and are typically offered in conjunction with a deposit or ioan account. Certain electronic and payment services
are provided using marketing arrangements and third party services, branded with the Wilber National Bank name. These
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services often provide us with additional sources of fee income or reduce our operating and transaction expenses. Our
menu of electronic and payment services include point of sale transactions, debit card payments, ATMs, merchant credit .
and debit card processing, Internet banking, Internet bill pay services, voice response, wire transfer services, automated
clearing house services, direct deposit of Social Security and other payments, loan autodraft payments, and cash
management services.

G. Trust and Investment Services

General. We offer various personal Trust and investment services through our Trust and Investment Division including
both fiduciary and custodial services. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 we had $334.3 million and $258.4
million respectively of assets under management in the Bank’s Trust and Investment Division. The following chart
summarizes the Trust and Investment Division assets under management as of the dates noted:

Trust Assets Summary Table:

December 31,
2003 2002

Number |Estimated | Number |Estimated

of Market of Market

Dollars in Thousands Accounts Value Accounts Value
Trusts 320 | $198,166 317 | $124,532
Estates 6 2,954 8 2,455
Custodian, investment Management and Others 212 131,322 214 131,751
Total ‘ 538 | $332,442 539 | $258,738

We also provide investment services through a third party provider, INVEST Financial Corp., for the purchase of mutual
funds and annuities.

H. insurance Services

General. In 1998, the Bank established an insurance agency through a joint venture with a regional independent
insurance agency. The agency, Mang-Wilber, LLC, is licensed to sell, within New York State, various insurance
products, including life, health, property and casualty insurance products to both consumers and businesses. The
principal office of the agency is in Sidney, New York with satellite sales offices in Oneonta, New York (the Bank’s Main
Office), and Walton, New York (doing business as Mang-Sholes Insurance).

We also offer credit life and disability insurance through an affiliation with the New York Bankers Association. The
insurance is typically offered to and purchased by consumers securing @ mortgage or consumer loan through the Bank.
In addition, we offer title insurance through New York Bankers Title Agency East, LLC. Title insurance is sold in
conjunction with origination of residential and commercial mortgages. We own an interest in New York Bankers Title
Agency East, LLC and receive profit distributions based upon the overall performance of the agency.

I, Supervision and Regulation

The following generally describes the regulation to which the Company and its subsidiaries are subject. Bank holding
companies and banks are extensively regulated under both federal and state law. To the extent that the following
information summarizes statutory or regulatory provisions, it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the particular laws
and regulations. Any change in applicable law or regulation may have a material effect on the business and prospects of
the Company.

The Company is a registered bank holding company within the meaning of the BHCA and is subject to regulation by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (“Federal Reserve Board”). Wilber National Bank is a nationally
chartered bank and is subject to supervision and examination by the OCC, a division of the United States Treasury
Department. The Bank is also subject to certain banking laws and regulations of New York State. The Bank's insurance
agency subsidiary, Mang-Wilber LLC, is subject to New York State insurance laws and regulations. The Bank is a
member of the Federal Reserve System and its deposits are insured by the Bank Insurance Fund of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") up to $100,000 per depositor. The BHCA generally prohibits the Company from engaging,
directly or indirectly, in activities other than banking, activities closely related to banking, and certain other financial
activities. Under the BHCA, a bank holding company must obtain Federal Reserve Board approval before acquiring,
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directly or indirectly, 5% or more of the votinj shares of another bank or bank holding company (unless it already owns a
majority of such shares). Bank holding companies are-able to acquire banks or other bank holding companies located in
all 50 states, ard 48 of the 50 states permit banks headquartered in other states to branch into their states, although in
some cases only by acquisition of existing banks in such states. As a result of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999
{("GLBA"), bank holding companies are now permitted to affiliate with. a-much broader array of other financial institutions
than was previously permitted, including insurance companies, investment banks and merchant banks. See PART |, ltem
1.K., "Legislative Developments” of this document for additional information on the GLBA.

An important area of banking regulation is the establishment by federal regulators of minimum capitalization standards.
The Federal Reserve Board has adopted various "capital adequacy guidelines” for its use in the examination and
supervision of bank holding companies. The risk based capital guidelines assign risk weightings to all assets and certain
off-balance sheet items and establish an 8% minimum ratio of qualified total capital to the aggregate dollar amount of risk
weighted assets (which is aimost always less than the dollar amount of such assets without risk weighting). At least half
of total capital must consist of "Tier 1" capital, which comprises common equity, retained earnings and a limited amount of
permanent preferred stock, less goodwill. Up to half of total capital may consist of so called "Tier 2" capital, comprising a
limited amount of subordinated debt, other preferred stock, certain other instruments and a limited amount of the
allowance for loan losses. The Federal Reserve Board's other important guideline for measuring a bank hoiding
company's capital is the leverage ratio standard, which establishes minimum limits on the ratio of a bank holding
company's "Tier 1" capital to total tangible assets (not risk-weighted). For top rated holding companies, the minimum
leverage ratio is 3%, but lower rated companies may be required to meet substantially greater minimum ratios. The Bank
is also subject to similar capital requirements adopted by its -primary federal regulator, the OCC.

Under applicable law, federal banking regutators are required to take prompt corrective action with respect to depository
institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements. The regulators have-established five capital classifications for
banking institutions, the highest being "well capitalized." Under regulations adopted by the federal bank regulators, a
banking institution is considered "well capitalized" if it has a total risk adjusted capital ratio of 10% or greater, a Tier 1 risk
adjusted capital ratio of 6% or greater and a leverage ratio of 5% or greater and is not subject to any regulatory order or
written directive regarding capital maintenance. The Company and the Bank each qualify as “well capitalized.” The
capital ratios of the Company and the Bank are set forth in Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements contained
within Part il, item 8, of this document. .

A bank holding company's ability to pay dividends or repurchase its outstanding stock, as well as its ability to expand its
business through acquisitions of -additional banking organizations or permitted non-bank companies, may be restricted if
capital falls below these minimum capitalization standards or other informal capital guidelines that the regulators may
apply from time to time to specific banking organizations. In addition to these potential regulatory limitations on the
payment of dividends, the Company and the Bank's ability to pay dividends is subject to various restrictions under
applicable corpcrate laws. The ability of the Company and the Bankto pay dividends in the future is, and is expected to
continue to be, influenced by regulatory policies, capital guidelines and applicable law.

in cases where banking reguiators have significant concerns regarding the financial condition, assets or operations of a
bank or bank holding company,-the regulators may. take enforcement action or impose enforcement orders, formal or
informal, agains: the organization. Neither the Company nor the Bank is now, nor has been within the past year, subject
to any formal or informal regulatory enforcement action or order.

J. Competition

We face competition in all the markets we serve. Traditional competitors are other local commercial banks, savings
banks, savings and loan institutions and credit unions, as well as local offices of major regional and money center banks.
Also, non-banking financial organizations, such as consumer finance companies, mortgage brokers, insurance
companies, securities firms, money market funds, and mutual funds and credit card companies offer substantive
equivalents of transaction accounts and various loan and financial products. As a result of the GLBA (discussed further in
ltem 1.M. below), other non-banking financial organizations now may be in a position not only to offer comparable
products to those offered by the Company, but actually to establish, acquire or affiliate with commercial banks
themselves. S : -

K. Legislative Developments

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act ("SOX"), signed into law on July 30, 2002, adopted a wide range of measures applicablg to
publicly traded companies. Generally, SOX seeks to improve the quality of financial reporting of these companies,
strengthen the independence of their auditors, and compel them to adopt good corporate governance practices. SOX
places substantal additional duties on directors, officers, auditors and attorneys of public companies. Among other
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specific measures, SOX requires that chief-executive officers and chief financial officers certify periodically to the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) the accuracy of the company's financial statements and the integrity of its
internal controls. It also requires publicly traded companies to provide disclosure to shareholders about the operations of
the companies’ nominating committees and the means, if any, by which security holders may communicate with the Board
of Directors. Furthermore, SOX accelerates insiders' reporting obligations for transactions in company securities, restricts
certain executive officer and director transactions, imposes new obligations on corporate audit committees, and provides
for enhanced review of company filings by the SEC. As part of the general effort to improve public company auditing,
SOX placed limits on consulting services that may be performed by a company's independent auditors and created a
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, which sets auditing standards, inspects registered public accounting firms,
and possesses enforcement powers, subject to oversight by the SEC.

in November 1998, Congress enacted the GLBA, which permitted bank holding companies to engage in a wider range of
financial activities. Under GLBA, for example, bank holding companies may underwrite all types of insurance and annuity
products and all types of securities products and mutual funds, and may engage in merchant banking activities. Bank
holding companies that wish to engage in these or other newly-permitted financial activities generally must do so through
separate “financial” subsidiaries and may themselves be required to register (and qualify to register) as a “financial
holding company.” A bank holding company that does not register as a financial holding company will remain a bank
holding company subject to substantially the same regulatory restrictions and permitted activities as applied to bank
holding companies prior to GLBA (see PART I, Item 1.1, “Supervision and Regulations,” above). The Company has not
elected to become a “financial holding company” but continues to evaluate the opportunities provided by GLBA. Under
GLBA, as well as the Fair Credit Reporting Act amendments of 1996, all financial institutions have become subject to
more stringent customer privacy reguiations.

in 1995, the federal bank regulatory authorities promulgated a set of revised reguiations addressing the responsibilities of
banking organizations under the Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA”). The revised regulations place additional
emphasis on the actual experience of a bank in-making loans, providing other banking services and making qualified
investments in low and moderate-income areas and to low to moderate-income individuals and families within its service
area as the key determinants in evaluation of the bank’s compliance with the statute. As in the prior regulations, bank
regulators -are authorized to bring enforcement actions against banks under the CRA only in the context of bank
expansion or acquisition transactions. The Bank received a SATISFACTORY rating for CRA on it last performance
evaluation conducted by the OCC as of August 11, 2003.

The FDIC levies assessments on the Bank’s deposit accounts. In 1996 Congress enacted the Deposit Insurance Funds
Act, under which deposits insured by the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”), such as the deposits of Wilber National Bank, are
subject to assessment for payment on bond obligations financing the FDIC's Savings Association Insurance Fund (“SAIF”)
at a rate one-fifth the rate paid on deposits by SAIF-insured thrift institutions. Accordingly, the deposits of the Bank were
assessed an additional 1.160 cents per $100 of insured deposits in 1999, 1.220 cents per $100 of insured deposits in
1998 and an additional 1.256 cents per $100 of insured deposits in 1997. Beginning in 2000, the BIF and SAIF rates
were equalized. For institutions with the lowest risk classification (including this Bank), the BIF rate increased to 2.120
and the SAIF rate decreased from 5.800 to 2.120. The rate is adjusted quarterly, depending on the need of the fund. At
December 31, 2002 the rate had decreased to 1.680 cents per $100 of insured deposits. At December 31, 2003 the rate
was 1.54 cents per $100 of insured deposits.

Various federal bills that would significantly affect banks are introduced in Congress from time to time. The Company
cannot estimate the likelihood of any currently pending banking bills being enacted into law, or the uitimate effect that any
such potential legislation, if enacted, would have upon its financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

The Company and the Bank are headguartered at 245 ‘Main Street, Oneonta, New York. The three buildings that
comprise our headquarters are owned by the Bank and also serve as our main office. In addition to our main office, we
own seventeen (17) branch offices and lease two offices at market rates. We also own an insurance sales office in
Walton, New York through our insurance agency subsidiary, Mang-Wilber LLC.

In the opinion of management, the physical properties of the Company are suitable and adequate. All of our properties
are insured at full replacement cost.
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ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is not the subject of any material pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation occurring
in the normal course of its business. .

On an ongoing basis, the Bank also becomes subject to various legal claims from time to time, which arise in the normal
course of business. The various pending legal claims against the Bank will not, in the opinion of management based
upon consuitation with counsel, result in any material liability to the Company and will not materially affect our financial
position, results of operation or cash flow.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There were no matters submitted to a vote of the securivty holders of the Company during the fourth quarter of the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2003.

PART !l

ITEM 5: MARKET PRICE OF AND DIVIDENDS ON THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

During 2002 and 2003 the common stock of The Wilber Corporation was inactively traded on Nasdag's Over-the-Counter
Bulletin Board market under the symbol WLBC.OB. Market makers for the stock were Ryan, Beck and Company, Monroe
Securities, Inc., Hill Thompson Magid & Co., Inc., Knight. Equity Markets, L.P., Schwab Capital Markets, L.P., and Stifel,
Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated. The following table was the high and low bid quotations for the common stock and
quarterly dividend paid to our security holders for the periods presented:

Common Stock Market Price and Dividend Tatle:

2003 2002

Extra
: High Low Dividend High Low  Dividend Dividend
4th Quarter $15.00 $12.10 $0.0925 $1069 $869 §$ 0.0900 $0.0150
3rd Quarter $13.75 $10.20 $0.0925 § 9.50 $8.63 $ 0.0900 -
2nd Quarter $10.81 $ 981 $0.0925 §$ 863 $7.97 $ 0.0900 -
istQuarter $1025 $§ 9.78 $0.0925 §$ 837 §$794 $ 0.0900 -

(1) All prices and dividends p}rovided in this table have been adjusted for the 4:1
stock split approved on Septamber 5, 2003.

(2) The high and low bid quotations provided in this table were obtained from
www.finance.yahoo.com and reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-
down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

On February 12, 2004, the Company's commeon stock ($.01 par value per share) began trading on the American Stock
Exchange under the symbol GIW. At March 12, 2004 there were 617 holders of record of our common stock (excluding
beneficial owners who hold their shares in nominee name through brokerage accounts). The closing price of the common
stock at March 12, 2004 was $13.60 per share. '

The Company has not sold any unregistered securities within the past three years.

ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The comparability of the information provided in the following tables have not been materially impacted by any significant
business combinations, dispositions of business operations or accounting changes other than those provided in the
footnotes of our financial statements providec in PART I, Item 8, of this document. However, all per share financial
information contained in this document, as well as all exhibits, was restated to reflect a 4:1 stock split approved on
September 5, 2003.
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Summary Table of Selected Financial Data:

The Wilber Corporation and Subsidiary
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

As of and for 12-month Period Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Consolidated Statements of Income Data:
Interest Income $ 38620 $ 41636 $ 42293 $ 42326 $ 41,356
Interest Expense 14,153 17,170 20,449 21,438 20,320
Net Interest income 24,467 24,466 21,844 20,888 21,036
Provision for Loan Losses 1,565 1,920 1,540 1,680 1,920 ’
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 22,902 22,546 20,304 19,208 19,116
Other Income 4,863 4,776 4,555 4,369 4,285
Net Gains (Losses) on Securities Transactions 808 488 279 (1) 3
Other Expense (1) 16,583 15,890 13,945 12,701 12,466
Income Before Provision for Income Taxes 11,990 11,820 11,193 10,875 10,938
Provision for Income Taxes 3,277 3,358 3,147 3,017 3,124
Net Income 7 $ 8713 § 8562 § 8046 § 7858 $ 7814
Earnings Per Common Share: (2) _
Basic $ 078 § 0.76 $ 071 § 0.68 $ 066
Per Common Share: (2)
Cash Dividends - 0.37 0.38 0.35 0.35 0.33
Book Value 574 5.61 492 4.51 4.09
Tangible Book Value (3) 5.46 5.32 4.88 4.39 3.98
Consolidated Period-End Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets ‘ $ 729,023 $708,984 $626,787 $560,089 $570,577
Securities Available-for-Sale - 275,051 234,542 188,712 111,329 129,182
Securities Held-to-Maturity A 44,140 42,837 46,017 74,888 84,086
Gross Loans 360,906 358,295 329,544 324,758 323,580
Nonperforming Assets 3,678 3,160 4,137 4,243 4,490
Deposits 580,633 549,081 491,012 439,408 454 181
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 55,849 73,346 62,512 50,500 48,900
Other Borrowed Funds : ‘ 20,018 13,260 10,530 13,765 15,460
Shareholder's Equity _ 64,304 63,162 55,827 51,526 47 441
Selected Key Ratios:
Return on Average Assets ‘ 1.20% 1.25% 1.36% 1.42% 1.37%
Retumn on Average Equity 13.67% 14.36% 14.91% 16.20% 15.71%
Dividend Payout - 47.44% 50.00% 49.30% 51.47% 50.00%

(1) Amortization of goodwill was discontinued with retroactive effect back to January 1, 2002 upon adoption of SFAS No. 147 during
the third quarter of 2003.

(2) All per share amounts have been adjusted for the 4 for 1 stock split approved on September 5, 2003.

(3) Tangible'book value numbers exclude goodwill and intangible assets associated with prior business combinations.
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A 2003 . N 2002 :
Selected Quarterly Financial Data ) Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third ) Second First
(Dolfars in Thousands) - ;
Interest income . $ 9442 § 9372 $ 9783 § 10,024|% 10344 §$ 10,508 $ 10549 § 10,234
Interest expense 3,314 3,433 3,609 3,797 4,056 4,250 4417 4,447
Net interest income » 6,128 5,939 6,174 6,227 6,288 6,259 6,132 5,787
Provision for loan losses ‘ 380 T 350 435 420 480 480 480 480
Net interest income aiter provision for loan losses 5,768 5,589 5,739 5,807 5,808 5,779 5,652 5,307
Investment Security Gains (Losses), Net : 68 21 297 422 ' 192 - 140 86 70
Other non-interest income 1,347 . 1,125 1,225 1,166 1,091 1,318 1,101 1,266
Non-interest expense 4,193 4,269 4,080 4,010 4,807 3,887 3,313 3,883
Income before income: tax expense $ 2990 § 2466 $ 3181 $ 3385/ 2284 3§ 3350 $ 3526 $ 2,760
Income tax expense o 789 642 888 990 572 988 1,036 ' 762
Net income $ 2201 $ 1824 $ 2293 % 2395|% 1712 § 2,382 $ 249 $ 1,998
Basic earnings per share $ 020 § 016 $ 021 % 0.21]% 015 $ 021§ 022 § 0.18
Basic weighted averagie shares outstanding 11,209,392  11,209,39211,209,3921 1,238,743 11,257,060 11,260,068 11,304,030 11,321,176
Net interést margin (tax equivalent) (1) . 3.7T% 3.:67% 3.82% 3.86% . 3.95% 3.92% 4.068% 3.92%)
Return on average assets 1.19% 0.99% 1.27% 1.35% 0.96% 1.34% 1.46% - 1.22%j
Return on average equity 13.68% 11.49%  14.27%  15.25% 11.03% 15.58% 17.47% 14.27 %
Efficiency ratio (2) ‘ - 53.01% 56.64%  52.18% 51.30%| 61.56% " 48.74% 42.77%  51.54%

(1) Net interest margin (tax-equivalent) is tax-equivalent net interest income divided by average earning assets.

(2) The Efficiency Ratio is calculated by dividing total non-interest expense less amortization of intangibles and other real estate expense by tax-equivalent
net interest income plus non-interest income other than securities gains and losses

ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS : :

A. General

The primary objestive of this financial review is to provide an overview of the financial condition and results of operations
of The Wilber Corporation and its subsidiaries for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003.
This discussion and tabular presentations should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes presented in PART Il tem 8, of this document. . ; ‘

Our financial performance is heavily dependent upon net interest income, which is the difference between the interest
income earned on our loans and investment securities less the interest paid on our deposits and borrowings. Results of
operations are also affected by the provision for loan losses, investment -securities gains (losses), service charges and
penalty fees on deposit accounts, fees collected for trust and investment services, insurance commission income, the
increase on the cash surrender value on bank owned life insurance, other service fees and other income. Our non-
interest expenses primarily consist of employee salaries and benefits, occupancy and equipment expense, advertising
and marketing expense, computer service fees, professional fees and other expenses. Resuits of operations are also
influenced by general economic and competitive conditions (particularly changes in interest rates), government policies,
changes in Federal or State tax law, and the actions of our regutatory authorities.

Critical Accounting Policies. Management of the Company considers the accounting policy relating to the allowance for
joan losses to be a critical accounting policy given the uncertainty in evaluating the level of the allowance required to
cover credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio and the material effect that such judgments can have on the results of
operations. Whie management's current evaluation of the allowance for loan losses indicates that the allowance is
adequate, under adversely different conditions or assumptions, the allowance would need to be increased. For example,
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if historical loan loss experience significantly worsened or if current economic conditions significantly deteriorated,
additional provisions for loan losses would be required to increase the allowance. In addition, the assumptions and
estimates used in the internal reviews of the Company’s non-performing loans and potential problem loans has a
significant impact on the overall analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. While management has
concluded that the current evaluation of collateral values is reasonable under the circumstances, if collateral valuations
were significantly lowered, the Company’s allowance for loan losses would also require additional provisions for loan
losses. :

Our policy on the allowance for loan losses is disclosed in Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. A more
detailed description of the allowance for loan losses is included in PART i, ltems 7 B.a. and B.b., of this report. All
accounting policies are important, and as such, the Company encourages the reader to review each of the policies
included in Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements (provided in PART II, Item 8, of this document) to obtain a
better understanding of how the Company's financial performance is reported. ‘

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In August 2001, FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obiligations,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with retirement of tangible
long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. This Statement is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. Earlier application is permitted. The adoption of this pronouncement did not
have any material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2003.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” which
addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” This Statement is effective for exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of this statement did not have any material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003.

On November 2002, the FASB issued FIN No. 45, “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This Interpretation expands the disclosures to be made by a
guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees and requires the guarantor to
recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN No. 45 clarifies the requirements of
SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies,” relating to guarantees. In general, FIN No. 45 applies to contracts or
indemnification agreements that contingently require the guarantor to make payments to the guaranteed party based on
changes in an underlying that is related to an asset, liability, or equity security of the guaranteed party. Certain guarantee
contracts are excluded from both the disclosure and recognition requirements of this Interpretation, including, among
others, guarantees relating to employee compensation, residual value guarantees under capital lease arrangements,
commercial letters of credit, loan commitments, subordinated interests in a special purpose entity, and guarantees of a
company’'s own future performance. Other guarantees are subject to the disclosure requirements of FIN No. 45 but not to
the recognition provisions and include, among others, a guarantee accounted for as a derivative instrument under SFAS
No. 133, a parent’s guarantee of debt owed to a third party by its subsidiary or vice versa, and a guarantee which is based
on performance not price. The disclosure requirements of FIN No. 45 are effective for the Company as of December 31,
2002, and require disclosure of the nature of the guarantee, the maximum potential amount of future payments that the
guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee, and the current amount of the liability, if any, for the guarantor’s
obligations under the guarantee. The recognition requirements of FIN No. 45 are to be applied prospectively to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The requirements of FIN No. 45 did not have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company does not issue any guarantees that would require
liability-recognition or disclosure, other than its standby letters of credit. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the fair value of
standby letters of credit was not material. The estimated fair value of the Company’s standby letters of credit was $43
thousand and $14 thousand at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. The estimated fair value of
standby letters of credit at their inception is equal to the fee that is charged to the customer by the Company. Generally,
the Company's standby letters of credit have a term of one year. In determining the fair values disclosed above, the fees
were reduced on a straight-line basis from the inception of each standby ietter of credit to the respective dates above.
Due to immateriality of the fair value of the Company’s standby letters of credit, as well as their short-term nature, the
Company recognized the fees for the standby letters of credit in income at inception during 2003, 2002 and 2001 for each
standby letter of credit.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The objective of this
Interpretation is to provide guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (VIE) and determine whether the assets,
liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and results of operations of a VIE need to be included in a company’s consolidated
financial statements. A company that holds variable interests in an entity will need to consolidate the entity if the
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company'’s interest in the VIE is such that the company will absorb a majority of the VIE's expected losses and/or receive
a majority of the: entity’s expected residual returns, if they occur. FIN No. 46 also requires additional disclosures by
primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. FIN 46 was effective for all VIEs created after
January 31, 2003. However, the FASB postponed that effective date to December 31, 2003. In December 2003, the
FASB issued a revised FIN No. 46 (FIN No. 46R), which further delayed the effective date for public. companies to
March 31, 2004 for VIE's created prior to February 1, 2003, except for interests in special purpose entities, for which a
company must adopt either FIN No. 46 or FIN No. 46R as of December 31, 2003. Adoption of the requirements of FIN No.
46R is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

The FASB issued SFAS 149, “Amendment of Statement No. 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The
statement is effective for contracts entered into or modified after September 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships
designated after September 30, 2003. - This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for
derivative instrurnents, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities.
The adoption of this Statement did not have a significantimpact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2003, the Company adopted SFSAS Mo. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
both Liabilities and Equity’. SFAS 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial
instruments that are within its scope as a liability (or an asset in.some circumstances). Many of those instruments were
previously classified as equity. SFAS 150 is -effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31,
2003, and otherwise was effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. For certain
financial instrumants, the classification and measurement provisions of SFAS 150 have been deferred indefinitely. The
adoption of certain provisions of SFAS 150 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, nor do we expect the adoption of the remaining provisions
of FAS 150 to have a material impact on future consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Accounting for Branch Acquisition. In February 2002, the Company acquired a branch. This acquisition was accounted
for as a business combination in accordancs with SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141 states that a business combination
occurs when a entity acquires net assets that constitute a business, as defined by Emerging Issues Task Force Issue
(EITF) No. 98-3, “Determining Whether a Nonmonetary Transaction Involves Receipt of Productive Assets or of a
Business.” EITF No. 98-3 states that a business is a self-sustaining integrated set of activities and assets conducted and
managed for the purpose of providing a return to investors. A business consists of inputs (long-lived assets, intellectual
property, the ability to obtain access to necessary materials or rights, employees, etc.), processes (the existence of
systems necessary for normal, self sustaining operations) and outputs (the ability to obtain access to customers).

Our branch acquisition involved the acquisition of (i) long-lived and intangible assets (building, core deposit intangible and
equipment), (i) employees (branch management and staff), (iii) certain processes (administration of personnel,
operational processes and strategic management processes); and (iv) the ability to obtain access to customers who
purchase outputs (deposit and loan customers and accounts of the acquired branch were included in the purchase).

Due to the factors involved in the acquisition of the branch in February 2002, the Company’s management has concluded
that the branch acquired was a business under EITF No. 98-3 and, therefore, the acquisition of that branch constituted a
business combination within the scope of SFAS No. 141. In connection with the branch acquisition in February 2002, the
Company, in accordance with SFAS No. 72, "Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions,”
recorded an unidentified intangible asset of $1,877,000 and in accordance with SFAS No. 141, a core deposit intangible
of $285,000. Upon the adoption of SFAS Mo. 147 in October 2002, the identified intangible asset of $1,877,000 was
reclassified as goodwill on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. : ‘

B. Financial Condition
a. Comparisor{ of Financial Condition at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002
Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented in PART I, ltem 8& of this document.
Asset Composition . ‘ _ _ N
Our assets are comprised of earning and non-earning assets. Earning assets include our investment securities, loans,
interest-bearing deposits at other banks and Federal Funds sold. Non-earning assets include our real estate and other

assets acquired as the result of foreclosure, facilities, equipment, intangibles, noq-interest bearing deposits at other
banks, and cash. We generally maintain between 92 — 95% of our total assets in earning assets.
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Total Assets

During 2003 our total assets increased $20.0 million or 2.8%, from $709.0 million at December 31, 2002 to $729.0 million
at December 31, 2003. The modest growth in total assets was driven primarily by an increase in customer deposits.
Total deposits at December 31, 2002 were $549.1 million, as compared to $580.6 million at December 31, 2003, a $31.6
million or 5.7% increase.

The substantial majority of additional deposits gathered during 2003 was primarily invested in the investment securities
portfolio with only modest growth in total loans. At December 31, 2002 total investment securities equaled $277.4 million.
By comparison, at December 31, 2003 total investment securities equaled $319.2 million, an increase of $41.8 million or
15.1%. Total loans increased only slightly between the two periods from $358.3 million at December 31, 2002 to $360.9
million at December 31, 2003, a $2.6 million or 0.73% increase.

Investment Securities
Our investment securities portfolioc consists of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities. The following table
summarizes our available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investment securities portfolio for the periods indicated.

Summary of Investment Securities:

‘ At December 31
. 2003 2002 2001

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated-
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

(In Thousands)

Available-for-sale:

U.S. Treasury and obligations of U.S.
Government corporations and

agencies $ 5,978 $ 6,028 $ 18,265 '$ 18,469 $ 16,795 $ 17,001

Obiligations of States and Political

Subdivisions {(Municipal Bonds) 56,684 - 58,016 38,172 39,629 39,754 39,654

Mortgage - Backed Securities 192,745 192,365 142,983 146,574 94,082 94,596

Corporate Bonds 13,038 13,949 23,171 24,816 32,538 . 32,780

Equity securities 4,520 4,693 4,963 5,054 4,676 4,681
Total available-for-sale $ 272,965 $ 275,051 $ 227,554 $ 234,542 $ 187,845 $ 188,712

Held-to-maturity:
Obligations of States and Political

Subdivisions (Municipal Bonds) $ 6,292 $ 6,515 $ 3,230 $ 3,231 3 3,712 $ 3,381
Mortgage-Backed Securities 37,848 37,901 39,607 40,721 42,305 43,019
Total held-to-maturity $ 44,140 § 44416 $ 42,837 $ 43,952 $ 46,017 $ 46,400

During the period, we reduced corporate bond holdings and substantially increased our holdings of mortgage-backed
securities and obligations of States and Political Subdivisions, i.e., municipal bonds. Specifically, the estimated fair value
of the mortgage-backed securities available-for-sale portfolio, which includes both mortgage pass-through securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations, increased from $146.6 milion at December 31, 2002 to $192.4 million at
December 31, 2003, a $45.8 million or 31.2% increase. Similarly, the estimated fair value of municipal bonds available for
sale increased from $39.6 million at December 31, 2002 to $58.0 million at December 31, 2003, a $18.4 million or 46.4%
increase. The estimated fair value of corporate bonds available for sale decreased from $24.8 million at December 31,
2002 to $13.9 million at December 31, 2003 due to the sale of certain securities in which the issuer, in management’s
opinion, posed moderate levels of credit risk.

The estimated fair value of the investment portfolio is largely dependent upon the interest rate environment at the time the
market price is determined. As interest rates decline, the estimated fair value of bonds generally increases, and
conversely, as interest rates increase, the estimated fair value of bonds generally decreases. At December 31, 2002, the
net unrealized gain on the available-for-sale investment securities portfolio was $7.0 million. By comparison, at
December 31, 2003, the net unrealized gain on the available-for-sale investment securities portfolio decreased to $2.1
million. The net unrealized gain on the available-for-sale investment securities portfolio decreased during 2003 due to the
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replacement of matured, called and sold. higher-yield investment securities with lower-yield investment securities. During
2003, $156.0 million or 56% of the December 31, 2002 investment securities portfolio matured or was sold. In addition,

the Treasury inierest rates increased during the third and fourth quarters of 2003. This, in turn, caused a decrease in the
net unrealized gains recorded on the available-for-sale investment securities.

The following tebie sets forth information regarding the carrying value, weighted average yields and anticipated principal
repayments of the Bank’s investment securities portfolic as of December 31, 2003. All amortizing security principal
payments, including CMO’s and mortgage pass-through securities, are included based on their expected average lives.
Callable securities, primarily. callable agency 'securities and municipal bonds, are assumed to mature at the date in which
management believes the bond will be called. Available-for-sale securities are shown at fair value. Held-to-maturity
securities are shown at their amortized cost. The yields on debt securities shown in the table below are calculated by
dividing annual interest, including accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums, by the amortized cost of the

securities at December 31, 2003. Ylelds on cbligations of states and mumc:pahtnes exempt from federal taxation were not
tax- effected

Investment Securities Maiurity Table:

At December 31, 2003

After One Year through]  After Five Years
In One Year or Less F[ve Years through Ten Years After Ten Years Total
Welghted Weighted Weighted ) Weighted Weighted
- Carryung Average | Carrying- Average | Carrying Average | Carrying Average | Carrying  Average
Doliars in Thousands Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield
U.S Treasury and federal - o '
agency securities $ 4016 4.69% & - 0.00%$ 2,012 4.24% % - 0.00% $ 6,028 4.54%
Municipal obligations _ 6,795 4.96%| 28,395 4.61% 16,222 4.24%| 12,896 3.46% 64,308 4.32%
Mortgage-backed securities- - 14,668 7.23% 196,027 576% 19,518 4.77% - 0.00%! 230,213 5.77%
Corporate securities 3,066 7.07%!. 8,533 7.14% 2,350 8.23%| - 0.00%; 13,949 7.31%
Total securities N 3 28,545 6.32%| $ 232,955 5.67%$ 40,102 4.73%$ 12,896 3.46% $314.498 5.52%

(1) This table excluies other equity securities totaling $4.683 million at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003 the approximate weighted average maturity for all of the Bank’s available-for-sale and held-to-
maturity debt securities was 4.2 years. By comparisan, at December 31, 2002 the approximate weighted average
maturity of the Bank's available-for-sale and held-to-maturity debt securities was 3.2 years. The weighted average
maturity of the debt securities portfolio was greater at December 31, 2003 than at December 31, 2002 due to a reduction
in anticipated prepayments on our mortgage-backed securities portfolic. Because many homeowners refinanced their
mortgages during 2002 and 2003 due to decreased mortgage rates, the likelihood of refinancing existing mortgages
diminished, resulting in an extension of our mortgage-backed securities investment portfolio at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003, 98.5% of the securities held in the Bank's bond portfolio were rated “A” or better by Moody's or
Standard and Poor’s credit rating services; 89.8% were rated AAA.

At December 31, 2003 we also held $4.7 million ¢f equity securities including: $135 thousand of Federal Reserve Bank of
New York stock, $3.053 million in FHLBNY stock, $733 thousand equity interest in a Small Business Investment
Company, Meridian Venture Partners It, L.P, $10 thousand in @ money market mutual fund, $36 thousand in New York
Business Development Corp. stock and $726 thousand of common stock of other banking institutions. At December 31,
2002 equity securities totaled $5.1 million at estimated fanr value. The slight reductton in other equity securities was due
to mandatory redemprions of FHLBNY stock.

Interest Bearing Bank Balances and'Federal Fungds Sold .
During 2003 the interast bearing bank balances and federal funds sold averaged $29.3 million. By comparison, during
2002 the interest beanng bank balances and federzi funds sold averaged $34 1 m:lhon

The slight decrease in these average balances was primarily due to the maturity of FDIC-insured cer’uflcates that were not
replaced with new certificates of deposit. At December 31, 2003 we held a portfolio of FDIC-insured certificates of depaosit
with other banks headquartered throughout the United States. At December 31, 2003 this portfolio was $8.0 million
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versus $16.0 million at December 31, 2002. -We purchased the certificates of deposit during December 2000 and January
2001 as part of an investment arbitrage strategy. Specifically, these certificates of deposit were funded by advances
secured by the Bank at FHLBNY in the same amount with nearly identical maturity terms. The cost of the advances are
0.70 ~ 0.75% below the yield on the like maturity certificates of deposit. Al of the certificates of deposit wili mature by
January 2006.

In the normal course of business, we sell and purchase federal funds to and from other banks to meet our daily liquidity
needs. Because the funds are generally an unsecured obligation of the counter party, we anly sell federal funds to well-
capitalized banks that carry strong credit ratings. Our average federal funds sold position did not-change significantly
from period to period. For 2003 average federal funds sold was $15.1 million, $800 thousand greater than the average
federal funds sold position of $14.3 million maintained during 2002.

Loan Portfolio

General. The bank'’s total loan porifolio increased by 0. 7% or $2.6 million, from $358 3 million at December 31, 2002 to
$360.9 million at December 31, 2003. Although there was no significant change in the total loan portfolio between the two
‘periods, the compasition of the portfolio did change. The following table summarizes the composition of our loan portfolio
over the prior five-year period.

Distribution of Loans Table:
' At December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Amount  Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

~{Dollars in Thousands) _ » » .
Agricultural $ 2467 07% % 2439 07% $ 2020 06% $ 2412 07% $ 2627 08%

Residential real estate (1) 118,571 32.9% 125,464 35.0% 125,510 38.1% 130,003 40.0% - . 137,310, 42.4%
Commercial real estate 115,733 321% 104,967 29.3% 87,268 26.5% 76,860 23.7% 75,110 23.1%
Commercial 62,564 17.3% 63156  17.6% 51,137 15.5% - 48,534 14.9% 46,129 14.2%
Consumer ‘ 61,571 17.1% 62,269 17.4% 63,608 19.3% 66,949 20.6% 62,404 20.6%
Total foans 360,906 100.0% 358,295 100.0% 329,544 100.0% 324,758 100.0% 323,580 100.0%
Less:
Allowance for loan losses (6.757) (5,392) {4,476} (4,003) (3,9988)
Net loans $355,149 $352,903 $325,068 $320,755 $ 319,582

(1) Includes Home Equity Loans

Consumer and residential mortgage loans outstanding each declined due to a very competitive pricing environment for
both automobile loans and residential mortgages. Total loans outstanding in these two portfolios decreased from $187.7
million at December 31, 2002 to $180.1 million at December 31, 2003, a $7.6 million or 4.0% decrease. We ceded both
consumer and residential mortgage loans to competition in a very low interest rate environment to mitigate interest rate
risk. During 2003, automobile manufacturers and their captive finance companies provided cash rebate incentives on
new car purchases and/or maintained very low new car financing rates, which have negatively impacted the purchase of
used vehicles. The lower levels of used vehicle purchases, an important market for the Company, reduced our origination
of consumer loans. Similarly, residential mortgage providers that have the capability to originate and seil conforming
mortgages to the secondary market lowered their interest rates to levels below our minimum interest rate threshold for 15
to 30-year fixed rate mortgages thereby reducmg our origination of new residential mortgage loans during 2003.

Conversely, in 2003 we increased our commercial, commercial real estate and agncultural loans outstanding. Loans
outstanding in these three loan types increased from $170.6 million at December 31, 2002 to $180.8 million at
December 31, 2003, a $10.2 million or 6.0% increase. Most of this increase is due to an expansion of our small business
lending services outside of our primary five county market area.

The following table sets forth the amount of loans maturing and repricing in our portfolio. The full principal amount
outstanding of adjustable rate loans are included in the period in which the interest rate is next scheduled to adjust.
Similarly, the full principal amount outstanding of fixed-rate loans are shown based on their final maturity date. The full
principal amount outstanding of demand loans without a repayment schedule and no stated maturity, ﬂnan_ced accounts -
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receivable, and overdrafts are reported as due within one year. The table has not been adjusted for scheduled principal
payments nor anticipated principal pre-payments.

Maturity and Repricing of Loans Table:

One More
Within One  Through Than
Year (1) Five Years Five Years Total

Agricultural $ 1464 $ 367 $ 636 $ 2467
Residential real estate (1) 50,053 2,625 65,893 118,571
Commercial real estate 60,427 15,620 39,686 115,733
Commercial 43,840 8,107 10,617 62,564
Consumer 10,520 42273 8,778 61,571

Total loans receivable  $ 166,304 $§ 68,992 $ 125610 $ 360,906

(1) Includes Home Ecuity Loans

Table of Fixed and Adjustable Rate Loans:

Due After December 31, 2004

Fixed Adjustable Total
Agricultural $ 468 $ 1779 $ 2247
Residential real estate: (1) 64,572 44 460 109,032
Commercial real estate 57,307 51,972 109,279
Commercial 15,460 14,719 30,179
Consumer 50,135 862 50,997
Total ioans $ 187,942 $ 113,792 $ 301,734

(1) Includes Home Equity Loans

Commitments and Lines of Credit. Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by us to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including bond financing and similar transactions. The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of
credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers. Since most of the standby letters of credit
are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. Standby letters of credit represent extensions of credit. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002,
standby letters of credit totaled $10.0 millior and $1.6 million, respectively. The increase is primarily due to the issuance
of a $4.8 million standby letter of credit for the construction of an assisted living housing project and a $2.9 million standby
letter of credit for the development of a municipal parking deck. Both projects are being financed through their respective
county’s regional Industrial Development Agency. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the fair value of the
Bank’s standby letters of credit was not material.

In addition to standby letters of credit, we have issued lines of credit and other commitments to lend to our customers.
Commitments o extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the loan agreement. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. These include home equity lines of credit, commitments for residential and commercial
construction loans, and other personal and commercial lines of credit. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002,
we had outstanding unfunded loan commitments of $49.1 million and $45.4 million, respectively. The increase in the
unfunded loan commitments is primarily due to growth in our home equity line of credit portfolio. Our experience shows
that these unfunded commitments do not fluctuate significantly from month to month. '

Asset Quality and Risk Elements _ ‘ ‘
General. One cof our key objectives is to maintain strong credit quality of the Bank'’s loan portfolio. The following narrative
provides summary information and our experience regarding the quality and risk elements of our loan portfolio.

Delinquent Loans. At December 31, 2003 we had $2.744 million of loans that were 30 or more days past due (excluding
loans placed on non-accrual status). This equals 0.76% of total loans outstanding. By comparison, at December 31,
2002 we had $5.081 million of loans 30 or rore days past due (excluding loans placed on non-accrual status), or 1.42%
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of loans outstanding. In management’s opinion, the decrease in delinquent loans (still accruing interest) from
December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003 of $2.337 million was due to the implementation of an improved consumer
credit identification and management system established in 2001. [n addition, one large loan totaling $1.425 million and
several small loans were transferred from accrual status to non-accrual status.

Non-accrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans. The following chart sets forth information regarding non-performing
assets for the periods stated.

Table of Non-performing Assets:

At December 31,
Dollars in Thousands 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Loans in Non-Accrual Status:
Agricultural $ 1425 $ 747§ - $ - 8 -
Residential reatl estate 257 222 465 437 554
Commercial real estate 1,199 1,049 1,587 1,249 487
Commercial 275 13 33 227 498
Consumer 8 3 5 - -
Total non-accruing loans 3,164 2,034 2,090 1,913 1,539
Loans Contractually Past Due 90 Days or
More and Still Accruing Interest 123 717 329 345 372
Troubled Debt Restructured Loans 371 387 861 888 917
Total non-performing loans 3,658 3,138 3,280 3,146 2,828
- Other real estate owned 20 22 857 1,097 1,662
Total non-performing assets $ 3678 $ 3,160 $ 4137 $ 4,243 $ 4,490
Total non-performing assets as a
percentage of total assets 0.50% - 0.45% 0.66% 0.76% 0.79%
Total non-performing loans as a percentage
of total loans 1.01% 0.88% 1.00% 0.97% 0.87%

Total non-performing loans increased from $3.138 million at December 31, 2002 to $3.658 million at December 31, 2003,
a $520 thousand increase. Non-performing loans as a percent of total loans outstanding totaled 1.01% at December 31,
2003, as compared to 0.88% at December 31, 2002. The net increase in non-performing loans was primarily due to the
inclusion of one agricultural loan totaling $1.425 million placed on non-accrua! status during the first quarter of 2003 and
the foreclosure and removal of an unrelated agricultural loan totaling $747 thousand at December 31, 2002. At
December 31, 2003, two loans, the $1.425 million agricultural loan mentioned above and a $761 thousand loan made to a
high-tech manufacturing company (70% guaranteed by the United States Department of Agricuiture), comprised $2.186
million or 60% of the non-accrual loans outstanding.

Other Real Estate Owned and Repossessed Assets. Other Real Estate Owned (“OREO”) consists of properties formerly
pledged as collateral on loans which have been acquired by the Company through foreclosure proceedings or acceptance
of a deed in lieu of foreclosure. OREOQ is carried at the lower of the recorded investment in the loan or the fair value of the
real estate, less estimated costs to sell. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 we held one property in OREQ
totaling $20 thousand and $22 thousand respectively.

Potential Problem Loans. In addition to non-performing loans, we have identified through normal credit review procedures,
$7.854 million of potential problem foans at December 31, 2003. By comparison, at December 31, 2002 potential problem
loans totaled $7.106 million. Potential problem loans are loans that are currently performing, but where known information
about possible credit problems of the related borrowers causes management to have doubts as to the ability of such
borrowers to comply with the present loan repayment terms and which may result in disclosure of such loans as non-
performing at some time in the future. Potential problem loans are typically loans that are performing but are classified by
our loan rating system as “substandard.” Management cannot predict the extent to which economic conditions may
worsen or other factors which may impact borrowers and the potential problem loans. Accordingly, there can be no
assurance that other loans will not become 90 days or more past due, be placed on non-accrual status, become
restructured, or require increased allowance coverage and provision for loan losses.

{oan Concentrations. At December 31, 2003 we had outstanding $29.2 million of loans or 45% of the Company'’s. total
equity capital to borrowers who operate in the hotel / motel industry. The hotel / motel properties that we finance are
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geographically dispersed throughout our market area and the broader statewide region. The Bank’s Board of Directors
has established a specific exposure guideline for this industry of 50% of the Bank's total equity capital, which at
December 31, 2003 was $32.2 million.

At December 31, 2003 we also held $18.2 miliion of loans secured by commercial rental properties. The portfolio is
comprised of i diverse group of properties and borrowers. - The average ioan size for each of these borrowings is
approximately $325 thousand. Five (5) of these loans are each in excess of $1.0 million, totaling $7.728 million.

At December 31, 2003 we had $16.8 million of loans outstanding to four (4) borrowers in the convenience store / fuel
business. At December 31, 2003 none of the loans to these borrowers were rated substandard by our management.

Other areas of concentration at December 31, 2003 include $14.9 million of Ioané outstanding to automotive dealerships,
$13.9 million of loans secured by 5 or more unit resndentta! properties, and $8.2 million of loans outstanding to various
restaurants.

Summary of Loss Experience (Charge-Offs) and Allowance for Loan Losses. The following table sets forth the analysis
of the activity i the allowance for loan losses, including charge-offs and recoveries, for the periods indicated.

Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses Table:

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(Dollars in Thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $ 5,392 $ 4476 $ 4,003 $ 3,998 $ 3,458

Charge offs:

Agriculturat 147 - - - -
Residential real estate 174 93 225 559 206
Commercial real estate - - 148 - 103
Commercial 46 402 123 753 760
Consumer 1,109 926 905 722 751
Total charge offs 1,476 1,421 1,401 2,033 1,819
Recoveries:
Agricultural - 8 - - - -
Residential real estate 10 - 24 7 1
Commercial real estate - - 40 - -
Commercial 70 250 88 135 203
Consumer 188 167 181 216 235
Total recoveries 276 417 334 358 439
Net charge-offs 1,200 1,004 1,068 1,675 1,380
Provision for loan losses ‘ 1,565 : 1,920 1,540 1,680 1,920
Balance at end of year $ 5757 $ 5392 - $ 4,476 $ 4,003 $ 3,098

Ratio of net charge-offs during
the year to average loans
outstanding during the year 0.33% 0.29% 0.33% 0.51% 0.44%

Allowance for loan losses to
total loans 1.63% 1.50% 1.36% 1.23% 1.24%

Allowance for loan losses to
rion-performing loans 139% 172% 136% 127% 141%
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The allowance for loan losses increased from $5.392 million at December 31, 2002 to $5.757 million at December 31,
2003, a $365 thousand or 6.8% increase. The allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans increased slightly
during 2003, from 1.50% at December 31, 2002 to 1.63% at December 31, 2003. Management and the Board of
Directors deemed the allowance for loan losses as adequate at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003.

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses.  We allocate our allowance for loan losses among the loan categories
indicated below primarily for purposes of complying with disclosure requirements of the SEC. This allocation should not
be interpreted as a projection of (i) likely sources of future charge-offs, (i) likely proportional distribution of future charge-
offs among loan categories, or (iii) likely amounts of future charge-offs. Since management regards the allowance as a
general balance and has assigned unallocated values to categories in the table primarily for purposes of compliance with
the disclosure requirements, the amounts presented do not represent the total balance available to absorb future charge-
offs that might occur within the designated categories.

Subject to the qualifications noted above, an allocation of the allowance for loan losses by principal classification and.the
proportion of the related loan balance represented by the allocation is presented below for the periods indicated.

Loan Loss Summary Allocation Table:

At December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Percent of : Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of
Loans in Loans in Loans in Loans in Loans in

Amount of Each Amount of Each Amount of Each Amount of Each Amount of Each
Allowance Category | Allowance Category | Allowance Category | Allowance Category | Allowance Category
for Loan to Total for Loan to Total for Loan to Total for Loan to Total for Loan to Total

Dollars in Thousands Losses Loans Losses Loans Losses Loans Losses Loans Losses Loans
Agricultural $ 57 0.99% ($ 48 . 0789% $ 34 0.76% |$ 45 1.12% |$ 54 1.35%
Residential real estate (1) 545 9.47% 718 13.32% 598 13.36% 639 15.96% 483 12.08%
Commercial real estate 2,248 39.05% 2,051 38.04% 1,461 32.64% 1,447 36.15% 1,536 38.42%
Commercial 1,240 21.54% 1,234 22.89% 857 19.15% 914 22.83% 944 23.61%
Consumer 966 16.78% 1,017 18.86% 982 21.94% 689 17.21% 607 15.18%
Unaliocated 701 12.18% 324 6.01% 544 12.15% 269 6.72% 374 9.35%
Total $ 5757 100.00% [ § 5,392 100.00% | $ 4,476 100.00% |$ 4,003 100.00% !$ 3,998 100.00%

(1) Includes Home Equity Loans

Other Assets

Other Assets are comprised of Premises and Equipment, Bank-Owned Life Insurance, Goodwill, Other intangible Assets
and Other Assets. The foliowing table summarizes the change in Other Assets between December 31, 2002 and
December 31, 2003:

Table of Other Assets:
At December 31,

Dollars in Thousands ‘ 2003 2002 Change
Premises and Equipment 1§ 5721 $ 5954 § (233
Bank-Owned Life Insurance 14,405 13,766 639
Goodwill 2,682 2,682 -
Intangible Assets, Net 461 576 (115)
Other Assets 11,5624 8,660 2,864

Total Other Assets 1 $ 34793 | $ 31,638 $ 3,155

Bank-Owned Life Insurance. The cash surrender value of the life insurance at December 31, 2003 was $14.405 million,
compared to $13.766 million at December 31, 2002. The increase is attributable to an increase in the cash surrender
value of the policies between the periods totaling $639 thousand. The policies are issued by five different life insurance
companies and are issued on the lives of the Bank’s senior management.
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Goodw:// and Other Intangible Assets In F'ebruary 2002 ‘we acquired a branch in the City of Norwich, New York from a
million in goodwsll and $285 thousand in core deposn intangible in con;unctton with the branch acqwsmon No lmpalrment
of the goodwxll was deemed necessary dunng 2003 The core deposit mtang!ble is bemg amortized over 5 years.

Other Assets. Other assets increased by $2:864 mnthon from $8 660 million at December 31, 2002 to $11 524 mllhon at
December 31, 2003. During 22003 our prepaid pension .plan.asset increased by $1.157, from $3.372 million at
December 31, 2002 to $4.529 million at December 31, 2003. Most of the increase was due to a $1.700 million
contribution made to the plan during the third quarter of 2003. At December 31, 2003, interest receivable, deferred tax
assets and accounts receivable totaled $4.420 million: . By -.comparison,” these assets totaled $3.379 million at
December 31, 2002, netting an increase of $1.041 million-year over year. And finally, during the third quarter of 2003, we
placed a $253 thousand escrow deposit on a property. which will serve as the location for a new full service Bank branch
location.

Composition of Liabilities .- S
Deposits. Deposits are our pnmary fundlng source. At December 31 2003 deposits represented 87.4% of our total
liabilities, compared to 84.9% at December 31, 2002. Total deposits increased by $31.6 million or 5.7% during 2003, from
$548.1 million at December 31, 2002 to $580.6 million at December.31, 2003. Nearly -all of the growth occurred in core
deposit accounts, specifically demand deposits, personal savings and NOW accounts. Management believes that
consumers placed their investable funds in liquid bank deposit accounts during 2003 because of a perceptlon that bond
and equity investment opportunmes were limited. :

The followmg tiable mdtcates the amount of our time accounts by t|me remalnung until maturity as of December 31, 2003.
Time Accounts Maturity Table:

Maturity as of December 31, 2003

_ 3Months Over3to6 Over6to12 Over 12
Dollars in Thousands or Less - Months Months Months Total

Certificates of Deposit and Other Time

Deposits of $100,000 or more $ 19207 $ 24,009 $ 12320 $ 30,407 $ 85952
Certificates of Deposit and Other Time

Deposits less than $100,000 23,594 17,075 43,357 98,208 182,234
Total of time accounts $ 42801 $ 41084 $ 55686 $ 128615 §$ 268,188

Foreign Deposits in Domestic Offices. At December 31, 2003 we held $14.4 million of deposits from foreign depositors.
This compares to $13.8 million at December 31, 2002. The substantial majority of these deposit relationships were
acquired during 1994 when we purchased certain assets and all of the deposit liabilities from the First National Bank of
Downsville in Delaware County, New York.

Borrowings. Total borrowings decreased by $10.7 million during 2003, from $86.6 million at December 31, 2002 to $75.9
million at December 31, 2003. The decrease in borrowed funds is the result of a few factors. During 2003 we reduced
our long-term horrowings by $17.5 million from $73.3 million at December 31, 2002 to $55.8 million at December 31,
2003. Specifically, we repaid an $8.0 million FHLBNY advance in January, a $1.5 million FHLBNY advance in June, a
$500 thousand FHLBNY advance in July, $5.0 million of advances in December and $2.5 million in monthly amortizing
payments throughout the period on other FHLBNY long-term advances. In addition, treasury, tax & loan notes held for the
benefit of the U.S. Treasury Department decreased from $3.0 million at December 31, 2002 to $740 thousand at
December 31, 2003. These reductions in borrowings were offset by a $918 thousand increase in securities sold under
agreements to ‘epurchase. At December 31, 2002 securities sold under agreements to repurchase were $10.3 million, as
compared to $11.2 million at December 31, 2003. In addition, we borrowed $8.1 million of federal funds at December 31,
2003, as compared to no federal funds borrowed at December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2003 borrowed funds
represented 11.4% of our total liabilities, compared to 13.4% at December 31, 2002. See Note 8 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements contained in PART 11, liem 8, of this document for additional detail on our borrowings.

C. Resuits of Operations

a. Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002

Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented in PART I, item 8, of this document.
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Summary. Net income for 2003 was $8.713 million. This represents a $151 thousand or 1.8% increase over 2002 net
income of $8.562 million. Earnings per share increased by $0.02 per share from $0.76 per share in 2002 to $0.78 per
share in 2003. Net interest income was very flat between periods. Therefore, the increase in our earnings was primarily
due to an increase in other income, a reduction in the provision for [oan losses, and a lower provision for income taxes
offset by an increase in other expenses. More specifically, during 2003 other income increased by $407 thousand, the
provision for loan losses decreased by $355 thousand and the income tax provision was $81 thousand less in 2003 than
in 2002. The combined improvement of these items totaling $843 thousand was offset by a $693 thousand increase in
other expenses.

Return on average assets declined from 1.25% in 2002 to 1.20% in 2003. This occurred primarily because net interest
margin declined during 2003. Historically low and declining interest rates prompted significant loan refinancing activity,
reducing interest rate spreads on new loans and investments. Return on average stockholders’ equity also declined from
14.36% in 2002 to 13.67% in 2003.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income is our most significant source of revenue. During 2003 and 2002 respectively
net interest income comprised 81% and 82% of our total revenues. Therefore, the following tables including the Asset
and Yield Summary Table, the Interest Rate Table and the Rate and Vo/ume Table and the associated analytical narratuve
are important components of our results of operations.

The following table summarizes the total dollar amount of interest income from average earnings assets and the resultant
yields, as well as, the interest expense and rate paid on average interest bearing liabilities. No tax equivalent adjustments
were made for tax-exempt assets. The average balances presented are calculated using da:ly totals and averaging them
for the period indicated.
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Asset and Yield Summary Table:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2003 ‘ 2002 2001
Average Interest Average Interest. Average Interest
Outstanding Earned  Yield/ Outstanding Earned Yield /' | Outstanding Earned Yield/
Balance IPaid Rate Balance fPaid Rate Balance /Paid Rate
Earning Assets: (Dollars in thousands)

Federal funds sold and
interest bearirg deposits $ 20324 $ 1,101  3.75% 3 34,060 $ 1,495 4.39% $§ 33412 § 1853 555%
Securities (1) $ 301,502 % 13,042 4.33% $ 275643 $ 13,638 4.95% $ 206,642 $11,415 552%
Loans, Net (2} $ 352,935% 24477 6.94% $ 336,283 $ 26,503 7.88% $ 319,083 $29.025 9.10%

Total earning assets $ :683,761 $ 38,620 5.65% $ ) 645,986 $ 41,636 6.45% $ 559,137 $42293 7.56%
Non-earning assets $ 44,465 $ 41520 $ 33,661

Total assets $ 728,226 [_$ 687,506 $ 592,798

Liabilities:

Savings accounts . $ 89,088 § 792 0.89% 3 79,382 $ 1,101 1.39% $ 70,149 $ 1,403 2.00%
Money market accounts 3 30,938 - & 299 " 0.97% $ 36,548 § 537 1.47% $ 41892 § 1283 3.06%
NOW accounts $121288 $ 1351 1.11% 3 95,861 § 1,678 1.75% $ 54880 $ 1,118 2.04%
Time accounts $280,291 $§ 8,258 2.95% $ 274985 $ 9,719 3.53% $ 247,737 $12,806 5.17%
Borrowings $ 77,068 § 3,453 4.48% $ 80,129 $ 4,135 516% § 69556 $ 3,839 5.52%

Total interest .

bearing liabilities $598,673 $ 14,153 2.36% $ 566,905 $ 17,170 3.03% $ 484,214 $20,449 4.22%
Non-interest bearing
deposits $ 57,353 $ 52,652 $ 48,339
Other non-interest bearing
liabilities $ 8,454 $ 8,323 - 6,265

Total liabilities $§ 664,480 $ 627,880 $ 538,818
Shareholder’s 2quity $ 63,746 $ 59,626 $ 53,980

Total liabilities and

shareholder's equity $ 728,226 $ 687,506 $ 592,798
Net interest income =§_ 24,467 ~_$24468 $21,844
Net interest rate spread (3) ' ‘ 3.29% B 3.42% 3.34%
Net earning assets . $ 85088 . - L% 79081 . $ 74923
Net interest margin (4) 3.58% ; 3.79% _3.91%
Ratio of earning assets to
interest bearing liabilities 114.21% | 113.95% | 11547%

(1) Securities are shown at average amortized cost with net unrealized gains or losses on securities available-for-sale
included as a component of non-earning assets. ‘

(2) Average net loans equal average total lcans less the average allowance for loan losses. However, for purposes of
these computations, non-accrual loans are included in average loan balances outstanding.

(3) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning assets and
the weighted average cost of interest-bearing liabilities.

(4) The net interest margin, also known as the net yield on average mterest—eammg assets, represents net interest income
as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.
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Net interest income was flat period over period, increasing by only $1 thousand from 2002 to 2003. More specifically, net
interest income was $24.467 million in 2003 as compared to $24.466 million in 2002. Although net interest margin
declined by 0.21% between the periods from 3.79% in 2002 to 3.58% in 2003, its negative impact on net interest income
was offset by growth in earning assets. The decrease in our net interest margin was primarily driven by rapidly declining
earning asset yields. Our earning asset yields declined by 0.80%, from 6.45% in 2002 to 5.65% in 2003. This occurred
because the interest rates at which we originated new loans, acquired new investment securities and sold overnight
federal funds during 2003 were significantly lower than comparable interest rates in 2002 (see comparative interest rate
table below). ‘ :

Comparative Interest Rate Table:

2003 2002
Interest Rates (1) December  September  June March December September  June March

Target Federa) Funds Rate 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75%
NYC Prime 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.25% 4.25% 4.75% | 4.75% 4.75%
90 Day Treasury Bill 0.88% 0.91% 0.81% 1.10% 1.18% 1.44% 1.66% 1.75%
6 Month Treasury Bill 0.99% 1.00% 0.82% 1.10% 1.21% 1.43% 1.68% 2.02%
1 Year Treasury Note 1.21% 1.06% 0.84% 1.16% 1.20% 1.47% 1.92% 2.57%
2 Year Treasury Note 1.84% 1.47% 1.10% 1.49% 1.59% 1.73% | 2.75% 3.58%
3 Year Treasury Note 2.31% 1.97% 1.40% 1.86% 1.94% 2.13% | 3.30% 4.18%
4 Year Treasury Note 2.77% 2.34% 1.79% 2.36% 2.37% 246% | 3.70% 4.56%
5 Year Treasury Note 3.24% 2.82% 2.16% 2.73% - 27M% |  272% 3.99% 4.81%
7 Year Treasury Note 3.68% 3.36% 2.67% 3.33% 3.21% 3.28% 4.41% 5.12%
10 Year Treasury Note 4.27% 3.94% 3.27% 3.82% 3.79% 3.68% 4.73% 5.28%
15 Year Treasury Note 4.81% 4.52% 3.89% 4.45% 4.48% 447%| 5.34% 5.81%
30 Year Treasury Note 5.08% 488% | 4.35% 4.84% 4.76% 478%| 5.13% 5.42%
Federal Housing Finance

Board National Avg. 5.79% 561% 5.68% 5.88% 6.03% 6.32% 6.62% 6.77%
Mortgage Contract Rate

(1) The above interest rates are provided to us by a third party vendor on a bi-weekly basis. The interest rates provided in the table
are obtained from the report nearest to the month-end. The Federal Housing Finance Board national average mortgage contract
rate is presented with a one-month lag.

The yield on the loan portfolio declined from 7.88% in 2002 to 6.94% in 2003. As existing loans matured and amortized
throughout 2003, they were replaced by new loans at lower rates of interest. In addition, the interest rates earned on
variable rate loans were lower in 2003 than in 2002. The prime rate and the 1-year constant maturity Treasury rate are
index rates upon which a significant amount of our variable rate loans are based. On average, these index rates were
lower in 2003 than in 2002. And finally, many large commercial and commercial real estate borrowers with fixed rate
loans renegotiated their existing loans to lower rates of interest throughout 2002 and 2003.

The average yield on the investment securities portfolio also decreased during 2003. Specifically, the investment
securities portfolio decreased from 4.95% in 2002 to 4.33% in 2003. Increased levels of mortgage refinancing activity
accelerated prepayments on our mortgage backed securities requiring that we reinvest the maturing principal dollars at
lower market yields. Additionally, the increased prepayment levels also required us to increase amortization expense on
investment securities being held with “premiums,” i.e., securities with amortized book vaiues exceeding par value, thereby
decreasing interest income and average yield. ‘

The yield on the federal funds sold and interest-bearing liabilities at other banks decreased from 4.39% in 2002 to 3.75%
in 2003. This is primarily attributable to the Federal Open Market Committee lowering its target Federal Funds rate from
1.75% through most of 2002 to 1.00% for most of 2003. In addition $8.0 million of our FDIC-insured certificates of deposit
matured during 2003 and were not replaced by earning assets with comparable yields.

While earning asset yields decreased, management was only able to decrease the cost of interest-bearing liabilities by
0.67% from 3.03% in 2002 to 2.36% in 2003. We, along with other banks and competitors, dropped deposit rates
significantly throughout the last two quarters of 2002 and the first two quarters of 2003 to offset a general decline in
interest rates, and in turn, asset yields. Management, however, found it increasingly difficuit throughout 2003 to lower
interest rates paid on deposits further as many of the Bank’s non-maturity deposit accounts, such as savings and interest-
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bearing checking accounts, were already near an interest rate floor of 0%. Accordingly, management's options to reduce
interest expense declined as interest rates decreased.

Rate and Volume Analysis. Net interest income increased by $1 thousand from $24.466 million in 2002 to $24.467 miliion
in 2003. Changes in volume increased net interest income by $1.761 million between the two periods, while changes in
rate decreased net interest income by $1.760 million. " .

The following table presents changes in interest income and interest expense attributable to changes in volume (change
in average balance multiplied by prior year rate), changes in rate (change in rate muitiplied by prior year volume), and
thenet change in net interest income. The net change attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate has been
allocated to each in proportion to the absolute dollar amount of change. " The table has not been adjusted for tax-exempt
interest. R : - ’

Rate and Volu’rie Table:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 vs. 2002 2002 vs. 2001
Rate: - Volume Total Rate Volume  Total
(In Thousands)

Earning assets:
federal funds sold and interest

hearing deposits ) $ (216) § (178) $ (394) $ (386) $ 28 $ (358)
Securities ) $ (1L714)8 1,119 & (595) $(1,191) $ 3,414 $ 2223
Loans ‘s (3,182) $ 1,155 § (2,027) $(3,878) $ 1,356 $(2,522)
Totalearning assets ~ $ (5112) $ 2096 § (3,016)  $(5455) $ 4,798 $ (657)
Interest bearing liabilities: :
Savings accounts $ 395 % (86) % 309 $ 430 $ (128) $ 302
Money market accounts $ 184 ' § 54 § 238 $ 667 $ 79 $§ 746
NOW accounts “$ 610 $ (283) $  327. $ 157 § (717) $ (560)
Time accounts $ 1619 § (157) § 1462 § 4016 $ (929) § 3,087
13orrowings $ 544 § 137 § 681 $ 250 $ (546) § (296)
Tolal interest bearing liabilities $ 3352 § (335) $ 3017 $ 5520 $ (2,241) $ 3,279
Change in net interest income $ (1,760) $ 1761 § 1 § - 65 % 2557 $ 2,622

The interest income earned on loans decrezsed by $2.027 million between the two periods, from $26.503 million in 2002
to $24.477 million in 2003. The increase in average loan volume from $336.3 miilion in 2002 to $352.9 million in 2003
contributed $1.155 million of additional interest income, whereas the reduction 'in the average loan yield decreased
interest income by $3.182 million. Average loan yields decreased by 0.94% between the two periods from 7.88% in 2002
to 6.94% in 2003. . ‘ ' '

The interest income on investment securities decreased by $595 thousand, from $13.638 million in 2002 to $13.042
million in 2003. The average volume of the investment portfolio increased significantly between periods from $275.6
million during 2002 to $301.5 million during 2003, generating $1.119 million in additional interest income. This
improvement, however, was offset by lower investment yields, which reduced interest income by $1.714 million.

The interest income on Federal funds scld and interest-bearing deposits decreased period over period. - Specifically,
interest income for these asset categories, decreased by $394 thousand, from $1.495 million in 2002 to $1.101 thousand
in 2003. A recuction in our average FDIC-insured certificate portfolio and a reduction in the federal funds rate both
contributed to thre decrease in interest income. o :

The average vclume of savings accounts ard NOW accounts increased significantly between the two periods in spite of
declining interest rates. Specifically, the average volume of savings accounts increased from $79.4 million in 2002 to
$89.1 million in 2003. Similarly, the average volume of NOW accounts increased from $95.9 miilion in 2002 to $121.3
million in 2003. Interest expense for savings and NOW accounts decreased between the two periods by $636 thousand.
Increased volume in these two deposit categories created additional interest expense of $369 thousand, while a
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significant decline in short-term interest rates allowed management to reduce the interest expense on these accounts by
$1.005 million.

Interest expense on money market accounts decreased from $537 thousand in 2002 to $299 thousand in 2003. Both a
reduction in the average volume of money market balances, as well as a reduction in the interest rate paid on money
market accounts, contributed to this reduction in interest expense.

Time account balances increased slightly between the two years. The average outstanding balance of time accounts
during 2003 was $280.3 million, as compared to $275.0 million during 2002. Accordingly, interest expense due to volume
for time accounts only increased $157 thousand period over period. By comparison, a substantiai decrease in interest
rates allowed management to lower certificate of deposit rates, saving $1.619 million of interest expense period over
period. The net interest expense savings due to time account balances equaled $1.462 million.

interest expense for borrowings decreased from $4.135 million in 2002 to $3.453 million in 2003. The $681 thousand
decrease in interest expense for borrowings is attributable to both a reduction in borrowings outstanding and a decrease
in average barrowing costs.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses for 2003 was $1.565 million, as compared to $1.920 million in
2002, a $355 thousand or 18.5% decrease. The provision for loan losses decreased in 2003, as compared to 2002 due to
a significant decrease in delinquent loans, a relatively stable level of net charge-offs, and a stable level of specifically
identified inherent losses in the loan portfolio. Delinquent loans (those 30 or more days past due) as a percent of total
loans outstanding averaged 1.49% during 2003, as compared to 2.13% during 2002. Management attributes the
improvement in delinquency levels to implementation of an improved consumer credit identification and management
system established in 2001. Net charge-offs remained relatively stable between 2003 and 2002. Net charge-offs in 2003
were $1.200 million in 2003 or 0.33% of average loans outstanding. By comparison, net charge-offs in 2002 were $1.004
million or 0.29% of average loans outstanding. While the level of non-performing loans increased slightly period to period,
the loans that were transferred to non-accrual status during 2003 were adequately reserved for in the altowance for loan
losses prior to transfer to non-accrual status. The provision for loan losses as a percentage of average total loans
outstanding was 0.44% for 2003, as compared to 0.57% for 2002.

Non-Interest income. Nori-interest income is comprised of trust fees, service charges on deposit accounts, commission
income, investment security gains / (losses), other service fees and other income. Non-interest income increased from
$5.264 million in 2002 to $5.671 million in 2003. This represents a 7.7% or $407 thousand increase. The most significant
reason non-interest income increased period over period is due to the increase in the realized gains on the sale of
available for sale investment securities.

Total trust fees decreased slightly in 2003. Specifically, trust fees totaled $1.416 million in 2002, as compared to $1.383
million in 2003, a $33 thousand or 2.3% decrease. The decrease in trust fees was due to a slight reduction in the average
market value and account income in 2003, versus 2002, at the time fees were charged. The sharp increase in the period
end market vaiue of trust accounts between December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003 was due to a single Trust that
was funded during December 2003. No fees were charged on this account in 2003.

Service charges on deposit accounts declined from $1.583 million in 2002 to $1.457 million in 2003, a $126 thousand or
8.0% decrease. During the second haif of 2002, the Bank removed certain service fee charges on its business checking
accounts in an effort to remain competitive and retain customers. This led to a reduction in service fee income generated
on these accounts.

Commission income from the Bank’s insurance policy sales activities remained fairly flat at $434 thousand for 2003, as
compared to $428 thousand for 2002. )

During 2003 we netted pre-tax realized gains of $808 thousand on the call and sale of investment securities. This
represents a $320 thousand increase over 2002 when net pre-tax realized gains were $488 thousand. During 2003 we
sold $9.6 million of long term corporate bonds -and $1.8 million of mortgage-backed securities and had an additional
$145.7 million in municipal, government agency and mortgage-backed securities available for sale and held to maturity
securities mature or be called as interest rates declined. The corporate securities were sold because management
believed it was prudent to reduce the credit risk, lock-in gains and shorten the duration of the available for sale investment
securities portfolio while interest rates were at or near 40-year lows. The long-term corporate bonds were sold in
particular because of their sensitivity to market value decline in an increasing interest rate environment.

The income related to the increase in the cash value of bank-owned life insurance increased from $563 thousand in 2002
to $640 thousand in 2003, a $77 thousand increase. The increase was primarily due to the purchgse of three additional
policies, totaling $2.5 million in premium, which occurred during the fourth quarter of 2002. The policies were purchased
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to finance the benefit expense associated with the Company’s implementation of a supplemental executive retirement
plan (“SERP").

Other service fees are comprised of numerous types of fee income, including merchant credit card processing fees,
residential mcrtgage origination fees, official check and check cashing fees, travelers check sales, wire transfer fees,
letter of credi: fees and other miscellaneous service charges, tommissions and fees. Other service fees decreased
from$404 thousand in 2002 to-$325 thousand in 2003, a $79 thousand decrease. The reduction in other service fees was

primarity due to the loss of one sxgmﬂcant merchant credit card processing account offset by a shght increase in letter of
credit fees. :

Other income is comprised of numerous types of fee income, including investment services, lease income, safe deposit
box income, rental of foreclosed real estate, and income related to the securities held for our executive deferred
compensation plan. Other income increased from $382 thousand in 2002 to $624 thousand in 2003, a $242 thousand or
63.4% increase. The income related to the Bank's securities held by the executive deferred compensation plan increased
by $469 thousand, from a loss of $205 thousand in 2002 to a gain of $264 thousand in 2003 due to improved returns on
these securities. Income related to the Bank’s investment in New York Bankers Title Agency East increased by $34
thousand, from $34 thousand in 2002 to $68 thousand in 2003. These improvements were offset by a $64 thousand
reduction in other real estate owned (foreclosed property) rental income due to sale of a foreclosed rental property in
November 2002; a reduction.in investmeni service fee income of $47 thousand; a reduction in the New York 'Bankers
Insurance Trust dividend payments of 362 thousand; a $24 thousand decrease in lease income; a $25 thousand
insurance clairn paid'in 2002 only, and other. mlscellaneous vtems totaling $39 thousand.

Non-Interest Expense. Non mterest expenses are comprised of salary and employee benefit expense, occupancy
expense, furniture and equipment expense, computer service fees, advertising and marketing expense, professional fees,
and other expense. Total non-interest expenses nncreased from $15.890 miltion in 2002 to $16.583 million in 2003, a
$693 thousand or 4.4% increase.

Salaries and benefits expense. increased by $169 thousand or 1.6%, from $10.345 million in 2002 to $10.514 million in
2003. New staff salaries and wage increases increased salary expense by $158 thousand period to period. The Bank's
defined benefit pension plan benefit expense increased by $317 thousand year over year due to a decrease in investment
returns on plan assets and a-reduction in-the discount rate used to calculate the Bank’s future benefit obligation during
2001 and 2002. Other miscellaneous benefit programs including group life insurance expenses increased benefit costs
by $72 thousand period to period. These increases were offset by a significant reduction in other benefits expense. In
2002 we recorded an expense totaling $541 thousand for the SERP for Messrs. Whittet and Moyer. The expense related
to these agreernents was $163 thousand in 2003, a $378 decrease.

Net occupancy expense totaled $1.360 million in 2003 as compared to $1.158 million in 2002, a $202 thousand or 17.4%
increase. Incr2ases in snow removal and utility expenses related to a cold winter in the first-half of 2003, as well as
general.i lncreases in lnsurance cost and property taxes were responsible for the increased occupancy expense

Furniture and iquipment expense remalned relatwely unchanged between 2002 and 2003. Furmture and equnpment
expense was $303 thousand in 2003 as compared to $810 thousand in 2002.

Computer service fees, advemsmg and marketing expense and professronal fees all increased during 2003. On a
combined basis these expenses totaled $1.150 million in 2003 as compared to $905 thousand in 2002, a $245 thousand
or 27% increase. Professional fees increased by $134 thousand from 2002 to 2003, primarily due to fees paid to legal
advisors and our primary external auditor for the listing of the Company’s stock on the American Stock Exchange and the
associated registration with the Securities anid Exchange Commission. :

Other expenses increased from $2.673 million in 2002 to $2.756 million in 2003, an $83 thousand or 3.1% increase. The
expense related to the Bank’s executive deferred compensation plan increased by $469 thousand, from a gain of $205
thousand in 2002 to an expense of $264 thousand in 2003.  This increase was offset by a $141 thousand reduction in
expenses associated with managing foreclosed property; a $114 thousand decrease on the loss associated with the
disposal of assats; a $78 thousand reduction in expenses related to servicing the Bank’s accounts receivable financing
program; and a $73 thousand decrease in telephone expense. Other miscellaneous expenses increased (net) $20
thousand from 22002 to 2003.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense decreased from $3.358 million in 2002 to $3.277 million in 2003, an $81 thousand

decrease. The decrease in the income tax expense is primarily due to an increase in tax-exempt income, for state and
municipal investment securities and an increase in the income related to bank-owned life insurance.
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b. Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001

Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented in PART Il, Item 8, of this document.

General. Net Income for 2002 was $8.562 million, compared to $8.046 million in 2001, a $516 thousand improvement.
This represented earnings per share of $0.76 for 2002 and $0.71 for 2001. The improvement in net income was largely
driven by improvements in Net Interest Income of $2.622 million and Non Interest Income of $430 thousand offset by
increases in the provision for loan losses, non-interest expenses and the income tax provision. Return on average. assets
declined from 1.36% in 2001 to 1.25% in 2002. This occurred because net interest margin declined during 2002,
Historically low and declining interest rates prompted significant loan refinancing activity, reducing interest rate spreads on
new loans and investments. Return on average stockholders’ equity also declined from 14.91% in 2001 to 14.36% in
2002. This primarily occurred because average stockholders’ equity increased by $5.6 million or 10.5% durmg 2002 while
net income only increased by $516 thousand or 6.4%. ‘

Net interest income. Net interest income increased from $21.8 million in 2001 to $24.5 million in 2002. This increase was
primarily driven by asset growth, not by significant improvements in net. interest spread. Average earning assets
increased by 15.5% or $86.8 million from $559.1 million during 2001 to $646.0 million during 2002..

The yield on the loan portfolio. declined significantly during 2002.. Specifically, the yield on the loan portfolio was 9.10% in
2001, as compared to 7.88% in 2002. This occurred for two primary reasons. - First, as mortgage, consumer and
commercial loan rates decreased throughout the period, many borrowers refinanced or repaid. their existing loans and
secured new loans at much lower interest rates. Second, the yield on the Bank’s vanable rate loans, which are prsmanly
tied to the Prime rate, declined steadily throughout 2001 and 2002.

Similar to the Ioan portfolio, the investment portfolio also experienced lower yields in 2002 than in 2001. Specifically the
investment portfolio yield decreased from 5.52% in 2001 to 4.95% in 2002. Increased levels of mortgage financing activity
accelerated prepayments on our mortgage backed securities requiring that we reinvest the maturing principal dollars at
jower market yields. Additionally, the increased prepayment levels also required us to increase amortization expense on
investment securities being held with “premiums,” i.e., securities with amortized cost exceeding par value.

A decrease in the yleld on the federal funds sold and interest- bearmg liabilities at other banks is pnmanly attnbuted toa
lower average Federal Funds earnings rate durmg 2002.

The cost of total interest-bearing liabilities declined from 4.22% in 2001 to 3. 03% in 2002 due to a dechmng national
interest rate environment throughout 2001 and 2002. We, along with other banks and competitors, dropped deposit rates
significantly throughout 2001 and 2002 to offset a general decline in asset yields.

Rate and Volume Analys;s. In 2002 net lnterest income increased $2.622 mullnon a 12% increase over 2001,
Approximately 97% of this increase is attributable to the increased volume of earning assets. Specifically, the increase in
total earning asset volumes contributed $4.798 million of additional interest income, while the increase in interest bearing
liabilities due to changes in volume only increased interest expense by $2.241 million. By comparison, the reduction in
net interest income due to changes in interest rates totaled $65 thousand. interest income on earning assets declined by
$5.455 million due to changes in interest rates, while interest expense on interest bearing liabilities declined by $5.520
million due to changes in interest rates.

Although interest rates declined during 2002 (see interest rate table below), the Bank’s management was able to slightly
improve net interest rate spread by reducing funding costs throughout the year.. However, without the volume increases in
investment securities, loans and other earning assets, net interest income would likely have remained relatively
unchanged.

oy
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interest Rate Table:

2002 2001 Change
) : . , Dec. 2001 to
irterest Rates (1) . Dacember September June March  December Dec. 2002

Target Federal Funds Rate | : 1.25% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% -0.50%
NYC Prime o 4.25% 4.75% 4.75% 4.75% 4.75% -0.50%
90 Day Treasury Bill 1.18% 1 1.44% 1.66% 1.75% 1.67% -0.49%
6 Month Treasury Bil) S 1.21% 1.43% 1.68% 2.02% 1.77% -0.56%
1 Year Treasury Note : 1.20% 1.47% 1.92% 2.57% 2.07% -0.87%
2 Year Treasury Note 1.59% 1.73% 2.75% 3.58% 2.66% -1.07%
3 Year Treasury Note 1.94% 213% 3.30% 4.18% 3.74% -1.80%
4 Year Treasury Note 2.37% 2.46% 3.70% 4.56% 4.26% -1.89%
5 Year Treasury Note 2.711% 2.72% 3.99% 481% 4.52% -1.81%
7 Year Treasury Note - 3.21% 3.28% 4.41% 5.12% 4.99% -1.78%
10 Year Treasury Note 3.79% 3.68% 4.73% 5.28% 5.20% -1.41%
15 Year Treasury Note 4.48% 4.47% 5.34% 5.81% 5.78% -1.30%
30 Year Treasury Note 4.76% 4.78% 5.13% 5.42% 5.52% -0.76%
;eafgfa'I*/'\"v:'f_‘“M%r";é”:g“:‘éf:t?:ét Rate| 693% | 632% | 662% | 677% | 6.56% -0.53%

(1) The above interest rates are provided to us by i third party vendor on a bi-weekly basis. The interest rates provided in.the table are
obtained from the report nearest to the month-end. The Federal Housing Finance Board national average mortgage contract rate is
presented with a one-month lag.

Provision for Loan Losses. During 2002 the provision for loan losses increased to $1.92 million, as compared to $1.54
million in 2001. The provision for loan losses ‘as a percentage of average loans outstanding was 0.48% in 2001, as
compared to 0.57% in 2002. Although net loan charge-offs and non-performing loans remained reiatively unchanged from
2001 to 2002, we determined it was advisable to increase the provision for loan losses because the total loans
outstanding increased by $28.8 million or 8.72% period over period and the level of inherent risk of loss in our loan
portfolio increased. Specifically, management increased the allowance for loan losses during 2002 because:

(i) The number of loans outside of our primary market area has increased. During 2002 loans outstanding
originated by our Binghamton loan production office increased by $19.5 mitlion.

(i) The number of approved large loans {over $1.0 million) increased from $71.2 million outstanding at
December 31, 2001 to $87.1 million nutstanding at December 31, 2002.

(i) And, commercial and commercial real estate loans outstanding, which are typically larger and have more risk
than consumer and residential real estate loans, have increased in each of the last 5 years. Commercial and
commercial real estate loans cornbined-increased from $212.8 million at December 31, 2001 to $230.4
million at December 31, 2002.

Non-interest Income. Non-interest income is comprised of trust fees, service charges on deposit accounts, commission
income, investment security gains/(losses), other service fees and other income. Non-interest income increased from
$4.834 million in 2001 to $5.264 million in 2002, a $430 thousand or 8.9% increase. The most significant reason non-
interest income increased period over period was due to the increase in the realized gains on the sale of available for sale
investment securities.

Although the total market value of assets managed by our trust department declined by 11.5% from $292.2 million at
December 31, 2001 to $258.7 million at December 31, 2002, total trust fees remained relatively unchanged from 2001 to
2002. Specifically, trust fees totaled $1.416 million in 2002, as compared to $1.422 million in 2001. Lower levels of
recurring service fees in 2002, which are based both on the market value of the account and income generated by the
account, were offset by an increase in estate settlement fees and trust termination fees. Estate settiement and trust
termination fees totaled $241 thousand in 2002, as compared to $170 thousand in 2001, a $71 thousand increase. .

Service charges on deposit accounts remained relatively unchanged from 2001 to 2002. In 2002, service charges on

deposit accounts were $1.583 million, as compared to $1.603 million in 2001. A reduction in service charges for checking
and NOW accounts from 2001 to 2002 was offset by an increase in penalty charges and ATM fees.
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Commissions income increased from $336 thousand in 2001 to $428 thousand in 2002, a $92 thousand or 27% increase.
The increase is due to additional insurance policy sales through the Bank's insurance agency subsidiary Mang-Wilber
LLC.

During 2002 we sold available-for-sale investment securities netting pre-tax realized gains of $488 thousand. This
represents a $209 thousand increase over 2001 when net pre-tax realized gains were $279 thousand. Net realized gains
on the matured, called and sold securities totaling $738 thousand, were partially offset by .a $250 thousand write-down of
an equity investment held by the Company. Specifically, during 2002 we soid $21.2 million of available-for-sale securities,
primarily corporate bonds and Treasury bonds. The corporate bonds were sold in anticipation of credit rating downgrades
and Treasury securities were sold to improve the current investment portfolio yield. in addition, during 2002 we had $57.3
million of available for sale and held to maturity securities mature or be calied primarily the result of a declining interest
rate environment.

Bank-owned life insurance income increased $218 thousand from $345 thousand in 2001 to $563 thousand in 2002 due
to an improvement in insurance policy crediting rates in the third quarter of 2001 (on existing policies) and new income on
policies purchased during 2002.

Other service fees were $404 thousand in 2002, as compared to $341 thousand in 2001, a $63 thousand or 18.5%
increase. During 2002 merchant credit card processing income increased $47 thousand, from $126 thousand in 2001 to
$173 thousand in 2002 due to the increased sales of one significant customer.

Other income was $382 thousand in 2002. This compares to $508 thousand in 2001, a $126 thousand or 33% decrease.
Due to poor market performance, during 2002 the income related to the Bank’s securities held by the executive deferred
compensation plan decreased by $115 thousand, from a loss of $90 thousand in 2001 to a loss of $205 thousand in 2002.
In addition, rental income on the Bank’s other real estate owned (foreclosed property) decreased by $108 thousand in
2002 due to lower occupancy levels at one multi-unit rental property sold in November 2002. Rental income was $177
thousand in 2001 as compared to $69 thousand in 2002. In addition, investment services income was $146 thousand in
2001, as compared to $107 thousand in 2002, a $39 thousand decrease. And finally, commissions from the Bank’s
official check vendor decreased $31 thousand in 2002 as compared to 2001. These reductions were offset by increases
in lease income totaling $96 thousand; increased revenue from our titie agency investment, New York Bankers' Title
Agency East, LLC totaling $20 thousand; increased dividends from the New York Bankers Insurance Trust totaling $23
thousand; an insurance claim reimbursement totaling $25 thousand; and other miscellaneous items totaling $3 thousand.

Non-interest Expense. Total non-interest expenses increased from $13.945 million in 2001 to $15.890 million in 2002, a
$1.945 million or 13.9% increase. The substantial growth in non-interest expenses is primarily due to significant increases
in salary and benefits expense related to expansionary activities and increases in benefit costs.

Salaries and benefits expense increased from $8.191 million in 2001 to $10.345 miltion in 2002, a $2.154 million or 26.3%
increase. Our expansionary activities resulted in substantial staff increases between the second quarter of 2001 and the
first quarter of 2002. Specifically, we established a loan production office in Binghamton, NY during May 2001, opened
the Norwich (NY) Town branch in November 2001, and acquired the Norwich (NY) City branch in February 2002. in
addition, the expense related to the “phantom stock” component of the executive's deferred compensation plan increased
by $285 thousand from $746 thousand in 2001 te $1.031 million in 2002 as a result of a $2.38 per share or 29.2%
increase in the trading price of the Company’s common stock. Under this plan, executives may defer portions of their
compensation, and, if elected by the executives, deferred amounts can be indexed to the financial performance of the
Company's common stock. Since no actual shares of stock are purchased by the plan and the common stock of the
Company is used solely as an index to periodically determine the value of the deferred amounts for each executive in the
plan, it is referred to as “phantom stock.” iIncreases and decreases in the related deferred amounts were determined
based upon changes in the trading price of the Company’s stock. The remainder of the salary expense was due to
additional staff, pay increases and incentive compensation.

Benefit costs also increased substantially. In December 2002 we accrued $541 thousand of other benefit expense related
to the approval of “SERPs” for two senior executives. In addition our defined benefit pension plan expense increased by
$313 thousand in 2002, from a benefit of $86 thousand in 2001 to an expense of $226 thousand in 2002 because of a
decrease in the investment returns on plan assets and changes in discount rate assumptions used for calculating future
benefit payments. And finally, health insurance costs on our partially self-insured medical plan increased by $116
thousand from $532 thousand in 2001 to $648 thousand in 2002.

Net occupancy expense and furniture and fixture expense did not vary significantly from 2001 to 2002. Total expenses in
these expense categories were $1 968 million in 2002, as compared to $1.760 million in 2001, a $208 thousand or 11.8%
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increase. The increase in these costs was primarily associated with our expansion activities in Binghamton and Norwich,
New York.

Computer service fees, advertising and marketing expense and professional fees totaled $1.044 million in 2001, as
compared to $904 thousand in 2002, a $140 thousand decrease. Decreases in professional fees and advertising and
marketing totaling $175 thousand, were pariially offset by a $35 thousand increase in computer service fees. Professional
fees decreased by $88 thousand in 2002, as compared to 2001 due to the non-recurrence of certain consulting fees
recorded in 2001. ’

Other expenses decreased from $2.950 millicn in 2001 to $2.673 million in 2002, a $277 thousand or 9.4% decrease. In
2001 the bank recorded a loss associated with a check kiting fraud totaling. $462 thousand. A similar loss was notincurred
in 2002. Other miscellaneous expenses increased (net) $185 thousand from 2001 to 2002.

Income Taxes. The provisions for federal and state income taxes totaled $3.358 million and $3.147 million for 2002 and
2001, respectively. The tax provision increased due to an increase in pre-tax income, while the effective income tax rates
for 2002 and 2001 remained level at 27.8%. The use of tax exempt instruments and tax advantaged entities is the
primary reason we maintain an effective tax rate below the statutory Federal and New York State tax rates.

D. Liquidity

Liquidity describes our ability to meet financiat obligations in the normal course of business. Liquidity is primarily needed
to meet the borrowing and deposit withdrawal requirements of our customers and to fund our current and planned
expenditures. We are committed to maintaining a strong liquidity position. Accordlngly, we monitor our liquidity position
on a daily basis through our daily funds management process. This includes:

(i) maintaining the appropriate levels of currency throughout our branch system to meet the daily cash needs
of our customers,

(i) balancing our mandated deposit or “reserve” requvrements at the Federal Reserve Bank of New York,

(iii) maintaining adequate cash balances at the FHLBNY and other correspondent banks, and

(iv) assuring adequate levels of Federal Funds sold, liquid assets, and borrowing resources are available to
meet obligations including reasonably anticipated daily fluctuations.

In ‘addition to the daily funds management process, we also monitor certain liquidity ratios and complete a liquidity
assessment every 90 days to estimate current and future sources and uses of liquidity. The 90-day sources and uses
assessment is reviewed by our Asset and Liability Committee. The committee, based on this assessment and other data,
determines our future funding or investment needs and strategies. The following list represents the sources of funds
available to meet our liquidity requirements. Our primary sources of funds are denoted by an asterisk (*).

"Source of Funding
« Currency”
» Federal Reserve and Correspondent Bank Balances*
* Federal Funds Sold*
* Loan and Investment Principal and Interest Payments*
« Investment Security Maturities and Calls”
* Demand Deposits & NOW Accounts®
» Savings & Money Market Deposits*
» Certificates of Deposit and Other Time Deposnts
* Repurchase Agreements”
» FHLBNY Advances / Lines of Credit*.
« Sale of Available for Sale Investment Securities
* Brokered Deposits
« Correspondent Lines of Credit
« Fed. Reserve Discount Window Borrowings
+ Sale of Loans
+ Proceeds from Issuance of Equity Securities
» Branch Acguisition -

At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we maintained adequate levels of I|qU|d|ty. The following table
summarizes several of our key fiquidity measures for the penods stated:
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Table of Liquidity Measures:

Liquidity Measure December 31,
Dollars in Thousands 2003 2002
Cash and Cash Equivalents $19,890 $47.064
Available for Sale Investment Securities at

Estimated Fair Value less Securities pledged $106,933 $88,377
for State and Municipal Deposits

Total Loan to Total Asset Ratio 49.5% 50.5%
FHLBNY Remaining Borrowing Capacity $18,314 $11,409
Correspondent Bank Lines of Credit $10,000 $10,000

In addition to the above liquidity measures, at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, we had $14.4 million, and
$13.8 million respectively, of cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance. These policies couid be terminated and
surrendered for cash upon our demand.

In the opinion of management, the Bank’s liquidity position was strong in both periods. A steady improvement in the
Bank’s liquidity position can be primarily attributed to increases in deposits including the acquisition of the City of Norwich
branch in February 2002. As mentioned above, total deposits increased steadily between periods. Specifically, total
deposits increased by $31.5 million or 5.7% between December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003, while total loans
outstanding increased by only $2.6 million for the same period. Available for sale investment securities at estimated fair
value less securities pledged for state and municipal deposits increased by $18.6 million between December 31, 2002
and December 31, 2003. This increase was driven by the increase in consumer deposits and subsequent purchase of
available for sale investment securities. The substantial majority of these unencumbered available for sale securities are
highly liquid and could be sold immediately to meet our anticipated or unanticipated loan and other funding requirements.

Our commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit increased by $12.1 million or 28% from $47.0 million at
December 31, 2002 to $59.1 million at December 31, 2003. Although the amount of these commitments increased by
$12.1 million, in management’s opinion it will not have a significant impact on our liquidity position. Our experience
indicates that draws on the commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit do not fluctuate significantly.

Deposit flows and loan and investment prepayment activity are affected by the level of interest rates, the interest rates
and products offered by competitors, and other factors. Based on our deposit retention experience, anticipated levels of
regional economic activity, particularly moderate levels of loan demand within our primary market area, and current pricing
strategies, we anticipate that we will have sufficient levels of liquidity to meet our current funding commitments. Also,
expected principal payments, principal prepayments, and interest payments from the Bank’s loan and investment
portfolios increased between periods due to a lower interest rate environment and higher levels of mortgage refinancing
activity. During 2002 the proceeds from the maturity of investment securities, both held to maturity and available for sale,
was $57.3 miltion. By comparison, during 2003 the proceeds from the maturity of investment securities in both categories
were $145.7 million.

E. Capital Resources and Dividends

The maintenance of appropriate capital levels is a management priority. Overall capital adequacy is monitored on an
ongoing basis by our management and reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors. Our principal capital planning goal is
to provide an adequate return to shareholders while retaining a sufficient capital base to provide for future expansion and
comply with all regulatory standards.

At December 31, 2003 stockholders’ equity was $64.3 million, a $1.142 million or 1.8% increase over December 31, 2002
shareholders’ equity of $63.2 million. The increase was due to an increase in retained earnings of $4.604 million offset by
a $2.970 million reduction in other comprehensive income and a $492 thousand increase in Treasury stock.

From time to time the Company has repurchased outstanding common stock from its shareholders. These shares were
recorded as Treasury Stock on the Company's Balance Sheet and are provided in the Consolidated Financial Statements
in PART I, Item 8, of this statement. The Company’s management has been provided authority to re-purchase common
shares into Treasury within fimits prescribed by the Board of Directors. These limits have been set by the Board of
Directors based upon the Company’s capital ratio. Given the Company’s financial condition, the Board of Directors has
attempted to maintain a total capital to total assets ratio of 8.0% to 9.0%. At December 31, 2003 managemgnt diq not
have any authority to re-purchase its common shares into Treasury. = Any future stock repurchase activities wlll .be
approved by the Board of Directors and will be designed to comply with applicable Securities and Exchange Commission
and American Stock Exchange rules. |
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The Company and the Bank are both subject to regulatory capital guidelines. Under these guidelines, as established by
federal bank regulators, to be adequately capitalized, the Company and the Bank must both maintain the minimum ratio
of "Tier 1" capital to risk-weighted assets at 4.0% and the minimum ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.0%.
Tier 1 capital is comprised of shareholders’ equity, less intangible assets and accumulated other comprehensive income.
Total capital, for this risk-based capital standard, includes Tier 1 capital plus the Company’s allowance for loan losses.
Similarly, for the Bank to be considered “well capitalized,” it must maintain a Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of 6.0%
and a total capi:al to risk-weighted assets ratio of 10.00%. The Company and the Bank exceeded all capital adequacy
and well capitalized guidelines at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002. Additional details are set forth in Note 13
of the Company's consolidated financial statements located in PART Il, item 8, of this document.

The principal source of funds for the payment of shareholder dividends by the Company has been dividends declared and
paid to the Company by its subsidiary bank. There are various legal and regulatory limitations applicable to the payment
of dividends to the Company by its subsidiaries as well as the payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
As of December 31, 2003, under this statutory limitation, the maximum amount that could have been paid by the Bank
subsidiary to the Company, without special regulatory approval, was approximately $10.2 million. The ability of the
Company and the Bank to pay dividends in the future is and will continue to be influenced by regulatory policies, capital
guidelines and applicable laws. :

See Item 5 of this statement, "Market Price of and Dividends on the Registrant’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters,” for a recent history of the Company's cash dividend payments.

ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our business activities generate market risk. Market risk is the possibility that changes in future market conditions,
including rates and prices, will reduce earnings and. make the Company less valuable. We are primarily exposed to
market risk through changes in interest rates. This risk is called Interest Rate Risk and is an inherent component of risk
for all banks. The risk occurs because we pay interest on deposits and borrowed funds at varying rates and terms, while
receiving interest income on loans and investments with different rates and terms. As a result, our earnings and the
market value of assets and liabilities are subject to potentially significant fluctuations as interest rates rise and fall. Our
objective is to minimize the fluctuation in Net Interest Margin and Net Interest income caused by anticipated and
unanticipated chianges in interest rates.

Ultimately, the Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring and managing market and interest rate risk.
The Board accomplishes this objective by annually reviewing and approving an Asset and Liability Management Policy,
which establishes broad risk limits and delegates responsibility to carry out asset and liability oversight and control to the
Directors’ Loan znd Investment Committee and management’s Asset and Liability Committee ("“ALCO").

We manage a few different forms of Interest Rate Risk. The first is mismatch risk, which involves the mismatch of
maturities of fixed rate assets and liabilities. The second is basis risk. Basis risk is the risk associated with non-correlated
changes in different interest rates. For example, we price many of our adjustable rate commercial loans {an asset) using
the Prime Rate as a basis, while some of our deposit accounts (a liability) are tied to Treasury security yields. in a given
timeframe, the Prime rate might decrease 2% while a particular Treasury security might only decrease 1%. If this were to
occur, our yield on Prime based commercial foans would decrease by 2%, while the cost of deposits might only decrease
by 1% negatively affecting Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin. The third risk is option risk. Option risk generally
appears in the form of prepayment volatility on residential mortgages, commercial and commercial real estate loans,
consumer loans, mortgage backed securities, and callable agency or municipal investment securities. The Bank's
customers generally have alternative financing sources (or options) to refinance their existing debt obligations with other
financial institutions. When interest rates decrease, many of these customers exercise this option and refinance at other
institutions and prepay their loans with us, forcing us to reinvest the prepaid funds in lower yielding investments and loans.
The same type of refinancing activity also accelerates principal payments on mortgage-backed securities held by the
Bank. Municipal investment securities and agency securities are issued with specified call dates and call prices and are
typically exercised by the issuer when interest rates on comparable maturity securities are lower than the current coupon
rate on the security. '

Measuring and managing interest rate risk is @ dynamic process that the Bank’s management must continually perform to
meet the objective of maintaining stable Net Interest income and Net Interest Margin. This means that prior {o setting the
term or interest -ate on loans or deposits, or before purchasing investment securities or borrowing funds, management
must understand the impact that altern.atlve interest rates will have on the Bank’s interest rate risk profile. This is
accomplished through simulation modeling. Simutation modeling is the process of “shocking” the current Balance Sheet
under a variety of interest rate scenariocs and then measuring the impact of interest rate changes on both projected
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earnings and the market value of the Bank’s equity. The estimates underiying the sensitivity analysis are based on
numerous assumptions including, but not limited to: the nature and timing of interest rate changes, prepayments on loans
and securities, deposit decay rates, pricing decisions on loans and deposits, and reinvestment/replacement rates on asset
and liability cash flows. While assumptions are developed based on available information and current economic and local
market conditions, management cannot make any assurances as to the ultimate accuracy of these assumptions including
competitive influences and customer behavior. Accordingly, actual results will differ from those predicted by simulation
modeling. '

The following table shows the projected changes in. Net Interest Income from a parallel shift in all market interest rates.
The shift in interest rates is assumed to occur in monthly increments of 0.50% per month until the full shift is complete. In

other words, the model assumes it will take 8 months for a 3.00% shift to take place. This is also known as a “ramped”
interest rate shock. The projected changes in Net Interest Income are totals for the 12 month period beginning January 1,
2004 and ending December 31, 2004 under ramped shock scenarios. -

Interest Rate Sensitivity Table:

Interest Rates Dollars in Thousands
Projected Projected Change in
‘ Projected Projected Dollar | Percentage Change | Net Interest Income
interest Rate Prime Annualized Net Change in Net - |~ in Net Interest as a Percent of Total
Shock (1) Rate Interest Income Interest income Income Stockholders' Equity
-2.00% 2.00% $24,093 ($1,259) . -4.97% -1.96%
-1.00% 3.00% $24,937 ($415) ' -1.64% -0.65%
No change 4.00% $25,352 - - - - -
1.00% 5.00% $24,516 : ($837) - -3.30% -1.30%
2.00% 6.00% $24,935 ($417) ‘ ‘ -1.65% -0.65%
3.00% 7.00% $25,766 $414 1.63% "~ 0.64%

" (1) Under a ramped interest rate shock, interest rates are modeled to chénge at a rate of 0.50% per month.

Many assumptions are embedded within our interest rate risk model. These assumptions are approved by the Bank’s
Asset and Liability Committee and are based upon both management's experience and projections provided by
investment securities companies. Assuming our prepayment and other assumptions are accurate and assuming we take
reasonable actions to preserve Net Interest Income, we project that Net Interest Income would decline by $417 thousand
or 0.65% of total stockholders’ equity in a +2.00% ramped interest rate shock and $1 .259 million or 1.96% of total
stockholders’ equity in a —2.00% ramped interest rate shock. This is within our Asset and Liability Policy guideline, which
limits the maximum projected decrease in net interest income in a +2.00% or —2.00% ramped interest rate shock to —5.0%
of the Company’s total equity capital. ’ ‘

Our strategy for managing interest rate risk is impacted by general market conditions and customer demand. But,
generally, we try to limit the volume and term of fixed-rate assets and fixed-rate liabilities, so that we can adjust the mix
and pricing of assets and liabilities to mitigate Net lnterest Income volatility. We also purchase investments for the
securities portfolio and structure borrowings from the FHLBNY to counter-balance interest rate risk taken in the loan
portfolio. We also offer adjustable rate loan and deposit products that change as interest rates change. Approximately
22% of our Total Assets are invested in adjustable rate loans and mvestments
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ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of The Wilber Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolicdated statements of condition of The Wilber Corporation and subsidiary as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the threé-year period ended December 31, 2003. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our resporsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statemnents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, a3 well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial staternents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of The Wilber Corporation -and subsidiary as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

KPMe: LLP

Albany, New York
March 11, 2004
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The Wilber Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Condition

December 31,

dollars in thousands except share and per share data 2003 2002
Assets
Cash and Due from Banks $ 11,892 13,071
Time Deposits with Other Banks 7,998 15,993
Federal Funds Sold - 18,000
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 19,890 47,064
Securities Available-for-Sale, at Fair Value (Note 2) 275,051 234,542
Securities Held-to-Maturity, Fair Value of $44,416 at
December 31, 2003, $43,952 at December 31, 2002 (Note 2) 44,140 42,837
Loans (Note 3) 360,906 358,295
Allowance for Loan Losses (Note 4) (5,757 (5,392)
Loans, Net 355,149 352,963
Premises and Equipment, Net (Note 5) 5,721 5,954
Bank Owned Life Insurance 14,405 13,766
Goodwill (Note 6) 2,682 2,682
Intangible Assets, Net (Note 6) 461 576
Other Assets 11,524 8,660
Total Assets $ 729,023 708,984
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits:
Demand $ 61,267 53,527
Savings, NOW and Money Market Deposit Accounts 251,180 230,217
Certificates of Deposit (Over $100M) 82,847 82,192
Certificates of Deposit (Under $100M) 158,783 156,338
Other Time Deposits 26,556 26,807
Total Deposits 580,633 549,081
Borrowings (Note 8) 75,867 86,606
Other Liabilities 8,219 10,135
Total Liabilities 664,719 645,822
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common Stock, $.01 Par Value, 13,961,664 Shares Issued at

December 31, 2003, and No Par Value, 3,490,416 Shares

Issued at December 31, 2002 140 2,182
Additional Paid in Capital 4,224 2,182
Retained Earnings 79,043 74,439
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 1,272 4,242
Treasury Stock at Cost, 2,752,272 Shares at December 31, 2003

and 676,151 Shares at December 31, 2002 (20,375) (19,883)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 64,304 63,162
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 729,023 708,984

See accompanying notes ta consolidated financial statements.
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The Wilber Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Income
Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousands except share and per share data 2003 2002 2001

Interest and Dividend Income

Interest and Fees on Loans o ’ : $ 24,477 $ 26,503 $ 29,025
Interest and Dividends on Securities: . ’

U.S. Govemment and Agency Oblirgations s i - - 9,751 9,839 7,866
State and Municipal Obligations 2,198 1,992 . 2,180
Other 1,093 1,807 1,369
Interest on Federal Funds Sold and Time Deposits 1,101 1,495 1,853
Total Interest and Dividend Income 38,620 41,636 42,293

Interest Expense

Interest on Deposits:

Savings, NOW and Money Market Deposit Accounts 2,442 3,316 3,804
Certificates of Deposit (Over $100M) 2,414 2,891 3,799
Other Time 5,844 6,828 9,007
Interest on Short-Term Borrowings 116 189 406
Interest on Long-Term Borrowings 3,337 . 3,946 - 3,433
-Total Interest Expense 14,153 17,170 20,449
Net Interest Income 24,467 24,466 21,844
Provisions for Loan Losses (Note 4) - ‘ ‘ 1,565 1,920 1,540
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 22,902 22,546 20,304

Other Income

Trust Fees 1,383 1,416 1,422
Service Charges on Deposit Accounts 1,457 1,583 1,603
Commissions Income ' 434 428 1336
Investment Security Gains, Net 808 488 279
Increase in (Cash Surrender Value of Bank Owned Life Insurance . 639 552 303
Other Service Fees 325 404 341
Other Income ‘ . 625 393 550

Total Other Income : C 5,671 5,264 4,834

Other Expense

Salaries and Employee Benefits 10,514 10,345 8,191
Net Occupancy Expense of Bank Premises 1,360 1,158 914
Fumiture and Equipment Expense . 803 810 846
Computer Service Fees 305 277 242
Advertising and Marketing 436 152 439
Professional Fees 409 275 363
Other 2,756 2,673 2,950

Total Other Expense 16,583 15,890 13,945
Income Before Taxes 11,990 11,920 11,193
Income Taxzs (3,277) (3,358) (3,147)
Net Income ) $ 8,713 $ 8,562 $ 8,046
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding (1) 11,214,288 11,285,340 11,374,128
Basic Eamnings Per Share (1) 3 0.78 $ 0.76 $ 0.71

See accompanying notes to consolidated ﬁﬁancia( statements.
(1) All Share and per share information has been restated to give retroactive effect to the 4-for-1 stock split that was approved September 5, 2003,
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The Wilber Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

) Accumulated
Additional Other
» Common Paid in Retained Comprehensive Treasury
dollars in thousands except share and per share data Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total
Balance December 31, 2000 $ 2,182 $ 2,182 $ 66,083 $ (330) 3 (18,591) $ 51,526
Comprehensive Income: ' )
Net Income - - 8,046 - - 8,046
Change in Net Unrealized Gain (Loss)
on Securities, Net of Taxes : - - - 850 - 850
Total Comprehensive Income 8,896
Cash Dividends (8.35 per share) - - (3,980) - - (3,980)
Purchase of Treasury Stock (19,169 shares) - - - - (618) - (618)
Sale of Treasury Stack (100 shares) - - - - 3 3
Balance December 31, 2001 . $ 2,182 $ 2,182 $ 70,149 $ 520 $ (19,206) $ 55,827
Comprehensive Income:
Net Income . - - 8,562 - - 8,562
Change in Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) )
on Securities, Net of Taxes - - - 3,722 - 3,722
Total Comprehensive Income : 12,284
Cash Dividends ($.38 per share) - - (4,272) - - (4,272)
Purchase of Treasury Stock (20,316 shares) - - - - 677) (677)
Balance December 31, 2002 $ 2,182 $ 2182 3 74,439 $ 4,242 - § (19,883) $ 63,162
Comprehensive Income: . o ’
Net Income - - 8,713 - - 8,713
Change in Net Unrealized Gain (Loss)
on Securities, Net of Taxes - - - 2,970) - (2,970)
Total Comprehensive Income : ) 5,743
Cash Dividends (8.37 per share) - - (4,109) - - (4,109)
Purchase of Treasury Stock (11,917 shares) - - - - (492) 492)
Change in Par Value and Stock Split (2,042) 2,042 - - - -
Balance December 31, 2003 $ 140 $ 4224 $ 79,043 $ 1,272 $ (20,375) $ 64,304

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements.
(1) Per share information has been restated to give retroactive effect to the 4-for-1 stock split that was approved September 5, 2003.
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The Wilber Corporation
Consolidated Statem:ents of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousands B ) ) ) 2003 2002 C 2001

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income $ 8713 $ 8562 § 8,046
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income’to Net Cash o

Provided by Operating Activities:

Provision for l.oan Losses ‘ 1,565 ) 1,920 1,540
Depreciation znd Amortization -~ * " 896 931 950
Net Amortization of Premiums and Accretion of Discounts on Investments 1,682 1,042 - 703
Investment Security Gains o (808) (488) (27%9)
Deferred Income Taxes o B 336 - (373) - 29
:- Other Real Esrate Losses : T 66 188 122
Increase in Cash Surrender Value of Bank Owned Life Insurance (639) - (552) S (303)
Increase in Other Assets g 2,837) (586) (694)
(Decrease) Increase in Other Liabilities (141) 1,455 2,015
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 8,833 12,099 12,129

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Net Cash Provided by Branch Acquisition - 29,168 -
Proceeds from Maturities of Held-to-Maturity Investment Securities 32,230 13,757 39,513
Purchases of Held-to-Maturity Investment Securities (33,745) (10,635) (10,654)
Proceeds from Maturities of Available-for-Sale Investment Securities 112,562 42,721 16,265
Proceeds from Sales of Available-for-Sale Investment Securities 11,239 21,181 7,484
Purchases of Available-for-Sale Investment Securitics : (169,874) (104,107) (100,128)
Purchase of Bank Owned Life Insurance - (3,050) (5,000)
Net Increase in Loans (3,921) (26,797) (6,231)
Purchase of Premises and Equipment, Net of Disposals : (548) (853) (1,661)
Proceeds from Sale of Other Real Estate 47 966 442

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (52,010) (37,649) (59,970)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net Increase in Demand Deposits, Savings, NOW,

Money Market and Other Time Deposits 28,452 41,364 38,985

Net Increase (Decrease) in Certificates of Deposit 3,100 (17,951) 12,619
Net Increase (Decrease) in Short-Term Borrowings 6,758 2,730 (3,235)
Increase in Long-Term Borrowings - 21,000 14,200
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings (17,497) (10,167) (2,187)
(Decrease) Increase in Dividends Payable (209) 209 -
Purchase of Treasury Stock ‘ (492) (677) (618)
Sale of Treasury Stock - - 3
Cash Dividends Declared (4,109) (4,272) (3,980)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 16,003 32,236 55,787

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (27,174) 6,686 7,946

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 47,064 40,378 32,432
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 19,890 $ 47,064 $ 40,378

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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The Wilber Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, continued

Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash Paid during Period for:
Interest $ 14,334 £ 17,374 $ 20422
Income Taxes $ 368 § 2321 § 658
Non Cash Investing Activities:
Change in Unrealized Gain on Securities S  (4,902) $ 6,121 3 1,416
Transfer of Loans to Other Real Estate : 3 110 £ 202 5 378

Transfer of Securities to Available-for-Sale from Held-to-Maturity
upon Adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
("SFAS") No. 133 (Fair Value of $28,507)

Fair Value of Assets Acquired

Fair Value of Liabilities Assumed

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Wilber Corporation (the Parent Company) operates 18 branches. serving Otsego, Delaware, Schoharie, Ulster and Chenango
Counties through :ts wholly owned subsidiary Wilber National Bank (the Bank). The Company's primary source of revenue is interest
earned on comme:cial, mortgage and consumer Inans to customers who are predominately individuals and small and middle-market
businesses. Collectively, the Parent Company and the Bank are referred to herein as “the Company.”

The Bank owns a majority interest in Mang-Wilber, LLC, an insurance agency offering a full line of life, health and property and
casualty insurance. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses of Mang-Wilber, LLC are included in the
Company's consolidated financial statements. :

The consolidated financial statements of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The following is a summary of the more significant policies: :

Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its wholly
owned subsidiary after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. In the “Parent Company Only Financial Statements,”
the investment in subsidiary is carried under the equity method of accounting,

Management’s Use of Estimates -— The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions. that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications — Whenever necessary, reclassifications are made to prior period amounts to conform to current year presentation.

Cash Equivalents -— The Company considers amounts due from correspondent banks, cash items in process of collection, Federal

Funds sold and tinie deposit balances with other banks to be cash equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash
flows.

Securities — The Company classifies its investment securities at date of purchase as either held-to-maturity or available-for-sale.
Held-to-maturity securities are those for which the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity, and are reported at
amortized cost. Securities not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value, with net
unrealized gains and losses reflected in stockholders' equity as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of the applicable
income tax effect. Transfers of securities between categories are recorded at full value at the date of transfer.

Non-marketable equity securities, including Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank stock required for membership in those
organizations, are carried at cost.

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to yield using a method that
approximates the irterest method. Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned. Realized gains and losses on the sale of
securities are includled in securities gains (losses). The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method.

A decline in the fair value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below cost that is deemed to be other than temporary
is charged to eamings, resulting in the establiskment of a new cost basis for the security.

Loans — Loans ar: reported at their outstanding principal balance. Interest income on loans is accrued based upon the principal
amount outstanding.

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when timely collection of principal and interest in accordance with contractual terms is
doubtfiil. Loans ars transferred to a nonaccrual basis generally when principal or interest payments become ninety days delinquent,
unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection, or sooner when management concludes circumstances indicate that
borrowers may be unable to meet contractual principal or interest payments. When a loan is transferred to a nonaccrual status, all
interest previously sccrued in the current period but not collected is reversed against interest income in that period. Interest accrued in
a prior period and nat collected is charged-off against the allowance for loan losses.

If ultimate repayment of a nonaccrual loan is expected, any payments received are applied in accordance with contractual terms. If
ultimate repayment of principal is not expected, any payment received on a nonaccrual loan is applied to principal unti.l ultimate
repayment becomes expected. Nonaccrual loans are returned to accrual status when they become current as to principal and interest or
demonstrate a period of performance under the contractual terms and, in the opinion of management, are fully collectible as to
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

principal and interest. When in the opinion of management the collection of principal appears unlikely, the loan balance is charged-
off in total or in part. :

Commercial type loans are considered impaired when it is probable. that.the borrower will not repay the loan according to the original
contractual terms of the loan agreement, and all loan types are considered impaired if the loan is restructured in a troubled debt
restructuring.

A loan is considered to be a troubled debt restructured loan (TDR) when the Company grants a concession to the borrower because of
the borrower’s financial condition that it would not otherwise consider. Such concessions include the reduction of interest rates,
forgiveness of principal or interest or other modifications of interest rates that are less than the current market rate for new obligations
with similar risk. TDR loans that are in compliance with their modified terms and that yield a market rate may be removed from the
TDR status after a period of performance.

Allowance for Loan Losses — The allowance for loan losses is the amount, which in the opinion of management, is necessary to
absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The allowance is determined based upon numerous considerations, including
local economic conditions, the growth and composition of the loan portfolio with respect to the mix between the various types of loans
and their related risk characteristics, a review of the value of collateral supporting the loans, comprehensive reviews of the [oan
portfolio by the external Loan Review and management, as well as consideration of volume and trends of delinquencies, non-
performing loans, and loan charge-offs. As a result of the test of adequacy, required additions to the allowance for loan losses are
made periodically by charges to the provision for loan losses. : '

The allowance for loan losses related to impaired loans is based on discounted cash flows using the loan’s initial effective interest rate
or the fair value of the collateral for certain loans where repayment of the loan is expected to be provided solely by the underlying
collateral (collateral dependent loans). The Company’s impaired loans are generally collateral dependent. The Company considers
the estimated cost to sell, on a discounted basis, when determining the fair value of collateral in the measurement of impairment if
those costs are expected to reduce the cash flows available to repay or otherwise satisfy the loans.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate. While management uses available information to recognize loan
losses, future additions to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions or changes in the
values of properties securing loans in the process of foreclosure. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowance for loan losses. -Such agencies may require the Company to
recognize additions to the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their
examination, which may not be currently available to management.

Other Real Estate Owned — Other real estate owned consists of properties formerly pledged as collateral on loans, which have been
acquired by the Company through foreclosure proceedings or acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure. Other real estate owned is
carried at the lower of the recorded investment in the loan or the fair value of the real estate, less estimated costs to sell. Upon transfer
of a loan to foreclosure status, an appraisal is obtained and any excess of the loan balance over the fair value, less estimated costs to
sell, is charged against the allowance -for loan losses. Expenses and subsequent adjustments to the fair value are treated as other
operating expense. Gains on the sale of other real estate owned are included in income when title has passed and the sale has met the
minimum down payment requirements prescribed by GAAP.

Bank Premises and Equipment — Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
computed principally using accelerated. methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 15 to 40 years for
buildings and from 3 to 10 years for furniture and equipment. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI”) — The BOLI was purchased as a financing tool for employee benefits. The value of life
insurance financing is the tax preferred status of increases in life insurance cash values and death benefits and the cash flow generated
at the death of the insured. The purchase of the life insurance policy results in an interest sensitive asset on the Company's
consolidated statements of condition that provides monthly tax-free income to the Company. In addition to interest risk related to
BOLI investments, there is also credit risk related to insurance carriers. To mitigate this risk, annual financial condition reviews are
completed on all carriers. BOLI is stated on the Company's consolidated statements of condition at its current cash surrender value.
Increases in BOLI's cash surrender value are reported as other operating income in the Company's consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. - The Company files a consolidated tax return on
the accrual method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and
tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

in the years in wkich temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Pension Costs — The Company maintains a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees, as
well as supplemental employee retirement plans covering certain executives. Costs associated with these plans, based on actuarial
computations of current and future benefits for employees, are charged to current operating expenses.

Treasury Stock —- Treasury stock-acquisitions are recorded at cost. -Subsequent sales of treasury stock are recorded on an average cost
basis. ‘Gains on the sale of treasury stock are credited to additional paid-in-capital. Losses on the sale of treasury stock are charged to
additional paid-in-capital to the extent of previcus gains, otherwise charged to retained earnings.

Eamings Per Shzre — Basic eamings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares ouistanding for the period. Entities with complex capital structures must also present
diluted EPS, which reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised

or converted into common shares. The Company does not have a complex capital structure and, accordingly, has presented only basic
EPS. NS

Trust Department — Assets held in fiduciary or agency capacities for customers are not included in the accompanying consolidated
statements of condition, since such items are not assets of the Company.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk — The Bank is a party to other financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in
the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit which involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the

amount recognized in the statement of condition. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Bank
has in particular classes of financial instruments. -

Comprehénsive Income — For the Company, comprehensive income represents net income plus other comprehensive income (loss),
which consists of the net change in unrealized gains or losses on securities available for sale, net of income taxes, for the period and is
presented in the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders' equity and comprehensive income. Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) represents the net unrealized gains or losses on securities available-for-sale as of the balance sheet dates,
net of income taxes.

Segment Reportiag — The Company's operations are solely in the community banking industry and include the provision of
traditional commercial banking services. The Company operates solely in the geographical region of Central New York State. The

Company has identified separate operating segments; however, these segments did not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate
disclosure. S

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — The Company accounts for goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No.
142, "Goodwill znd Other Intangible Asseis.” SFAS No. 142 requires that acquired intangible assets (other than goodwill) be
amortized over their useful economic life, while goodwill and any acquired intangible assets with an indefinite useful economic life
would not be amortized, but would be reviewed for impairment on an annual basis based upon guidelines specified in the Statement.
SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be evaluated for impairment annually. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 on a prospective
basis beginning January 1, 2002. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the core deposit intangible and goodwill were being
amortized on a straight-line basis over ten and fifteen years, respectively. :

Prior to October 1, 2002, the unidentified intangible assets acquired in the acquisition of a bank or thrift (including acquisitions of
branches), where the fair value of the liabilities assumed exceeds the fair value of the assets acquired, was amortized to expense under
SFAS No. 72, "Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions.” In October 2002, SFAS No. 147, "Acquisitions
of Certain Financial Institutions,” was issued.’ This Statement amends SFAS No. 72, SFAS No. 144 and Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 9. Except for transactions between two or more mutual enterprises, this Statement
removes acquisitions of financial institutions from the scope of both SFAS No. 72 and FIN No. 9 and requires that those transactions
be accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations," and No. 142. In addition, this Statement amends SFAS
No. 144, "Accourting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long:Lived Assets," to include in its scope long-term customer-relationship
intangible assets of financial institutions such as depositor- and borrower-relationship intangible assets and credit cardholder
intangible assets. Consequently, those intangible assets are subject to the same undiscounted cash flow recoverability test and
impairment loss recognition and measurement provisions. that SFAS No. 144 requires for other long-lived assets that are held and
used. The provisions of this Statement were applied retroactively to January 1, 2002.

Furthermore, upon adoption of SFAS No. 147, approximately $1,877,000 in unidentified intangible assets was reclassified as goodwill
retroactive to January 1, 2002.
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Note 2. Investment Securities
The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities are as follows:

December 31, 2003

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
dollars in thousands Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-Sale Portfolio
U.S. Treasury and Obligations of U.S.

Government Corporations and Agencies $ 5978 % 50 % - § 0,028
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions 56,684 1,736 404 58,016
Mortgage-Backed Securities 192,745 1,191 1,571 192;365
Corporate Bonds 13,038 911 - 13,949
Equity Securities 4,520 173 - 4,693

$272965 $§ 4,061 §$ 1975 $ 275,051

Held-to-Maturity Portfolio
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions . $ 6292 § 238 $ 15 § 6,515
Mortgage-Backed Securities ' 37,848 341 288 § 37,9M

$ 44,140 § 579 § 303 _§ 44416

December 31, 2002
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
dollars in thousands Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-Sale Portfolio
U.S. Treasury and Obligations of U.S. _

Government Corporations and Agencies | $ 18265 $ 204§ - % 18,469
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions ' 38,172 1,457 - 39,629
Mortgage-Backed Securities 142,983 3,591 - 146,574
Corporate Bonds 23,171 1,645 - 24 816
Equity Securities 4,963 125 34 5,054

$ 227554 § 7,022 § 34 3 234542
Held-to-Maturity Portfolio :
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions ’ $ 3230 S 1 35 - 3 3,231
Mortgage-Backed Securities ' 39,607 1,114 - 40,721

$ 42837 § 1,115 § - § 43,952

The following table provides information on temporarily impaired securities at Decem_ber 21, 2003:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
dollars in thousands Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Obligations of States and Political Subdivisions 15,525 419 - - 15,525 419
Mortgage-Backed Securities 153,303 1,859 - - 153,303 1,859
$168,828 § 2278 $ - 8 - $168,828° § 2,278
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Note 2. Investment Securities, Continued

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, substantially all of the mortgage-backed securities held by the Company were issued or backed by
Federal agencies.

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from
contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
Equity securities 1ave no stated maturity and are excluded from the following tables.

December 31, 2003
Amortized Fair
dollars in thousands Cost Value
Available-for-Sale Securities
Due in One Year or Less 8,566 8,695
Due After One Year Through Five Years . . 26,455 27,548
Due After Five Yzars Through Ten Years : 77,983 78,883
Due After Ten Years - , ) EE 155,441 155,232
$ 268,445 $ 270,358
December 31, 2003
Amortized Fair
dollars in thousands Cost Value
Held-to-Maturity Securities
Due in One Year or Less " ' 590 724
Due After One Year Through Five Years ) 1,679 1,844
Due After Five Years Through Ten Years 1,325 1,264
Due After Ten Years v ' 40,546 40,584

$ 44,140 $ 44,416

The following table sets forth information with regard to securities gains and losses realized on sales or calls:

Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousainds 2003 2002
Gross Gains . $ 842 3§ 760
Gross Losses ' (34) (272)

Net Securities Gains $ 808 % 488

Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock of $3,188,000 at December 31, 2003, and $3,812,000 in 2002 is carried at
cost, as fair values are not readily determinable. Both investments are required for membership. At December 31, 2003, investment
securities carried at $160,614,000, with an estimated fair value of $162,168,000 were pledged as collateral for certain public deposits
and other purposes as required or permitted by lavv.
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Note 3. Loans

December 31,

dollars in thousands 2003 2002
Agricultural S 2,467 3 2,439
Residential Real Estate ) 118,571 125,464
Commercial Real Estate 115,733 104,967
Commercial 62,564 63,156
Consumer 61,571 62,269
360,906 358,295
Less: Allowance for Loan Losses (5,757) (5,392)
Net Loans ' $ 355149 $ 352,903

At December 31, 2003, $88,578,000 residential real estate loans were pledged as collateral for FHLB advances.

At the periods presented below, the subsidiary bank had loans to directors and executive officers of the Company and its subsidiary,
or company in which they have ownership. Such loans are made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms,
including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and did not
involve more than normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. Loan transactions with related parties are as
follows:

: ‘ December 31,
dollars in thousands 2003 2002
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 17,701 § 16,156
(Decrease) Increase ' : (4,447) 1,545
Ending Balance $ 13254 § 17,701
Note 4. Allowance for Loan Losses
Changes in the allowance for loan losses are presented in the following summary:
Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 5392 % 4476 § 4,003
Provision for Loan Losses 1,565 1,920 1,540
Recoveries Credited 276 417 334
Loans Charged-Off : (1,476) (1421) (1,401)
Ending Balance ‘ $ 5757 § 5392 § 4,476

The following provides information on impaired loans for the periods presented:
As of and For the

Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Impaired Loans $ 3270 § 2,196 §  2,48)
Allowance for Impaired Loans 510 442 359
Average Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans 3,485 2,339 2,423
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Note 4. Allowance for Loan Losses, Continued

The following table sets forth information with regards to non-performing loaris:

As of December 31,
dollars in thousands - 2003 2002 2001
Loans in Non-Accrual Status $ 3,164 $ 2,034 § 2,090
Loans Contractually Past Due 90 Days or More
and Still Accruing Interest . 123 717 329
Troubled Debt Restructured Loans ' 371 387 861
Total Non-Performing Loans $§ 3658 % 3,138 § 3,280

Had the loans in non-accrual status performed in accordance with their original terms, additional interest income of $83,000 would
have been recorded for the year ended December 31, 2003. In addition, in 2002 and 2001, interest income of $116,000 and
$134,000, respectively, would have been recorded.

Had the troubled debt restructured loans pel.'fomlea in accordahcé with their original terms, the Company would have recorded
interest income of $31,000, $34,000 and $35,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Under the

restructured terms, the Company recorded interest income of $32,000, $35,000 and $35,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Note 5. Premises and Equipment .
December 31,

dollars in thousands 2003 2002
Land S 539 $ 483
Buildings 7,418 7,194
Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment 5,386 5,404
13,343 13,081
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (7,622) (7,127

3 5721 § 5,954

Depreciation expense was $781,000, $825,000, and $783,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 énd 2001, respéctive]y.

Note 6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets are presented in the follbwing table:

December 31,

dollars in thousanls 2003 2002
Goodwill $ 2,682 3§ 2,682
Core Deposit Intangible $ 285 % 285
Other Intangible Assets 450 450
Total Intangible Assets $ 735 % 735
Accumulated Amortization 274) (159)
Intangible Assets, Net 3 461 3 576

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $115,000 for 2003, $106,000 for 2002, and $168,000 for 2001. The core deposit
intangible and other intangible assets are amortized over a weighted average period of approximately 5 and 12 years, respectively.

53-K




Note 6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Continued

In February 2002, the Company acquired a branch and recorded related goodwill of $1,877,000 and a core deposit intangible asset of
$285,000. See Note 1 "Goodwill and Intangible Assets." ‘

Estimated annual amortization expense of intangible assets, absent any impairment or change in estimated useful lives is summarized
as follows for each of the next five years:

dollars in thousands

2004 $ 80
2005 80
2006 : 80
2007 30
2008 - 23

Pro forma net income and net income per share for December 31, 2001, adjusted to eliminate historical amortization of goodwill per
SFAS No. 142, is as follows (per share information restated to give retroactive effect to the 4-for-1 stock split that was approved
September 5, 2003): ‘

December 31,

dollars in thousands 2001
Reported Net Income $ 8,046
Goodwill Amortization (nondeductible for tax) . 115

Pro Forma Net Income 3 8,161
Reported Net Income Per Share $ 0.71
Pro Forma Net Income Per Share 3 0.72
Note 7. Time Deposits

Contractual maturities of time deposits were as follows:

December 31, 2003

dollars in thousands Amount %

2004 : ' $ 139,571 52.04
2005 49,430 18.43
2006 20,459 7.63
2007 . 27,321 10.19
2008 ' 31,285 11.67
Thereafter 120 0.04

$ 268,186 100.00 %
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Note 8. Borrowings

The following 1s a summary of borrowings:

December 31,

dollars in thousands B ’ ) 2003 - 2002
Short-Term Borrow/ings: ' ' ‘ ‘ '
Federal Funds Purchased A B $ 8,100 $ -
Securities Sold Under Agréements to Repurchase 11,178 10,260
Treasury Tax and Loan Notes 740 3,000

Long-Term Borrowings:

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank
Bearing Interest at 5.675%, Due January 2003 _ - 8,000
Bearing Interest at 6.11%, Due June 2003 ‘ ' A - 1,500

Bearing Interest at 5.45%, Due July 2003 - 500
Bearing Interest at 5.87% to 6.11%, Due December 2003 - 5,000
. Bearing Interest at 5.47%, Due January 2004 500 500
Bearing Interest at 6.52%, Due January 2005, Callable January 2004 10,000 10,000
Bearing Interest at 6.55%, Due March 2005, Callable March 2004 10,000 10,000
Bearing Interest at 3.43% to 6.13%, Due December 2004 2,746 3,411
Bearing Interest at 3.64% to 5.68%, Due January 2005 1,304 1,966
Bearing Intercst at 2.62%, Due November 2012, Callable November 2005 8,000 8,000
Bearing Interest at 5.90% to 6.11%, Due December 2005 4,000 4,000
Bearing Interest at 5.77%, Due January 2006 1,000 1,000
Bearing Interest at 5.22%, Due July 2006 848 1,137
Bearing Interest at 3.05%, Due December 2012, Callable December 2007 8,000 8,000
Bearing Interest at 5.56%, Due July 2008 709 838
Bearing Interest at 5.03%, Due January 2009 ‘ : : ' 1,542 1,797
Bearing Interest at 5.89% to 5.95%, Due July 2011 ‘ 1,388 1,527
Bearing Interest at 5.30%, Due December 2011 1,694 1,857
Bearing Interest at 6.26%, Due July 2016 : . , 899 - 944
Bearing Interest at 5.77%, Due December 2016 1,830 1,921
Bearing Interest at 6.04%, Due January 2017 920 965
Bearing Interest at 6.46%, Due July 2021 469 483
Total Borrowings $ 75,867 § 86,606

Borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) are collateralized by mortgage loans, mortgage-backed securities or other
government agency securities. At December 31, 2003, $18,000,000 of the long-term borrowings were collateralized by securities
with a carrying value and estimated fair value of $18 403,000 and $18,379,000, respectively. The remaining long-term borrowings
totaling $37,849,000 are collateralized by the Comipany's mortgage loans. At December 31, 2003, the Bank had a line of credit of
$72,880,000 with the FHLB. However, based on outstanding borrowings at FHLB, the total potentlal borrowing capamty on these
lines is reduced to $18,314,000 at December 31, 2003.

Information relatec. to short-term borrowings is as follows: As of and For the

Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Outstanding Balance at End of Period $ 20,018 $ 13,260 $ 10,530
Maximum Qutstanding at any Month-End 20,018 16,416 18,168
Average Amount Outstanding during Period 13,529 12,889 12,380
Average Interest Rate during Period 0.86 % 1.47% 3.28%
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Note 8. Borrowings, Continued
Average amounts outstanding and average interest rates are computed using weighted daily averages.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase included in short-term borrowings represent the purchase of interests in government
securities by the Bank’s customers, which are repurchased by the Bank on the following business day or at stated maturity. The
underlying securities are held in a third party custodian account and are under the Company’s control. The carrying value and
estimated fair value of securities pledged as collateral for repurchase agreements was $22,012,000 and $22,078,000 at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. These amounts are included in the total of investment securities pledged disclosed in Note 2.

Note 9. Income Taxes
Income tax expense attributable to income before taxes is comprised of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

dollars in thousands B 2003 2002 2001

Current: .

Federal o s 2620 $ 3328 $ 2,795

State - 7} 403 323
Total Current o 2,941 3,731 3,118

Deferred: ' o ‘ ‘

Federal B 278 (299) 20

State _ ‘ 61 (74) 9
Total Deferred ' 336 (3713 29

Total Income Tax Expense : . ‘ $ 3277 $ 3,358 $ 3,147

The components of deferred income taxes, which are included in the consolidated statements of condition are:

Year Ended December 31,

dollars in thousands 2003 2002
Assets: .
Allowance for Loan Losses ‘ $ 2242 $ 2,100
Deferred Compensation _ ‘ 1,255 1,000
Reserves 97 97
Other 45 17
3,639 3,214
Liabilities:
Securities Discount Accretion ' s 211 178
Defined Benefit Pension Plan S 1,738 1,287
Net Unrealized Gain on Securities ’
Available-for-Sale 812 2,744
Other . ‘ 503 226
. 3,264 4435
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities) Assets $ 375 $ (1,221)
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Note 9. Income Taxes, Continued

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income or the existence of sufficient taxable
income within the carry-back period. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, management considers the scheduled
reversal of the deferred tax liabilities, the level of historical taxable income and projected future taxable income over the periods in

which the temporary differences comprising the deferred tax assets will be deductible. Based on its assessment, management
determined that no valuatxon allowance is necessary.

A reconciliatior of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective incomie tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001

Statutory Federal Income Tax Rate o - R T 34% 34 % 34%

Variances from Statutory Rate:

State Income Tax, Net of Federal Tax Benefit . . - 2.1 : 1.8 - 2.0

Tax Exempt Income - (8.8) (8.0) 8.2)

Other a : g - 0.4 0.3
‘Effective Tax Rate ‘ C273% 28.2% 28.1 %

Note. 10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company, through its bank subsxdlarv, has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covermg employees who have
attained the age of 21 and have completed one year of service. The Company's funding practice is to contribute at least the minimum
amount annually to meet minimum funding requirements. Contributions are ititended to provide not only for benefits attributed to
service to date, but also for those expected to be eamed in the future. Plan assets consist primarily of marketable fixed income
securities and common stocks. Plan benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s average compensation during the five
highest consecutive years of the last ten years of employment.

The following table sets forth the components of pension expense (benefit) as well as chahges'in the plan’s projected benefit

obligation and plan assets and the plan’s furded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of condition based on a
September 30 measurement date.

dollars in thousands L - 2003 2002

Change in Benefit Obligation: o T
Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year L ‘ _ o $ 11,868 b 10,684
Service Cost ' o "541 484
Interest Cost : 785 758
Actuarial Loss o . o ’ ’ 1,413 - 422
Additional Prior Service Cost : , _‘ 161 -
Benefits Paid : L (509) (480)
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year ‘ $ 14,259 3 11,868

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of Year S 10,929 $ 12,139
Actual (Gain) Loss on Plan Assets 1,908 (730)
Employer Coniribution ) ' _ 2,210 -
Benefits Paid : ' ' : (509) (480)
Fair Value of Flan Assets at End of Year . $§ 14,538 3 10,929
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Note. 10. Employee Benefit Plans, continued

dollars in thousands . 2003 2002
Funded (Unfunded) Status 8 279 % (939)
Unrecognized Net Actuarial Loss 3,827 3,530
Unrecognized Net Transition Asset ' ' 21 (62)
Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 444 333
Prepaid Benefit Cost before Fourth Quarter Contribution $ 4,529 s 2,862
Amount Contributed during the Fourth Quarter » ' - 510
Prepaid Benefit Cost at December 31 $ 4,529 3 3,372 .

The following table presents a comparison of the accumulated benefit obligation and plan assets:

dollars in thousands 2003 2002

Projected benefit obligation $ 14,259 3 11,868
Accumulated benefit obligation 11,926 9,572
Fair Value of Plan Assets 14,538 10,929

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost (Benefit) are:

dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Service Cost $ 541  $ 484  § 397
Interest Cost ‘ ' - 785 758 689
Expected Return on Plan Assets . (949) (1,034) (1,144)
Net Amortization » . 166 .18 (28)
: $ 543 3 226 § (86)

The following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine the benefit obligation of the plan as of September 30:

2003 2002 2001
Discount Rate 6.00 % 6.75% 7.25%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.00% 8.50% 8.50%
Rate of Compensation Increase 3.00% 4.00% 4.00%

The following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine the net periodic benefit cost of the plan for the years ended
December 31:

2003 2002 2001
Discount Rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.75%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.85%
Rate of Compensation Increase 4.00 % 4.00% 4.25%

The plan's weighted average asset allocations at September 20, 2003 and 2003, by asset category are as follows:

Plan Assets at

September 30,
dollars in thousands 2003 2002
Equity Securities ‘ 59.7% .553%
Debt Securities ) 34.5% 36.3%
Other 5.8% 8.4%
100.0 % 100.0 %
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Naote. 10. Employe: Benefit Plans, continued

Investment Strategy

The plan assets are invested in the New Yorlk State Bankers Retirement System (the "System™) which was established in 1938 to
provide for the payment of benefits to employees of participating banks. The System is overseen by a Board of Trustees who meet
quarterly and set the investment policy guidzslines. The System utilizes two investment management firms, each investing
approximately 50% of the total portfolio. The System's investment objective is to exceed the investment benchmarks in each asset
category. Each finn operates under a separate written investment policy approved by the Board of Trustees and designed to achieve

an allocation approximating 60% invested in Equity Securities and 40% invested in Debt Securities. Each firm reports at least
quarterly to the Investment Committee and semi-anaually to the Board.

The equity portfolio consists of‘a diversified portfolio of common or capital stocks, or bonds, debentures, notes, or preferred stocks
convertible into common or capital stocks, or in cther types of equity investments whether foreign or domestic. The fixed income
portfolio focuses oa high quality securities drawn from various market sectors, including U.S. treasuries and government sponsored

agencies, sovereigns, supranationals, residential Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS), corporates, Commercial Mortgage Backed
Securities (CMBS), Asset Backed Securities (ABS), and municipals.

Expected Long-Term Rate-of-Return

The expected long-term rate-of-return on the plan assets reflects long-term earnings expectations on existing plan assets and those
contributions expected to be received during the current plan year. In estimating that rate, appropriate consideration was given to
historical returns earned by plan assets inthe fund and the rates of return expected to be available for reinvestment. Average rates of

return over the past 1, 3, 5 and 10 year periods were determined ‘and subsequently adjusted to reflect current capital market
assumptions and changes in investment allocations.

The Company expects to make the maximum tax-deductible contribution of $552,000 to the pension plan in 2004.

Supplemental Retirement Income Agreement

In addition to the Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pension plan, in 2002 the Company adopted two supplemental
employee retirement plans for one current executive and one former executive. The amount of the liabilities recognized in the
Company’s consolidated statements of condition associated with these plans was $656,000 at December 31, 2003 and $541,000 at
December 31, 2002, For the years ended December 31, 2003, and 2002, the Company recognized $163,000 and $541,000,
respectively, of expense related to those plans. The discount rate used in determining the actuarial present values of the projected
benefit obligations was 6.00% at December 31, 2003.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies
Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk consist of the following:

December 31,

dollars in thousands ' ‘ 2003 2002
Commitments to Extend Credit C $ 49,124 § 45,378
Standby Letters of Credit : .9,954 1,607

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in
the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.
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Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies, Continued

Standby letters of credit written are conditionial commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a
third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including bond
financing and similar transactions. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loan facilities to customers. Since some of the letters of credit are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s stand-by letters of credit was $43 thousand and $14 thousand at December 31, 2003
and December 31, 2002, respectively. The estimated fair value of stand-by letters of credit at their inception is equal to the fee
that is charged to the customer by the Company. Generally, the Company’s stand-by letters of credit have a term of one year. In
determining the fair values disclosed above, the fees were reduced on a straight-line basis from the inception of each stand-by
letter of credit to the respective dates above. Due to immateriality of the fair value of the Company’s stand-by letters of credit, as

well as their short-term nature, the Company recognized the fees for the stand-by letters of credit in income at inception during
2003.

The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, by the Bank upon extension of credit for commitments to extend credit
and letters of credit, is based upon management's credit evaluation of the counter party. Collateral held varies but includes
residential and commercial real estate.

In the ordinary course of business there are various legal proceedings pending against the Company. After consultation with
outside counse], management considers that the aggregate exposure, if any, arising from such litigation would not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position.

Note 12. Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,”" requires disclosure of fair value information about
financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the consolidated statement of condition, for which it is practicable to estimate
that value. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other
valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly’ affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and
estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and in many cases could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instruments. SFAS No. 107 excludes
certain financia!l instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair
value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Bank.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Short-Term Financial Instruments

The fair value of certain financial instruments is estimated to approximate their carrying value because the remaining term to
maturity of the financial instrument is less than 90 days or the financial instrument reprices in 90 days or less. Such financial
instruments include cash and due from banks, Federal Funds sold, accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable.

Securities
Fair values of securities are based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is
estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Loans

For certain homogenous categories of loans, such as some residential mortgages, credit card receivables, and other consumer
loans, fair value is estimated using the quoted market prices for securities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan
characteristics. The fair value of other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.
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Note 12. Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Continued

Deposits

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and. certain NOW and money market deposits is the amount payable on
demand at the repcrting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity time deposits is estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits
of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowings
The fair value of repurchase agreements, short-tznm borrowings, and long-term borrowings is estimated using discounted cash flow

analysis based on the Company's current incremental borrowing rate for similar borrowing arrangements.
Off-Balance Sheet Instruments

The fair value of outstanding loan commitmerts and standby letters of credit are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements, the counter parties' credit standing and discounted cash flow
analysis. The fair value of these instruments approximates the value of the related fees and is not material.

The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

December 31 December 31
2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
dollars in thousands ’ Value Value Value Value
Financial Assets: .
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 19,890 $ 19,891 $ 47,064 § 47,067
Securities » : . 319,191 319,467 277,379 278,494
Loans ‘ 360,906 361,434 358,295 . 360,182
Allowance for Loan Losses (5,757) (5,757) (5,392) (5,392)
Net Loans . 355,149 355,677 352,903 354,790
Accrued Interest Receivable ‘ 3,045 3,045 2,519 2,519
Financial Liabilities:
Demand, Savings, NOW and Money _ o
Market Deposit Accounts . ' 0§ 312,447 § 312447 $ 283744 $ 283,744
Time Deposits 268,186 271,217 265,337 265,812
Borrowings 75,867 78,290 86,606 86,627
Accrued Interest Payable 769 769 - 953 953

Note 13. Regulatory Matters

The Company andl the subsidiary bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary,
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the subsidiary bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Cormpany’s and subsidiary bank’s capital amounts and classifications are also subject
to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the maintenance of minimum amounts and
ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined),
and of Tier 1 capital {(as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes the Company and subsidiary bank meet all
capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
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Note 13. Regulatory Matters, Continued

The most recent notification from the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency categorized the subsidiary bank as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Company and subsidiary
bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following table.
There have been no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the subsidiary institution’s
category.

For Capital
Actual: Adequacy Purpeses: Action Provisions:

dollars in thousands Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount _ Ratio
As of December 31, 2003
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:

The Company $ 65,642 14.26 % $ 36,817 8.00 % N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $ 63,849 13.88% $ 36,794 8.00 % 5 45,993 10.00 %
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:

The Company $ 59,889 13.01 % $ 18,409 4.00 % N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $ 58,099  12.63 % $ 18,397 4.00 % $ 27,596 6.00 %
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets:

The Company $ 59,889 8.18 % $ 29,278 4.00 % N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $ 58,099 7.94 % $ 29,255 4.00 % $ 36,569 5.00 %
As of December 31, 2002
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:

The Company $60,912 14.49 % $ 36,641 8.00 % N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $ 59,601 14.19% $ 33,590 8.00 % $ 41,987 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:

The Company $ 55,662 13.24 % $ 16,820 4.00 % N/A  N/A

Subsidiary Bank § 54,351 12.94 % $ 16,795 4.00 % $ 25,192 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets:

The Company $ 55,662 7.92 % 3 28,116 4.00 % N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $ 54,351 7.74 % $ 28,081 4.00 % $ 35,101 5.00%
As of December 31, 2001
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:

The Company . $ 58,581 15.35% $ 30,534 8.00 % N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $57,424 15.07 % $ 30,476 8.00 % $ 38,094 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:

The Company $ 54,104 14.18% $ 15267 4.00% N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $52,947 13.90 % $ 15,238 4.00 % $ 22,857 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets:

The Company $ 54,104 8.81 % $ 24,564 4.00 % N/A N/A

Subsidiary Bank $ 52,947 8.63 % § 24,535 4.00 % $ 30,669 5.00%

Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid to stockholders. Generally, dividends are limited to retained
net profits for the current year and two preceding years. At December 31, 2003, dividends totaling $10,212,000 could have been
paid without prior regulatory approval.
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Note 14. Other Comprehensive Income

The following is a summary of changes in other comprehensive income for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,
dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Unrealized Holding (Losses) Gains Arising During the Period Net of Tax
(Pre-tax Amount of $(5,710,000), $6,608,000, and $1,695,000) $ (2,485 § 4,015 $ 1,018
Reclassification Adjustment for (Gains) Losses Realized in Net Income
During the Period, Net of Tax (Pre-tax Amount of (3808,000),
($488,000), and (5279,000)) (485) (293) (168)
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income, Net of Tax of ($1,932,000),
$2,398,000, and $566,000 $ (2970) § 3,722 § 850

Note 15. Parent Company Only Financial Statemiznts

Presented below are the condensed statements of condition for December 31, 2003, and 2002 and statements of income and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, for the Parent Company. These financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Condensed Statements of Condition

December 31,

dollars in thousands 2003 2002

Assets ,

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,121 § 690

Securities Available for Sale, at Estimated Fair Value 726 644

Investment in Subsidiary, Equity Basis 62,408 61,796

Other Assets 1,029 907
Total Assets : ' ‘ ’ $ 65284 3§ 64,037

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities $ 980 3 875
Stockholders’ Equity 64,304 63,162
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ' $ 65284 3 64,037
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Note 15, Parent Company Only Financial Statements, Continued

Condensed Statements of Income
December 31,

dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Dividends from Subsidiary $ 5375 § 5026 § 4,887
Interest and Other Dividend Income : S - 31 : 28 34
Net (Loss) Gain on Sale of Securities - ) - ' (165) 99
‘ 5,406 4,889 5,020
Operating Expense 172 83 75

Income Before Income Tax (Benefit) Expense and Equity

in Undistributed Income of Subsidiary - 5,234 4,806 4,945
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense (56) 91) 17
Equity in Undistributed Income of Subsidiaries 3,423 3,665 3,118
Net Income $ 8713 8,562 § 8,046

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows‘ , :
Year Epded December 31,

dollars in thousands 2003 2002 2001
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income » ' o _ ) 3 8713 § 8,562 § 8,046
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Cash 7 ' '
Provided by Operating Activities:
Investment Security Losses (Gains) . - 165 (99)
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets “)
(Decrease) Increase in Other Liabilities 44) (91) 17
Equity in Undistributed Income of Subsidiaries (3,423) {3,665) (3,118)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,242 4,971 4,846
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from Sales of Available-for-Sale Securities - 258 161
Purchase of Available-for-Sale Securities - (246) -
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities ' - 12 161
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Purchase of Treasury Stock (492) 677) (618)
Sale of Treasury Stock ‘ ' ‘ - - 3
Cash Dividends ‘ ) (4,319 (4,062) (3,980
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities o (4,811) (4,739 (4,595)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents _ 431 244 412
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 690 446 34
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 1,121 § 690 % 446
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Note 16. Stockholders’ Equity

On July 21, the Board of Directors approved a 4-for-1 stock split payable on September 18, 2003. On September 5, 2003,
the stockholders approved: (i) an increase in authorized shares of common stock to 16,000,000 and (ii) a change in the
par value of the common stock from no par value to $0.01 par value.  All per share amounts have been restated to

reflect the 4-for-1 stock split. The stock split resulted in an increase in the shares issued and treasury shares of
10,471,248 and 2,064,204 shares, respectively. . - e S : : »

Note 17. Federal Reserve Bank Requirement

The Company is required to maintain alélea.r'ing bélénce with the Federal Reserve Bank. The requii’ed clearing balance
for the 14-day mzintenance period ending December 24, 2003 was $1,300,000.

ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE C o ‘ 4

None.

ITEM 9A: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the design and operational
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure cortrols and procedures (as defined in Rule 13(a)-15(e) and 15(d}-15(e) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) -as of December 31, 2003. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the. Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

PART ill

ITEM 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

1 ’

A. Directors of the Registrant

information contained under the caption, "The Election of Directors (introduction),” "The Election of Directors - The
Nominees;" and "The Election of Directors - Meetings of the Board of Directors and Certain Committees” in the definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 24, 2004, to be filed with the Commission
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered.by this Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

B. Executive Officers of the Registrant Who Are Not Directors

Information contained under the caption, "The Election .of Directors -The.Nominees — Alfred S. Whittet” and "The Election
of Directors - Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors,” in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on April 24, 2004, to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

C. Compliance With Section 16{a)

Information contained under the caption, “Section 18(a) Beneficial OV\?nership Reporting Compliance,” in the def.init.ive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Aprit 24, 2004, to be filed with the Commission
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for adherence by its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer., aqd
Chief Accounting Officer to ensure honest and ethical conduct; full, fair and proper disclosure of financial information in
the Company's periodic reports; and compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations. The text of the Company’s
Code of Ethics is included as Exhibit 14 heretc.
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ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information contained under the caption, "Compensation,” in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual meeting of
Shareholders to be held on Aprit 24, 2004, to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information contained under the caption, "Principal Owners of Our Common Stock,” in the definitive Proxy Statement for

the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on April 24, 2004, to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the
end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K| is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information contained under the caption, "Compensation - Transactions With Directors and Officers,” in the definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on April 24, 2004, to be filed with the Commission
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information contained under the caption, "Independent Auditors’ Fees — Audit and Non-Audit Fees," and “Independent
Auditors' Fees — Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures” in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held on April 24, 2004, to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference. -

PART IV

ITEM 15: EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
The financial statement schedules and exhibits filed as part of this Form 10-K are as follows:
(a)(1) The following Consolidated Financial Statements are included in PART II, item 8, hereof:
-Independent Auditors’ Report
-Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002
-Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001
-Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
-Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 ‘
-Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(2) None.
(3) Exhibits: See Exhibit Index to this Form 10-K

(b) Reports on Form 8-K: The Company did not file any reports on Form 8-K during the quarter ended December 31,
2003. ’ ‘

(c) None.

(d) Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly

caused-this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE WILBER CORPORATION

Date: _March 23,2004 S By: /s/ _Alfred S Whittet

Alfred S. Whittet
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

I

Signatures » Title Date
[s/ Alfred S Whittet President and Chief Executive Officer March 23,2004

Alfred S. Whittet

Sutaris _ ° Secretary and Chief Financial Officer = . _March 23,2004

Joseph E. Sutaris : ‘
____lsL_Bnan_B_Muigm____. Director, Chairman March 23 2004
Brian R. Wright

{s{_Rohert W_Mayer Director, Vice Chairman March 23,2004
Robert W. Moyer -

Is!_David F. Wilber Il Director ‘ : March 23 2004
David F. Wilber, i ' o ' .

[s/_James F VanDeusen , , Dire(:tqr ‘ - ‘ o March 23 2004

James F. VanDeusen

/{s{ Philin.l Devine " Director : S March 232004
Philip J. Devine
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Document

Articles of Incorporation of The Wilber Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's
Form 10/A Registration Statement (No 001-31896) with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January
30, 2004)

Bylaws of The Wilber Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form 10/A
Registration Statement (No. 001-31896) with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004)

Deferred Compensation Agreemént 6etween Wilber National Bank and Alfred S. Whittet (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 10/A Registration Statement (No. 001 -31896) with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004)

Summary Plan Description for the Amended and Restated Wilber National Bank Split-Dollar Life lnsurance‘Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 10/A Registration Statement (No. 001-31896)
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004)

Amendment to the Wilber National Bank Split-Dollar Life insurance Plan Agreement and Split-Dollar Policy
Endorsement between Wilber National Bank and Alfred .S. Whittet (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
the Company’s Form 10/A Registration Statement (No. 001-31896) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 30, 2004)

Executive Salary Continuation Agreement between Wilber National Bank and Robert W. Moyer (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Form 10/A Registration Statement (No. 001-318986) with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004)

Executive Salary Continuation Agreement between Wilber National Bank and Alfred S. Whittet (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Form 10/A Reglstratuon Statement (No. 001-31896) with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004) _

Employment Agreement between Wilber National Bank and Alfred S. Whittet (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.6 of the Company's Form 10/A Registration Statement (No. 001-31896) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 30, 2004)

Severance Corﬁpensation Agreement between The Wilber Corporation and Alfred S. Whittet {(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Company’s Form 10/A Registration Statement (No. 001-31896) with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004)

Retention Bonus Agreement between Wilber National Bank and Douglas C. Gulotty (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 of the Company's Form 10/A Registration Statement (No. 001-31896) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on January 30, 2004)

Annual Report to Sharehoiders (included in this annual report on Form 10-K)

Code of Ethics

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350




Exhibit 14
THE WILBER CORPORATION
Code of Ethics
{For senior financial 6fficers in accordance with the

Sarbanes-Oxley Corporate Responsibility Act of 2002)

it is the policy of The Wilber Corporation that its employees, directors, and agents are held to the highest standards of
honest and ethical conduct when conducting the affairs of the Bank. Because the equity shares of The Wilber
Corporation are publicly traded, senior financial officers* of The Wilber Corporation are held to an especually high set of
ethical standards, which are further described below. Senior financial officers of The Wilber Corporation will not commit
acts contrary to these standards of ethical canduct nor shall they condone the commission of such acts by others within
The Wilber Corporation organization.

General Standards of Ethical Behavior
Senior financial officers will:

» Conduct their personal and professional affairs in a way that avoids both real and apparent conflicts of interest
between their interzsts and the interests of the bank.

* Refrain from engaging in any activity that would compromise their professional ethics or otherwise prejudice their
ability to carry out their duties to the bank.

» Communicate to executive management of the bank and to accountants engaged in financial audits of the bank, all
relevant unfavorable as well as favorable information and professional judgments or opinions.

= Encourage open communication and full disclosure of financial information by providing a well understood process
under which management is kept informed of financial information of importance, including any departures from sound
policy, practice, and accounting norms.

= Ensure that all relevant staff members understand the bank's open communication and full disclosure standards and
processes.

» Refrain from disclosing confidential inforration acquired in the course of their work except where authorized, unless
legally obligated to do so.

* Inform subordinates, as appropriate, regarding the confidentiality of information acquired in the course of their work
and monitor, as needed, to ensure that subordinates maintain that confidentiality.

» Refrain from using or appearing to use confidential information acquired in the course of their work for unethical or
ilegal advantage, either personally or indirectly through others.

Standards Regarding Financial Records and Reporting

Senior financial officers will:

» Establish appropriate systems and procedures to ensure that business transactions are recorded on the bank's books
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Prmcxpals establlshed company pollcy, and appropriate regulatory

pronouncements end guidelines.

» Establish appropriate policies and procedures for the protection and retention of accounting records and information
as required by applicable law, regulation, or regulatory guidelines.
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* Establish and administer financial accounting controls that are appropriate to ensure the integrity of the financial
reporting process and the availability of timely, relevant information for the safe, sound, and profitable operation of the
bank.

= Completely disclose all relevant information reasonably expected to be needed by the bank's regulatory examiners
and internal and external auditors for the full, complete, and successful discharge of their duties and responsibilities.

* Defined as all Regulation O executive officers along with the chief executive officer (CEO), chief
financial officer (CFO), chief accounting officer (CAO), controller, or any person serving in an equivalent
position regardless of whether or not they are designated as executive officers for Regulation O

purposes.
/s!_Alfred S. Whittet ' /s/ Joseph E. Sutaris
President and Chief Executive Officer Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

/s/ _James M. Salisbury
Vice President and Treasurer

Approved by
The Wilber Corp. Board
February 28, 2003
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
The Wilber Corporation has the following subsidiary, which is wholly owned:

Wilber National Bank, a national bank.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

|, Alfred S. Whittet, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Wilber Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report.

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal controi over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: March 23, 2004

By: s/ Alfred S. Whittet
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

1, Joseph E. Sutaris, certify that:
1. thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K‘ of The Wilber Corporation;

2. Based on my khowledge, this annual report does not bontain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not mislead ng with respect to the pericd covered by this annual report. -

3. Based on my k‘nowledge the financial statements; and 6ther financial information included in this annual report, fairly

present in all material respects the financial coridition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this annual report.

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing énd maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules “3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared,

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
Teport our conclusions about the: effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation;-and

c¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: March 23, 2004

By: /s/_Joseph E. Sutaris
Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

73-K




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of The Wilber Corporation (the "Company"), hereby certifies that to his
knowledge on the date hereof:

(a) the Form 10-K of the Company for the Annual Period Ended December 31, 2003, filed on the date hereof
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Report"), fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company. :

/s/ _Alfred S. Whittet
Alfred S. Whittet
President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 23, 2004

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 9086, or other document authenticating, acknowiedging, or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required
by Section 906, has been provided to The Wilber Corporation and will be retained by The Wilber Corporation and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.2

Certification Statemient of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1850, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of The Wiiber Corporation (the "Company"), hereby certifies that to his
knowledge on the date hereof:

(a) the Form 10-K of the Company for the Annual Period Ended December 31, 2003, filed on the date hereof
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Report"), fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

{(b) information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

/s/ _Joseph E. Sutaris
Joseph E. Sutaris
Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
Date: March 23, 2004

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written- statement required
by Section 906, has been provided to The Wilber Corporation and will be retained by The Wilber Corporation and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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TELIK, INC.

3165 Porter Drive
Palo Alto, CA 94304

Notice Of Annual Meeting Of Stockholders To Be Held On May 12, 2004

To the Stockholders of Telik, Inc.:

Notice Is Hereby Given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Telik, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
“Company”), will be held on Wednesday, May 12, 2004 at 9:00 a.m. local time at the Company’s office at 3165
Porter Drive, Palo Alto, CA 94304 for the following purposes:

(1) To elect two directors to hold office until the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders;

(2) To ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as independent auditors of the Company for its fiscal
year ending December 31, 2004; and

(3) To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice.
The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 25, 2004 as the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at this Annual Meeting and at any adjournment or

postponement thereof.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Nl fopr

William P. Kaplan
Secretary

Palo Alto, California
April 9, 2004

ALL STOCKHOLDERS ARE CORDIALLY INVITED TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN
PERSON. WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE
COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN, AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY AS PROMPTLY AS
POSSIBLE IN ORDER TO ENSURE YOUR REPRESENTATION AT THE MEETING. A
RETURN ENVELOPE (WHICH IS POSTAGE PREPAID IF MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES)
IS ENCLOSED FOR THAT PURPOSE. EVEN IF YOU HAVE GIVEN YOUR PROXY, YOU MAY
STILL VOTE IN PERSON IF YOU ATTEND THE MEETING. PLEASE NOTE, HOWEVER,
THAT IF YOUR SHARES ARE HELD OF RECORD BY A BROKER, BANK OR OTHER
NOMINEE AND YOU WISH TO VOTE AT THE MEETING, YOU MUST OBTAIN FROM THE
RECORD HOLDER A PROXY 1SSUED IN YOUR NAME.
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CORPORATE OFFICES |
The Wilber Corporation |
245 Main Street ‘
PO. Box 430

Oneonta, New York 13820 l
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
For the 2003 fiscal year, The Wilber
Corporation has filed an Annual Report on
Form 10-K with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). The Form 10-K is available
on the World Wide Web as part gf the SEC
EDGAR database at www.sec.gov|or via
www.wilberbank.com. Sharzhalders may
also obtain a copy free of charge by writing
to The Wilber Corporation, 245 Main Street,
PO. Box 430, Oneonta, NY 13520, Attention:

Corporate Secretary

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT & REGISTRAR
Shareholders wishing o change t"ame, address
or ownership of stock, or tc report lost certifi-
cates or to consolidate accounts should contact
the Company’s stock registrar and wanster
agent directly at: ‘
Registrar & Transfer Compan’y
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, New Jersey 07016-3572
800-368-5948 |
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COUNSEL

Hinman, Howard & Kattell, LLP
106 Corporate Park Drive, Suite 317
White Plains, New York 10604

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG, LLP

515 Broadway

Albany, New York 12207

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

The Wilber Corporation is an equal opportunity
employer. All matters regarding recruiting, hir-
ing, training, compensation, benefits, promo-
tions, transfers and all other personnel policies
will remain free from discriminatory practices.

A Year of Expansion

{

i
il

il

THE WILBER CORPORATION

¢, NY Photography Gerry Raymonda Photography, Oneonta, NY  Printing Chenango Union Printing, Inc., Norwich, NY




THE WILBER CORPORATION

245 Main Street
Oneonta, New York 13820

607-432-1700




